
1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Public Participation 

CITY OF LINCOLN 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

AGENDA 
DECEMBER 2, 2019 

CITY BALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7:00pm 

5. Presentation of Annual Financial Audit for FY 2018-2019- Lori Milosevich. Estes, Bridgewater & 
Ogden 

6. Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote 
All items under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in nature and/or non-controversial and will be 
approved by one motion. If any one wishes to have a separate vote on any item, it will be pulled from the Consent 
Agenda and voted on separately. 

A. Payment of Bills 
B. Approval of minutes October 15, 2019 Committee Of The Whole Meeting Regular City Council 

Meeting, November 18, 2019 Regular City Council Meeting 
C. Request from the Lincoln BBQ Committee to close various streets for the 1 Olh Annual Pigs and Swigs 

Festival from Thursday, June 4, 2020 at 4:00 PM through Sunday, June 7, 2020 at 6:00 PM 
D. Request from Jason & Kari Erickson to operate carriage rides on the square from Saturday, November 

30, 2019 through Saturday, December 2, 2019 
E. Advise and Consent to the appointment of Adam Wessbecher to the Historic Preservation Commission 

7. Ordinance and Resolution 
A. Ordinance Authorizing the Sale Of Real Estate 
B. Ordinance Prohibiting on-site Consumption of Cannabis at Cannabis Dispensaries 
C. Ordinance authorizing Mayor to sign the loan application for CSO improvements 

8. Bids 
Approval of bid from Illinois American Water Company for the purchase of property on Limit Street 
in the amount of $8,900.00 plus closing costs 

9. Reports 
City Treasurer Annual Report for F.Y.2018-2019 

10. New Business/Communications 
A. Approval of Liability Insurance agreement between Arthur J. Gallagher and the City of Lincoln 

effective December 15, 2019 in the amountof$494,304.00 
B. Approval of City of Lincoln Financial Audit prepared by Estes, Bridgewater & Ogden 
C. Approval of proposal from Petersburg Plumbing & Excavating for repair and replacement of sewer 

lines and roadway at the intersection of Fourth and Decatur Streets in an amount not to exceed 
$419,425.00 

11. Announcements 
12. Possible Executive Session 
13. Adjournment 

We welcome the participation of persons with disabilities at all City of Lincoln meetings. If auxiliary aid or service 
is required for most effective participation and communication, please notify the City Clerk's Office at 217-735-
2815 or cityclerk@lincolnil.gov no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting time. 



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 
Lincoln City Hall, Council Chambers 
700 Broadway Street I Lincoln, Illinois 

Tuesday,October15,2019 

The Committee of the Whole Meeting of the City Council of Lincoln was called to order by Mayor Seth 
Goodman at 7 p.m., with proper notice given. 

Present: 
Alderman Tracy Welch, Ward 1 
Alderman Steve Parrott, Ward 1 
Alderman Kathryn Schmidt, Ward 2 
Alderman Sam Downs, Ward 2 
Alderman Ron Keller, Ward 3 
Alderman Kathy Horn, Ward 4 
Alderman Jeff Hoinacki, Ward 4 

Present: 
Seth Goodman, Mayor 
Elizabeth Kavelman, City Administrator 
John Hoblit, City Attorney 
Julie Landers, Deputy .City Clerk 
Alex Williams, Recording Secretary 
Chuck Conzo, City Treasurer 
Matt Vhlahovich, Deputy Police Chief 
Bob Dunovsky, Fire Chief 
Wes Woodhall, Building and Safety Officer 
Walt Landers, Streets Superintendent 
Anthony Harper, Veolia Water, Project Manager 
Sean Wright, Veolia Water 

Absent: 
Alderman Kevin Bateman, Ward 3 

Public Comment: 
Mayor Goodman called upon citizens registered to speak. There being none, Mayor Goodman moved 
down to other agenda items. 

Proclamation for Down Syndrome Awareness Month in October, Submitted by Alexandrea 
Williams, Mandee Dexter and Rachel Marten: 

Mrs. Alexandrea Williams, Mrs. Mandee Dexter and Mrs. Rachel Marten came forward to share their 
request for a proclamation recognizing Down Syndrome Awareness Month in the City of Lincoln. 

Update Presentation by Com-Ed for the Upcoming Remediation Project on the former Street 
Department/Gas Plant and Railroad Bed Property: 

1 



A speaker from Com-Ed, Mark Castro, the Senior Remediation Project Manager, came forward to 
discuss coal tar and properties 

Up until a few years ago, they developed cleanup plans. There will be parcels cleaned up, starting next 
Monday a two-year cleanup project will begin. Some of the property is owned by the Union Pacific 
Railroad. Fencing and trailers will be on the property. A lot of soil will be excavated. 

If trucks are dirty, they will be cleaned before leaving the site. For the Union Pacific work - it will be 
slow and methodical. They will have to work with the Railroad. The work will be very deliberate. Then, 
they will move onto the city property, it will be topped with top soil and seeded for beneficial reuse by 
the city. 

Security will be maintained at the site, and there will be site trailers at the location as well. The city has 
given approval for the truck route. There will be an off-site staging facility for the trucks as well. They 
intend to be protective of the community. There will be odors as well, as there are coal tars deep in the 
soil. The last time the plant was operational was in 1935, it could smell like mothballs or a roofing tar 
odor. They will attempt to minimize odors, there will be a tent under negative pressures. 

Real-time data will be collected throughout the duration of the project. There will be a website with 
email contact information, senders will get an automated response. Notification letters were taken to 
about 50 residents today. 

Alderman Keller asked when is the most direct impact to residents, such as the odor and noise .. . he 
wanted to know how long this would happen. Noise would be occurring in the November - December 
timeframe. From then on there will be less vibratory noise. Then there will be an excavation. 

Alderman Downs asked - MHow loud are we talking, can you equate it to something?" He said it's a little 
louder than the train. He did not think it would be as loud as the demolition. The noise will be 
intermittent. He said it would not be constant. 

City Administrator Kavelman asked about the tent, it would be an enclosure, it will be on the majority of 
the city owned property. 

City Treasurer Conzo said this was done on first street, in Springfield just north of the capitol. 

Mr. Castro and his colleague Jeff Patrick sat down with the principal of Carroll Catholic School to talk 
about the potential for noise. Alderman Parrott and Alderman Horn both asked questions. 

Presentation by Members of the Newly-Created Private Lincoln Economic Advancement and 
Development, Inc. (LEAD): 

Mr. Chris Graue and Lincoln College President David Gerlach came forward. They were asked to come 
forward to talk about the Lincoln Economic Advancement and Development, Inc. (LEAD): 

Dolan Dalpoas, Eric Olson, Clyde Reynolds, Eric Burwell, Blinn Bates and more - they looked at the 
current conditions in the community concerning the loss of businesses in the community. He said they 
sought opinions and feedback. At this point they have raised over $215,000 in private funds and 
pledges. They have founded the LEAD, Inc. They will be filing for 501 (c)3 status. They have engaged a 
consultant to help advise the private group as to what Lincoln has determined as the definition of 
economic development. They will hire a CEO. Their intent is that this private organization will help 
transform the economy here in Lincoln. From President Gerlach's perspective, he said there was a 
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commentary in the newspaper about filling the void in the community. They would like to address the 
decline and loss in the community. He said they are here for a simple letter of support, from city 
leaders. 

Mr. Graue said they want to try to stop the community from losing businesses. He said there are really 
healthy commitments - there will be enough funds behind them to hire and articulate to talk about 
prospects. He said they need to have someone to answer those questions - to present the inventory 
here in Logan County. The group gathers about once a month. He said it is open door- if anyone 
wants to come attend a meeting. He said just let a member know, and people can come and listen in. 
Alderman Schmidt wanted to thank the group for coming forward . Alderman Keller said he wanted to 
thank them too - as the government can only do so much. He said he knew they were still in the very 
early stages of this - but he suspected that they already had in their own minds eye - some projects or 
initiatives. He wanted to know what their vision was specifically. If it would be a grant or an endowed 
fund. 

Mr. Gerlach said they as the steering group, now the board of directors - has their own ideas. He said it 
could be retained business, hotel stays, education of workforce - so the consultant that they have hired 
will help- have that further informed during the interviews conducted in the community. 

He said that they as a group may not have gone much further than a memo to the mayor - so far. At 
this point they have a commitment for the consultant, for $60,000 and $92,000 in pledges from 
business leaders - for three years with a goal of $150,000 a year. He said the memo talks about the 
purpose to strengthen Lincoln's economy and to promote opportunities for entrepreneurship. He listed a 
number of other goals and strategies. 

They will look for a leader, he said they have done this in a very organic way. He said they have 
already been reached out to by someone who wants to do business here. He also mentioned Christian 
Homes wanting to move out their leadership from the community. He talked about the need to drive a 
website. To urge people to look into what the community has to offer. He said we have a workforce in 
this community who is ready to work. 

He said we are all experts in running their own companies, and there are certain things have not 
thought of all the way through. He said they are building as they go. 

Alderman Parrot thanked them for doing this and for not coming to the city and asking for money. The 
letter is for their 501 (c)3 submission. The city would need to show support. Alderman Schmidt asked if 
it can be hard to get the status. He said it can be hard to get, but there is a three-year commitment from 
the members of the board. Mr. Graue said we have to have someone ready to take the phone call, 
answer the email or take people out to the sites -to help work this plan. 

They intend to hire an executive director. He said the consultant will advise them to the qualities 
beneficial for them to look into. He said he thought they would pay a decent salary. Alderman Welch 
thanked them for coming forward. He said that he's sure they've heard some of the skepticism 
surrounding their initiative. He said he was anxious to see what the successes would be of this group. 
Mr. Gerlach said this is his fifth year in the community and that he is so very impressed by the 
community and called it a great place. He said this is a great place of many opportunities and that the 
doubt of a sense of something hidden here - he said these are CEOs who want good employees and 
higher tax revenue to support this place. He said they as a group are passionate and that he thinks they 
are all also. He said they will fumble, but they will be successful. 

Mr. Graue said this will be very neat when this thing gets rolling. The consultants are working with the 
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students of Lincoln College. There is a community ask letter that will be going out-he said the ask 
letter will look for community members to support them in a three-year pledge commitment. He 
imagined there would be another meeting within the month. 

Illinois EPA's Water Pollution Control Loan Program (WPCLP) Loan Applicant's Certification of 
Plans/Specifications Compliance with WPCLP Rules, IEPA Loan Applicant Environmental 
Checklist, and IEPA Instructions for Application for Construction/ Operation Pennit Approval 
WPC-PS-1 Crawford, Murphy & Tilly Paperwork for Mayor Goodman to sign: 

Mrs. Christy Crites came forward to offer an update. 

·Request to Permit Golf Carts on Certain (Specific) City Streets within the City of Lincoln, IL, 
Submitted by Brad Matthews: 

Brad Matthews came forward to bring forth an idea to allow for the use of golf carts on certain roads in 
the City of Lincoln. Alderman Welch asked a question about his research and documentation that he 
may have provided. He shared information on low speed vehicles and the state requirements. There 
would be specific requirements and things needed to be put in place to regulate it. Deputy Police Chief 
Matt Vhlahocih said we live in a very restrictive world as it is, he said as long as they would do this 
comprehensively and they planned well enough, then this could be done. He said the law Brad is 
looking for is contained in the Illinois Vehicle Code. Mr. Vhlahovich said based on his experience of 
visiting other communities that do this -there should be a curfew. 

Alderman Schmidt asked if this was for older people, or if this was just a cheaper alternative to a car. 
She said she lives out by 5th Street and the golf course. She said Memorial Park Drive is very 
dangerous and she sees a lot of golf carks now and it is very dangerous. She said if it is not policed 
there would be kids in the carts all over the city. Brad proposed that they have to have a driver's 
license. 

Alderman Welch said since we're talking about other motorized vehicles - should we talked about the 
motorized bicycles that are on the street? The bikes are allowed, you do not have to have a license. 
They are not allowed to travel over 20 mph, they are not considered a motor vehicle and they are not 
titled. More discussion and questions ensued. 

City Attorney John Hoblit weighed in and then Alderman Keller said it would behoove the city to have 
John do more research. 

Trick or Treat Hours on Thursday, October 31, 2019, From 5-8 p.m. within the City of Lincoln: 

The item will be placed on the consent agenda. 

Request to Permit City of Lincoln Block Party at 145 Tenth Street, 4:30 to 8 p.m., Thursday, 
October 31, 2019, with the block of 200 Tenth and Chestnut Street to Union Street blocked for 
the Trick or Treat Party, submitted by Don and Jan Sielaff: 

The item will be placed on the consent agenda. 

Request to Permit Logan County Tourism's Annual Downtown Christmas Parade on Thursday, 
December 5, 2019, Submitted by Morgan Gleason, Executive Director: 
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The item will be placed on the consent agenda. 

Mayoral Appointment of City Treasurer Chuck Conzo, Fire Inspector Tim Aper and Billy Gandolfi 
of the Streets Department to the City's Employees-Management Insurance Advisory Committee 
and in order to Comply with Labor Union Contract Requirements: 

The item will be placed on the consent agenda. Alderman Welch asked if they do a mayoral 
appointment for an elected official. 
Final Pay Request with Change Orders for Completion of Jefferson Street Bridge Project: 

Mr. Landers said the construction is complete, they will still have to do a walk through. He said it's done 
and open, so people are using it. He said the grading has been done and it's a big improvement. He 
also mentioned a French drain that had to be put in which accounts for the additional $9,649. 70. 

That brings the total to $420, 113.88 for the project. He was asking for approval of the extra costs, there 
was also debris that needed to be removed. That was why they needed that additional funding. 

The item will be placed on the regular agenda. 

Calendar Year 2020 City of Lincoln, Ill. Regular City Council and Committees of the Whole 
Council Meetings Schedule: 

The item would be placed on the agenda. 

City of Lincoln, Ill. Holidays to be Observed in Calendar Year 2020: 

The item would be placed on the agenda. 

Bid Letting Process to Commence for the Sale of City's Property Located on Pekin Street, 
Lincoln: 

The item would be placed on the agenda. 

Discussion of Referendum Regarding the City of Lincoln's Civil Service Commission: 

City Attorney John Hoblit said he wanted to find the statutory citing authority, which allows the city to do 
this and it would be a referendum that would in essence abolish the Civil Service Commission in 
Lincoln and set up a form thereafter. He cited the EEOC would be analyzing the city based on hiring, 
and the Illinois Department of Human Rights would have some heightened interest in the city. 

He said it was imperative that the city move forward at a pace that is not exactly fast and that 
everything is set in place before diving in. He said this is the thing - where you want to have your "l's" 
dotted and "T's" crossed. Mr. Landers weighed in too. 

Discussion to make South Logan Street, between Clinton and Decatur Streets, into a one-way 
street going North: 

Alderman Welch opened discussion about an incident that shared with him via a constituent and it 
prompted him to send an email to Police Chief Paul Adams. He was referring to the curve around 5th 
Street and the intersection. 
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He wanted to know if now would be the time to bring this up for discussion. He said that particular 
incident warrants a discussion. 

Alderman Horn said that when she was in Ward 2, this was brought up then as well. She talked to 
Father L1able about this too as it is near the corner of Holy Family Church. Mr. Welch said it presents a 
safety issue for the students of Carroll Catholic as well. Mr. Landers said if you take any action at all 
then it would be to shut down the street completely. Alderman Keller asked about weddings and funeral 
processions. 

Alderman Downs wanted to know how much the street is used before shutting it down. Alderman Welch 
said there are safety issues. Mr. Downs asked if there were any other options. Alderman Welch said 
the way it happened, when he sent the email - he was trying to be a little conservative. 

He said after some discussion with Paul and Walt, there's still an issue when people are trying to get 
Northbound, and there's still a safety concern. He said per their discussion, if this could become a 
dead-end street, then signage could be put up to indicate left or right. He said it creates a safety 
component for the intersection. 

Fire Chief Bob Dunovsky said the church is utilizing the alley way and their driveway for funeral 
processions. More discussion was had. Deputy Chief Vhlahovich said Father Liable was in favor of this 
about four years ago. City Administrator Kavelaman asked if they would have to have a public hearing 
for this discussion. 

Mr. Landers weighed in about the state route, and potential hoops they may have to jump through. Mr. 
Vlahovich also proposed removing the parking spots near AAA Siding and Windows. Alderman Schmidt 
said it is super dangerous and you cannot see at all, she said she was really surprised there has not 
been an accident. Alderman Hoinacki said that their customers go in and out of that door. 

More discussion continued. Alderman Welch talked about takeaways and asked who would have the 
conversation with the church and who would have the conversation with AAA. Alderman Welch said he 
would be able to as he brought the issue up, Alderman Schmidt would help too. Alderman Hoinacki 
weighed in and then the mayor wanted to know if it would disrupt traffic around Carroll Catholic School. 
Mayor Goodman wanted to ensure everyone was aware of the topic. Alderman Hoinacki said he 
wanted Mr. Landers to talk with Illinois DOT. Mayor Goodman asked if the intent was to talk with Carroll 
Catholic School. He wanted everyone to be aware of the topic. The topic would be brought back to the 
council for a future COW. 

Solar Energy Panels RFP: 

Sean Wright with Veolia said they will update the dates and notify people to get proposals in. 
Administrator Kavelman asked if they were sending them out tomorrow. It would need to be on the 
agenda, to go out for bids. The item would be on the regular agenda for next week. 

Area Disposal Non-Paying Customers' Collections and Subsequent Ordinance Violations, Fines, 
and Penalties to be Imposed: 

Mr. Wes Wood hall said they are at somewhere over 300 letters that will need to be sent out for 
ordinance violations, fines and penalties etc. Alderman Parrott said we have to have so many paying 
customers - he asked if they were below the threshold. Alderman Welch said not yet, but that they are 
dangerously close. He then went into conversations recently had with Area Disposal. He mentioned 
that the city is trying to avoid flooding the court system with these violations. 
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The delinquent customers need to provide proof that they are current with their bills and then take those 
to Mr. Wes Woodhall's office. Alderman Parrott said - so you fine them for being delinquent. He said 
Area Disposal is fining them. This effort is to encourage customers to bring their accounts current. 
Alderman Parrott said if we get below the threshold then the city has to pick up the cost and then Area 
could come back to the city and renegotiate the rates. They city has to enforce the ordinance and if not 
doing so, they could be violating their own agreement. 

Alderman Schmidt weighed in. Then Alderman Welch said there were some misunderstandings about 
how to pursue these violations. He said the plan Wes is implementing is a compromised solution. 
Alderman Welch said the way he and Alderman Bateman looked at it is that these are ordinance 
violations. And they were looking for a solution to get the ordinances addressed. 

Overall Update of the Progress on the City's Portion of the Fifth Street Road Project and 
Eminent Domain Letters from the City Sent to Non-Responsive Fifth Street Road Property 
Owners: 
City Administrator Kavelman said they are moving quite a long, there are maybe two parcels they do 
not need, and others that the bike path removal might eliminate. 

Announcements: 
Mayor Goodman asked if anyone had any announcements. 

• Comcast - various channel changes 
• Firefighter Ben Roland is now the president of the fire pension board, the council would have to 

sign off on this, the item would be placed on the next regular agenda 
• Ribbon cutting at an area hotel 
• Alderman Schmidt wanted to know what was going on with the Comcast agreement, no 

response as of yet 
• There is a 10 a.m. insurance advisory meeting tomorrow in the Mayor's office 
• Trick-or-treat with the Mayor is on Saturday 

Adjournment: 
There being no further discussion to come before the City Council of Lincoln, Alderman Keller motioned 
to adjourn, seconded by Alderman Welch. Roll call was taken. Mayor Goodman adjourned the meeting 
at8:48 p.m. 

Present: 
Alderman Tracy Welch 
Alderman Steve Parrott 
Alderman Kathryn Schmidt 
Alderman Sam Downs 
Alderman Ron Keller 
Alderman Kathy Hom 
Alderman Jeff Hoinacki 

Absent: 
Alderman Kevin Bateman 

Respectfully Submitted By: 
Alex Williams, Recording Secretary 
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REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Lincoln City Hall, Council Chambers 
700 Broadway Street I Lincoln, Illinois 

Monday, November 181 2019 

Presiding: 
Mayor Seth Goodman 

The Regular Meeting of the City Council of Lincoln was called to order by Mayor Seth Goodman at 7 
p.m., with proper notice given. City Clerk Peggy Bateman called roll. 

Present: 
Alderman Tracy Welch, Ward 1 
Alderman Steve Parrott, Ward 1 
Alderman Kathryn Schmidt, Ward 2 
Alderman Sam Downs, Ward 2 
Alderman Kevin Bateman, Ward 3 
Alderman Ron Keller, Ward 3 
Alderman Kathy Hom, Ward 4 
Alderman Jeff Hoinacki, Ward 4 

Staff Present: 
City Administrator Elizabeth Kavelman 
City Attorney John Hoblit 
City Clerk Peggy Bateman 
Treasurer Chuck Conzo 
Fire Chief Bob Dunovsky 
Police Chief Paul Adams 
Building and Safety Officer Wes Woodhall 
Streets Superintendent Walt Landers 
Veolia Water, Anthony Harper 

Absent: 
None 

Public Comment: 
Mayor Goodman called upon citizens registered to speak. 

Mrs. Wanda Lee Rohlfs came forward to talk about the general obligation (go) bond and the TIF district. 
She wanted to address item C on the agenda for the night - the TIF district - she said it talked about 
the tax levy. She said as you area aware -there are a lot of questions for citizens about the theater and 
what is going on with the TIF taxes. 

She said this goes back to 2014 - when it was adopted, there was a TIF schedule that went out that 
was in the packet. She said the amount in there talks about - for this year, in June 1, 2019 the interest 
was due on that. She continued on referencing the schedule. Treasurer Conzo said they do not levy for 
that amount, the principal and the interest - but not the bond service fee. He said they have abated the 
levy. 
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She asked about the $400,000 bond fee. He said it's actually a $500,000 bond fee. He mentioned the 
sewer repayment too. Saying it was a $1,000 fee. 

More conversation ensued about the Tl F amount. He said the city just received the final amount of 
property tax in the last week. She wanted to know how much had been collected from the TIF district. 
He listed off an amount that also included the bond service fee - he said about $133,000 
(approximately). He said so - how much did we have to pay out of the general fund - he said just about 
$40,500 - somewhere in there. 

She wanted to know if Mr. Conzo foresaw this changing in the future. She asked if the $132,000 
collected from property tax was about the same as it was last year. He said it was very close. She 
asked if that meant the values of the property were not increasing - he filled in the rest for her .. . 
saying as fast as we'd like. He said yes. 

She also brought up people exempting out. She said when a building sells the owner has the 
opportunity to opt out .. . and she said she thinks there's a lot of uncertainty with the theater just sitting 
there. 

There being no further public participation, Mayor Goodman moved down to other agenda items. 

Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote: 
A Payment of Bills. 
B. Approval of minutes November 4, 2019 Regular City Council Meeting, November 12, 2019 
Committee Of the Whole Meeting. 
C. Mayoral Proclamation in honor of Zonta International Day on November 18, 2019, its 100th 
Anniversary (2019-397) 
D. Request from Andrea Dykman of AM. Eats Cart and Catering to operate on two (2) parking 
spaces on Kickapoo Street adjoining Scully Parle on Thursday, December 5, 2019 from 4 p.m. 
until 8 p.m. 
E. Approval of letter to U.S. Census Bureau establishing a U.S. Census 2020 Complete Count 
Committee with Alderman Ron Keller as Liaison and Co-Chairman. 

Alderman Welch made a motion to approve, seconded by Alderman Schmidt. Alderman Keller said he 
would be recusing himself due to item E. Mayor Goodman called for further discussion, there being 
none, City Clerk Bateman called roll. 

Yeas: (7) Alderman Steve Parrott, Alderman Tracy Welch, Alderman Kathryn Schmidt, Alderman Sam 
Downs, Alderman Kevin Bateman, Alderman Jeff Hoinacki, Alderman Kathy Horn 
Nays: (0) 
Abstain: (1) Alderman Ron Keller 
Absent: (0) 

Mayor Goodman moved to other items on the agenda. 

Ordinance and Resolution: 
A. Ordinance extending Ameren Illinois Company Franchise Agreement for Twenty (20) years to 
Construct, Operate, and Maintain an Electric Utility System in the City of Lincoln (2019-906) 

Alderman Bateman made a motion to approve, seconded by Alderman Keller. Mayor Goodman called 
for further discussion, there being none, City Clerk Bateman called roll. 
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Yeas: (8) Alderman Steve Parrott, Alderman Tracy Welch, Alderman Kathryn Schmidt, Alderman Sam 
Downs, Alderman Ron Keller, Alderman Kevin Bateman, Alderman Jeff Hoinacki, Alderman Kathy Horn 
Nays: (0) 
Abstain: (0) 
Absent: (0) 

Mayor Goodman moved to other items on the agenda. 

B. Ordinance extending Ameren Illinois Company Franchise Agreement for Twenty (20) years to 
Construct, Operate, and Maintain a Gas Utility System in the City of Lincoln (2019-907) 

Alderman Welch made a motion to approve, seconded by Alderman Schmidt. Mayor Goodman called 
for further discussion, there being none, City Clerk Bateman called roll. 

Yeas: (8) Alderman Steve Parrott, Alderman Tracy Welch, Alderman Kathryn Schmidt, Alderman Sam 
Downs, Alderman Ron Keller, Alderman Kevin Bateman, Alderman Jeff Hoinacki, Alderman Kathy Horn 
Nays: (0) 
Abstain: (0) 
Absent: (0) 

Mayor Goodman moved to other items on the agenda. 

C. Resolution Abating Property Tax for $2,285,000.00 G.O. Bonds (Alt. Revenue Source), Series 
2014 for year 2019 (2019-398) 

Alderman Welch made a motion to approve, seconded by Alderman Schmidt. Mayor Goodman called 
for further discussion, there being none, City Clerk Bateman called roll. 

Yeas: (8) Alderman Steve Parrott, Alderman Tracy Welch, Alderman Kathryn Schmidt, Alderman Sam 
Downs, Alderman Ron Keller, Alderman Kevin Bateman, Alderman Jeff Hoinacki, Alderman Kathy Horn 
Nays: (0) 
Abstain: (0) 
Absent: (0) 

Mayor Goodman moved to other items on the agenda. 

D. Resolution Abating Property Tax for $5,285,000.00 G.O. Bonds {Alt. Revenue Source), Series 
2014 for year 2019 (2019-399) 

Alderman Welch made a motion to approve, seconded by Alderman Schmidt. Mayor Goodman called 
for further discussion, there being none, City Clerk Bateman called roll. 

Yeas: (8) Alderman Steve Parrott, Alderman Tracy Welch, Alderman Kathryn Schmidt, Alderman Sam 
Downs, Alderman Ron Keller, Alderman Kevin Bateman, Alderman Jeff Hoinacki, Alderman Kathy Horn 
Nays: (0) 
Abstain: (0) 
Absent: (0) 

Mayor Goodman moved to other items on the agenda. 

3 



E. Resolution Abating Property Tax for $3,270,000.00 G.O. Bonds (Alt. Revenue Source), Series 
2018 for year 2019 (2019-400) 

Alderman Welch made a motion to approve, seconded by Alderman Horn. Mayor Goodman called for 
further discussion, there being none, City Clerk Bateman called roll. 

Yeas: (8) Alderman Steve Parrott, Alderman Tracy Welch, Alderman Kathryn Schmidt, Alderman Sam 
Downs, Alderman Ron Keller, Alderman Kevin Bateman, Alderman Jeff Hoinacki, Alderman Kathy Horn 
Nays: (0) 
Abstain: (0) 
Absent: (0) 

Mayor Goodman moved to other items on the agenda. 

F. Ordinance establishing hours of operation for cannabis dispensaries from 10 a.m. until 10 
p.m. Monday through Saturday and 12 p.m. until 6 p.m. on Sunday (2019-908) 

Alderman Bateman made a motion to approve, seconded by Alderman Parrott. 

Alderman Parrott thanked the council for showing some concern for the hours - he said he was still not 
in favor of the hours thinking they should be more restrictive, however, he said he thought it was 
interesting that the council in times past questioned why they should treat any other business any 
differently - he thought it was ironic that they would not keep the hours the same as they do in the city 
with alcohol. He said he would be voting no. 

Alderman Welch told Alderman Parrott that he could make an amendment to revise the hours. 
Alderman Bateman said they are more retail oriented hours. Alderman Welch wanted to know what his 
suggestions were for restricted hours. 

Alderman Keller said give it a whirl. Alderman Parrott said to proceed with the vote. 

Mayor Goodman called for further discussion, there being none, City Clerk Bateman called roll. 

Yeas: (4) Alderman Tracy Welch, Alderman Sam Downs, Alderman Ron Keller, Alderman Kevin 
Bateman 
Nays: (4) Alderman Steve Parrott, Alderman Kathryn Schmidt, Alderman Jeff Hoinacki, Alderman 
Kathy Horn 
Abstain: (0) 
Absent: (0) 

Mayor Goodman said since there was no other offer on the table, he voted in favor of the moved to 
other items on the agenda. 

G. Ordinance limiting the number of such dispensaries at one (1) (2019-909) 

Alderman Downs made a motion to change it from one establishment to two, seconded by Alderman 
Keller. 

Alderman Schmidt said they the council voted last week in favor of one. 



City Attorney Hoblit said there are three in this area - a large geographical area in the state. He said 
theoretically we could have all three of them - but the chance that all three would be in Lincoln would 
be highly unrealistic. He said the impression from the council was that we would only get one and that 
we were only desiring to get one. He said it could still be amended at the time of voting - but there was 
no vote on the COW to approve. Alderman Downs weighed in. She said if there's going to be any - it 
should be one. 

City Attorney Hoblit said the council would be voting on two at this juncture. Alderman Parrott weighed 
in about just limiting it to just one - saying they were showing favoritism to one business over the other. 
He said it seemed a little, "Not right." Alderman Schmidt asked why they needed two. Alderman Downs 
said they would have the option to expand to two - in the future. She asked why would you want more 
than one in Lincoln, Illinois. She asked if it was for money. He said money is a part of it, for the purpose 
of choice, so one store is not overwhelmed .. . 

Alderman Bateman said he has been contacted by four interested parties - who are interested in the 
voting. Alderman Keller said - yeah, competition. Since one party did approach us, it gives us the 
opportunity to create some opportunity. Alderman Parrott asked if his preference was just two or if he 
wanted unlimited. 

Alderman Keller said he understands there are people in the community who want it and who do not 
want it. He said two is a good number to allow competition. 

Mayor Goodman asked a question about the potential to amend the number in future. Alderman Welch 
said we could set a number higher than one for now, so that a future council would have to have a 
discussion about it. 

Alderman Bateman said his agreement with two is that - they started out with x amount of liquor 
licenses and x amount of gaming licenses - he was open to two so at least the city would be open to 
two to remove restrictions. He said it just gives a business opportunity. He said you're not forced to go 
in there. 

They would vote on the amendment for the two - but if the amendment fails, it goes back to what was 
listed on the agenda - which was one. 
Mayor Goodman called for further discussion, there being none, City Clerk Bateman called roll. 

Yeas: (8) Alderman Tracy Welch, Alderman Sam Downs, Alderman Ron Keller, Alderman Kevin 
Bateman, 
Nays: (0) Alderman Jeff Hoinacki, Alderman Kathy Horn, Alderman Kathryn Schmidt, Alderman Steve 
Parrott, 
Abstain: (0) 
Absent: (0) 

Mayor Goodman broke the tie with a, "No" vote. Alderman Bateman then made a motion to approve 
"one," and it was seconded by Alderman Parrott. 

Yeas: (4) Alderman Tracy Welch, Alderman Sam Downs, Alderman Ron Keller, Alderman Kevin 
Bateman 
Nays: (4) Alderman Jeff Hoinacki, Alderman Kathy Horn, Alderman Kathryn Schmidt, Alderman Steve 
Parrott 
Abstain: (0) 
Absent: (0) 
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Reports: 
A. City Treasurer's Report for October, 2019 

Mr. Conzo started in with fund balances, the municipal sales tax and state use tax, saying they are all 
higher than where they were a year ago. He said with the motor fuel tax-the base amount is down, but 
the overall amount is an increase. He then talked about the Police and Fire Pension Funds. He said the 
stock market did well - he said previously struggled to get above $10 million, but now they are at 
$10,250. 

Then he said the Illinois State Legislature has voted to consolidate all downstate police and fire pension 
funds. He said the Illinois Municipal League voted in favor of it. He said a lot of the funds across the 
state are underfunded. He said it would be similar to what the city gets with the IMRF. He said this will 
be phased in over a couple of years. He said there will be a lot of benchmarks. 

He then went into the General Revenue Fund - and said the state has raided a general portion of it. He 
then cited economic activity for the purposes of state use tax and sales tax - at 56 percent. He called 
this the largest revenue stream in the telecommunications fund. 

He continued on. He said the city has seen a telecommunications tax down to around $18,000 he said 
there continues to be a decline in this tax. He said it is one of the pledged revenue streams for the 
general obligation bond, the alternate revenue bond for the TIF district. He said so far the city is not 
anywhere close to the 125% needed. He did not know if it was going to bottom out. 

He then went into the utility tax - and the state income tax - saying they are well over where they 
anticipated being. He then touched on the video gaming tax - saying the city is well above what they 
had projected. He said he did include the utility tax table for the month of October. He continued on. 

He then covered the motor fuel tax-and the non-home rule sales tax- saying the city was at 50.23% 
of what was budgeted. That was all he had. 

B. City Clerks Report for October 2019 

City Sewer receipts for the month of October were $234,981 .81 - and there were not any payments 
received from either prison last month. 

C. Department Head Reports for October, 2019 

These items are either on file or will be shortly. 

New Business/Communications: 
A. Approval of proposal for Health Insurance plans from Health Alliance for calendar year 2020 

Alderman Hom made a motion to approve, seconded by Alderman Hoinacki. 

Mayor Goodman called for further discussion, City Clerk Bateman shared information the various plans 
that were under discussion. She said if everyone stayed on their current plan, it would be only a 2.4% 
increase rather than a 19% increase. City Clerk Bateman called roll. 

Yeas: (7) Alderman Steve Parrott, Alderman Tracy Welch, Alderman Kathryn Schmidt, Alderman Sam 
Downs, Alderman Ron Keller, Alderman Jeff Hoinacki, Alderman Kathy Hom 



Nays: (0) 
Abstain: (1) Alderman Kevin Bateman 
Absent: (0) 

Mayor Goodman moved to other items on the agenda. 

B. Approval of annual payment plan for Municipal Lease between Motorola Solutions and the 
City of Lincoln for the Starcom System 

Alderman Keller made a motion to approve, seconded by Alderman Welch. Mayor Goodman called for 
further discussion, there being none, City Clerk Bateman called roll. 

Yeas: (8) Alderman Steve Parrott, Alderman Tracy Welch, Alderman Kathryn Schmidt, Alderman Sam 
Downs, Alderman Ron Keller, Alderman Kevin Bateman, Alderman Jeff Hoinacki, Alderman Kathy Horn 
Nays: (0) 
Abstain: (0) 
Absent: (0) 

Mayor Goodman moved to other items on the agenda. 

C. Approval of contract for printer maintenance /laser cartridges with Konica Minolta for the 
period beginning October 25, 2019 and continuing through April 30, 2023. (Tabled November 4, 
2019) 

Alderman Welch made a motion to remove it from the table, seconded by Alderman Bateman, there 
being no discussion, City Clerk Bateman called roll. 

Yeas: (8) Alderman Steve Parrott, Alderman Tracy Welch, Alderman Kathryn Schmidt, Alderman Sam 
Downs, Alderman Ron Keller, Alderman Kevin Bateman, Alderman Jeff Hoinacki, Alderman Kathy Horn 
Nays: (0) 
Abstain: (0) 
Absent: (0) 

Mayor Goodman moved to other items on the agenda. 

Alderman Bateman wanted to make a motion to remove this - because with the contract, it is nearly 
impossible to track the usage, he thought the city would greatly exceed the contract and be subject to 
overage bills. Alderman Keller seconded it. 

Alderman Schmidt asked what this meant. City Attorney Hoblit explained. 

Alderman Welch and Alderman Bateman withdrew their motions. 

Alderman Welch made a motion to withdraw the motion - seconded by Alderman Downs. Then 
Alderman Keller asked ... if this fails, what are the options? 

City Administrator Kavelman gave background on the costs for printer cartridges. Alderman Schmidt 
asked- so you said the same company has the same contract for other printers in the city. She said if 
they have been good with the other contracts - why would they not be good with this one. 

City Attorney Hoblit talked about said it could be tabled again - in order to find out how much she does 
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use the printer. 

She said the city is getting closer to the end of the 5th Street Road Project so usage could go down. 
Alderman Downs asked if they could table it - to get a better baseline. Alderman Welch asked when 
she needed the next cartridges. She said she could check on this. 

She also brought up the idea of moving funds from one of her sub line items to 

Alderman Keller said the council is sometimes moving into the category of micromanaging the city 
administrator and prohibiting her from doing her job. 

Alderman Hoinacki and Alderman Welch weighed in. He said if they table it - they could have another 
discussion - he said we're crippling the administrator in trying to do her job in scrutinizing this printer. 

Mr. Hoblit said they were still at the stage of approving. There was a second. 

Yeas: (7) Alderman Steve Parrott, Alderman Tracy Welch, Alderman Kathryn Schmidt, Alderman Sam 
Downs, Alderman Ron Keller,, Alderman Jeff Hoinacki, Alderman Kathy Horn 
Nays: (1) Alderman Kevin Bateman 
Abstain: (0) 
Absent: (0) 

Mayor Goodman moved to other items on the agenda. 

Announcements: 
Mayor Goodman asked if anyone had any announcements. 

• Alderman Parrott weighed in on the minutes on November 4 - he said didn't flow and it was not 
accurate as it read to him. Mr. Hoblit said if there was due diligence to be done, it would have 
already been done. Alderman Welch talked about the paver system vote - when it was brought 
back for a vote. 

Executive Session I 2(C)1 Personnel: 
There being no further announcements to come before the city council, Alderman Welch made a 
motion to move into Executive Session under 2(C)1, Personnel; seconded by Alderman Hoinacki. City 
Clerk Peggy Bateman called roll. 

Yeas: (8) Alderman Steve Parrott, Alderman Tracy Welch, Alderman Kathryn Schmidt, Alderman Sam 
Downs, Alderman Ron Keller, Alderman Kevin Bateman, Alderman Jeff Hoinacki, Alderman Kathy Hom 
Nays: (0) 
Abstain: (0) 
Absent: (0) 

Mayor Goodman said there would be no further business to come before the council upon reconvening 
the Regular City Council Meeting. Therefore, the council recessed from the Committee of the Whole 
meeting at 8:06 p.m. in order to enter Executive Session. 

Return from Executive Session: 
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The council reconvened from Executive Session 10:02 p.m. in order to reconvene the Committee of the 
Whole Meeting. Roll call was taken. 

Present: 
Alderman Tracy Welch 
Alderman Steve Parrott 
Alderman Kathryn Schmidt 
Alderman Sam Downs 
Alderman Kevin Bateman 
Alderman Ron Keller 
Alderman Kathy Horn 
Alderman Jeff Hoinacki 

Mayor Goodman, Treasurer Conzo and City Clerk Bateman were also present. 

Adjournment: 
There being no further discussion to come before the City Council of Lincoln, Alderman Keller motioned 
to adjourn, seconded by Alderman Parrott. Roll. Mayor Goodman adjourned the meeting at 10:02 p.m. 

Respectfully Submitted By: 
Alex Williams, Recording Secretary 
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November 26, 2019 

Mayor Goodman, City of Lincoln 
City Hall 
700 Broadway Street 
Lincoln, IL 62656 

Up in Smoke on the Square 
C/O K of C #1250 

270 Limit Street Lincoln, IL 62656 
www.lincolnbbq.com 

Dear Mayor Goodman & City Council Representatives: 

The Lincoln BBQ Committee respectfully requests your permission to use the following city property 

and streets during the Lincoln's Pigs and Swigs Festival: 

Closure of the following streets starting Thursday, June 4 after 4pm and stay closed until Sunday, 

June at 6pm: 

• Kickapoo Street from Clinton Street to Broadway (with a possibility of this corner being 
closed until 8:00 am Monday morning) 

• Mclean Street from Clinton Street to Broadway Street 

• Broadway Street from the alley at State Bank to Mclean Street 

• Pulaski Street from the alley at the Alley-Bi to Hamilton Street 

• The west end of Clinton Street from Kickapoo to Mclean Street. Only a portion of Clinton 
Street would be closed to allow a w_ay to Scully park and traffic to enter the city parking lot 
north of Scully Park. 

The last several years we have worked hard to have downtown cleared of all festival related items 
before noon on Sunday. We will plan to do that again this year. 

Thank you for your kind consideration. 

Sincerely, 

The Lincoln BBQ Committee 
Chris Graue 
Event Organizer 



REQUEST TO PERMIT 

DATE: H /-z.z./i~ 

CITYCLl'..RJ<i 
UNCOl .N. IJ J !NOT'-

NOV 2 2 2019 

RECEIVED 

We, the undersfgned of the Oty of Lincoln, do hereby respectfully request the 
Mayor and City Councn to permit 

If the above raquest Is fur use of CltV property, lndudlns streets and/ or alleys, please check 
one of the two boices below: 

{ ] A Certlflcate of Insurance Llabll(ty for the event Is attached. 

t>4 ! CeR)ftcate of Insurance Uablllt¥ for the event wlll be provided to the City no tater than 
llj.1-11>/l'i • 

If City propertv is used, a Certificate of Insurance Uablllty I& requfred listing tha City as an 
addltlonel Insured. The City reserves the right to postpone review and ~nslderatlon of thts 
Request k> Permit until a Certificate of Insurance Uahlllty Is provided. 

N \ . I 1(, \,/ .• - • ama: ..JN!.o..... ~ 



--- -, ERICK-J OPIO· CB 

.A~<:;,RC:J"' 
CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DATI: {MM/DDIYYYY) 

\... -- 11/26/2019 
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BElWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on 
this certHlcate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in Heu of such endorsementfs). 

PRODUCER 217-728-2323 &~I~ C F & H Insurance Agency, Inc. 
C F & H lnsuranee Agency, Inc. mg_".fo. Ellll: 217-728-2323 Ir~ ,1,211-12s-2326 138.Maln ,No. 
Sullivan, IL 81951 
C F & H Insurance Agency, Inc. 

~k ..... llndagcrmns.com 

INSU~RISI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAJC# 

INSURER A, West Bend Mutual Ins. Co. 15350 
INSURED Jason & Kari Erickson INSURER& : 

1335 2000th St 
INSURERC· Lincoln, IL 62656 
INSURERD: 

INSURERE: -
INSURERF: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOVVN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

l~t: 1YPE OF INSURANCE ~~.PJ-~ POLICY NUMBER 
POLICYEFF POLICY EXP 

LIMITS 

A x COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000 
- =1 ClAIMS-MADE [!] OCCUR ~~~U9i:~~~.2.nce1 100,000 ~339165 08/17/2019 08117/2020 s 
>-

,_ MED EXP """' one DlnOlll s 
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY s 1,000,000 

>-
2,000,000 

HL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPD PER: r~""LAGG"""'"TE s 
POLICY o ~~a LOC PRODUCTS-COMP/OPAGG s 2,000,000 

OTHER: . s 
AUTOMOBILE UA81UTY ~~'2?.~INGLE LIMIT s 

>-
ANY AUTO - OODILY INJURY IPer """""'' s 

>-
OWNED SCHEDULED 

>-
AUTOS ONLY - AUTOS BODIL y INJURY IPaf aocidentl s 

- ~~ONLY - ~~~~ !1!:5'~ci:,~fAMAGE $ 

$ 

UMBREUAUAB HOCCUR EACH OCCURRE~E $ -
EXCESSUAB CLAIMS-MADE Al'.GREGATE s 
OED I I RETENTION$ l 

WORKERS COMPENSATION I PER I I ~H· 
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY STA nm:: 

Y/N 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE D 

N/A I E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 
8,1'.Fl~ERIMiMWj:R EXCWDED? 

1n atory n HJ E.L. DISEASE - EA l=MPLOYl=F s 

>----
~es, describe under 
- · SCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS be1o.v E.L DISEASE : POLICY LIMIT $ 

3-Ql'JWP~ff~TIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 1D1,Addlllo11111 Remarb ScMdllle, nmy be -chacl if mono space I• raqulnd) 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER C.4.NCELI ATION 

SHOULD ANY OF lltE ABOVE DESCRIBEp POLICIES IJE CANCELLED BEFORE 

City of Lincoln 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOncE WILL IJE DELIVERED IN 

509 Broadway St 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

Lincoln, IL 62656 
AUTltORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

I 
~Yd~ 

- ·~ 19-lWe-~A~t: n 
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



ORDINANCE NO. 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF REAL ESTATE 

THIS ORDINANCE is made and adopted by the CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LINCOLN, LOGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS, at a regular meeting held in the 

City Council Chambers in said City on the __ day of ________ , 2019, 

WTINESSEID: 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF LINCOLN is a municipal corporation located in Logan 

County, Illinois; and 

to-wit: 

and; 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF LINCOLN owns the following-described real estate 

Part of the Northeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of 
Section 31, Township 2 0 North, Range 2 West of the Third, 
Principal Meridian, Logan County, Illinois, being more 
particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at the Southeast corner of the parcel described in 
Document number 2012-75415 in the Logan County Recorder of 
Deeds Office, being a point on the West right-of-way line of 
State Route 121; thence South 02°05 1 06" West 8.14 feet along 
said right-of-way to a found re-bar on the North line of a 
parcel shown in Document number 279839 and 274317 in the Logan 
County Recorder of Deeds Office; thence North 89°46'20" West 
21 7. 81 feet along said North line to a found re-bar; thence 
North 89°52'44" West 139.24 feet continuing along said North 
line to a found iron rod; thence South 40°54'02" West 2.49 
feet to a found pipe on the North right- of-way line of Pekin 
Street; thence North 49°13'20" West 64.00 feet along said 
North right-of-way line; thence North 40°46'40" East 58.71 
feet; thence North 02 ° 35' 04" East 123. 34 feet; thence North 
89°51'28" East 125.95 feet to a point on the West line of the 
parcel described in Document number 2012-75415; 
thence South 00°20 1 19" East 187.41 feet along said West line 
to a found rebar at the Southwest corner of said parcel; 
thence South 86°43'41" East 236.86 feet along the South line 
of said parcel to the Point of Beginning, containing 0. 734 
acre, more or less 

Part of Tax I.D. No. 54-08-031-041-51; 

WHEREAS, the City Council CITY OF LINCOLN has determined that the real 

estate described above is no longer needed for the public interest, that it is the best 



interest of the City to sell said real estate subject to an permanent easement for 

entrance/exit to the City Street and Alley building; and 

WHEREAS, the property is not currently being used for any real purpose; and 

WHEREAS, previously this council passed Ordinance 2019-903 authorizing this 

property to go out to bid and be published in the Lincoln Courier for three successive 

weeks beginning on October 24, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, that one bid was submitted, by Illinois America Water, for $8,900.00 

and was read at the COW on November 26, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Lincoln believes it is in the best interest of the 

constituents of Lincoln that this bid be accepted, and furthennore desires that the Mayor 

to sign on its behalf in order to effectuate this transaction; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF LINCOLN, as follows: 

1. That it is in the best interests of the City of Lincoln that the above 

described real estate be sold to Illinois American Water for $8,900.00 reserving a 

pennanent access easement for the City of Lincoln. 

2. The Mayor is authorized to sign any documents necessary on behalf of the 

City of Lincoln in order to effectuate this transaction. 

3. Effective Date. That this Ordinance is effective immediately upon its 

passage. 



The vote on the adoption of his Ordinance was as follows: 

Alderman Parrott 

Alderwoman Hom 

Alderman Hoinacki 

Alderman Downs 

Alderman Keller 

Alderman Welch 

Alderwoman Schmidt 

Alderman Bateman 

---· 

Nays=---------------------------~ 
Abstain: __________________________ ~ 

Absent: ---------------------------

Passed and approved this_ day of ____ ~ 2019. 

CITY OF LINCOLN, 

BY: _ _ ___ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ~ 

Seth Goodman, Mayor 
City of Lincoln, Logan County, Illinois 

ATTEST: ___________ (SEAL) 
City Clerk, City of Lincoln, 
Logan County, Illinois 



ORDINANCE NO. 
AN ORDINANCE BANNING ON-SITE USE OF CANNABIS AT 

RECREATIONAL ADULT USE CANNABIS DISPENSARIES 
WITHIN THE CITY OF LINCOLN 

TIIlS ORDINANCE is made and adopted by the CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LINCOLN, LOGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS, at a regular meeting held in the 

City Council Chambers in said City on the __ day of 2019, 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF LINCOLN is a municipal corporation located in Logan 

County, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF LINCOLN acknowledges that is previously passed on 

September 16, 2019 resolution 2019-392 indicating that it would be agreeable for adult 

use recreational cannabis dispensaries to be opened in the City of Lincoln; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF LINCOLN acknowledges that implementing rules and 

regulations for recreational adult use cannabis dispensaries to be a complicated affair, 

:furthermore acknowledging that the City desires to deal with these issues one by one with 

an ordinance at later date implementing the City's decision into the code; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF LINCOLN feels that it is in the best interests of local 

health, safety, and morality that the city ban on-site consumption of cannabis at 

recreational adult use cannabis dispensaries within the City of Lincoln; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF LINCOLN, as follows: 

1. That on-site use of cannabis is banned at recreational adult use cannabis 

dispensaries within the City of Lincoln. 

2. Effective Date. That this Ordinance is effective immediately, however the 

ordinance incorporating this into the City Code will come at a later date when the 

remainder the rules and regulations for the operation of adult use recreational cannabis 

dispensary are discussed by the City of Lincoln. 



The vote on the adoption of his Ordinance was as follows: 

Alderman Parrott 

Alderwoman Hom 

Alderman Hoinacki 

Alderman Downs 

Alderman Keller 

Alderman Welch 

Alderwoman Schmidt 

Alderman Bateman 
---

Nays:~--------~-----------~------
Abstain: 

~---~------------~--------~ 

Absent: 
~--------------------------

Passed and approved this _ day of ____ _, 2019. 

CITY OF LINCOLN, 

Seth Goodman, Mayor 
City of Lincoln, Logan County, Illinois 

ATTEST: _ __________ (SEAL) 
City Clerk, City of Lincoln, 
Logan County, Illinois 



ORDINANCE NO. 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO HA VE 

AUTHORITY TO SUBMIT A LOAN APPLICATION REGARDING 
AN ILLINOIS WATER POLLUTION CONTROL LOAN 

THIS ORDINANCE is made and adopted by the CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LINCOLN, LOGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS, at a regular meeting held in the 

City Council Chambers in said City on the __ day of 2019, 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF LINCOLN is a municipal corporation located in Logan 

County, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF LINCOLN operates a sewer department which 

provides, by ordinance, rules and regulations for operation and billing; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/11/-1-1 et seq. of the Illinois Municipal Code, 

and the ordinances of the City, the City believes it has the authority to enter into a loan 

agreement with the Illinois Environmental Agency Water Pollution Control Loan 

Program; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF LINCOLN is desiring to undergo some wastewater 

treatment projects, and is under the impression that entering into an Illinois Water 

Pollution Control Loan Program will lock the City into beneficial interest rates; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF LINCOLN believes that it is in the best interests of the 

citizens of Lincoln that these projects be undergone, moreover it is the best interests of 

the citizenry to save money by being locked into a lower interest rate; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF LINCOLN acknowledges that in order to enter into 

any agreement, a loan application must be submitted and an agent of the City will need to 

be appointed for the purposes of filling out said loan application; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF LINCOLN desires the Mayor, Seth Goodman, to act as 

its agent for the purposes of filling and submitting the loan application; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF LINCOLN also desires that if, after the loan 

application is submitted and the quotes are in amicable to the city council, then the Mayor 

again acts as its agent by executing the documents thereby creating a valid and 

enforceable contract; 



NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF LINCOLN, as follows: 

1. The terms and conditions of said outlined above are approved and adopted 

and incorporated herein. 

2. That the Mayor of the City of Lincoln, Seth Goodman, shall act as the 

City's agent in order to fill out and submit a Illinois Water Pollution Control Loan 

(WPCLP) Loan Application. 

3. If after a quote is received and is approved by the City Council, then the 

Mayor shall again act as the City's agent by executing any documents to accept said 

quote, thereby making an enforceable contract. 

4. Effective Date. That this Ordinance 1s effective immediately upon 

passage of the same. 

The vote on the adoption of his Ordinance was as follows: 

Alderman Parrott 

Alderwoman Schmidt __ 

Alderman Hoinacki 

Alderman Bateman 

Alderman Keller 

Alderman Welch 

Alderwoman Hom 

Alderman Downs 

Nays:~~~~~~~~~~~~-~~~~~~~~~~~~~­

Absent: ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Abstain: ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Passed and approved this _ day of 2019. 

CITY OF LINCOLN, 

Seth Goodman, Mayor 
City of Lincoln, Logan County, Illinois 

ATTEST: ____ _ _ _ _ _ __ (SEAL) 
City Clerk, City of Lincoln, 
Logan County, Illinois 



SEALED BID 
LETTER OF INTENT TO PURCHASE 

Date: November 18, 2019 

To: City of Lincoln 
Attn: Mayor Seth Goodman & City Administrator Beth Kavelman 

Re: Limit Street Property to Illinois American Water Co. - +/-0.73 Acres 

Dear Mr. Mayor Goodman & Ms. Kavelman: 

The following is a summary of the basic terms and conditions under which Illinois American Water 
Company proposes to purchase the real property referenced below pursuant to a real estate sales 
contract to be entered into between the parties: 

Purchaser: 

Seller: 

Property: 

Purchase Price: 

Due Diligence Period: 

Illinois American Water Company 

City of Lincoln, Illinois 

Part of PIN 08-031-041-51 
Limit Street Property (Behind IA WC Operations at 311 Limit Street) 

$8,900 plus Easement for Ingress/Egress and Public Utilities for the 
City Public Works Facility from Limit Street. Purchaser offers to 
survey and prepare at their sole expense, said easement document and 
plat and the tract survey plat to transfer the +/-0.73 acre tract from 
Seller to Purchaser. 

Purchaser will have fifteen (15) days following the date of a fully 
executed "Contract" (defined below) to inspect the Property and the 
"Property Information'' (defined below) and to confirm that the 
Property is capable of being used for Purchaser's intended purposes. 
Purchaser will also coordinate and pay for an updated title 
commitment for the amount of the purchase price within 15 days of 
fully executed Contract. A current ALT A survey will be at the 
Purchaser's discretion to complete during the Due Diligence Period 
and will be at the Purchaser's expense. 

Managing Broker: Donald E. Bailey 
301 N. Main Street 

Office: {618) 662-5200 
www .buyafarm.com 

Flora, IL 62839 



Closing/Possession: 

Earnest Money: 

Property Information: 

Contract: 

As-Is: 

On or before the expiration of the Due-Diligence Period, Purchaser 
shall notify Seller of one of the following: 

(i) Purchaser elects to terminate the Contract at Purchaser's sole 
discretion and receive a full refund of any Earnest Money. 

(ii) Purchaser elects to purchase the Property and any Earnest 
Money shall be non-refundable and credited toward the 
Purchase Price. 

Upon Purchaser successfully obtaining all required local, state and 
federal project building permits for the project. All closing costs will 
be paid for by Purchaser. Purchaser will pay for any non-loan related 
escrow costs, if escrow is chosen. 

No Earnest Monies will be deposited for this transaction. (the 
"Escrow"). 

Within five ( 5) business days after the full execution of the Contract, 
Seller (to the extent it possesses same) will forward to Purchaser 
copies of vendor contracts, leases, environmental reports, previous 
surveys, any notices received from any governmental authority or 
third parties, and any other documentation or information pertaining 
to the condition or the use (existing or intended by Purchaser) of the 
Property. 

Seller and Purchaser agree to use their "'good faith" efforts in 
negotiating and executing a Contract for sale/purchase of the Property 
within seven (7) business days following the execution ofthis Letter 
of Intent. The Real Estate Sales Contract from Buy A Farm is 
attached hereto and will be used for the sales contract. 

Purchaser will be acquiring the Property in As-ls, Where-Is 
condition, with all owned mineral rights to transfer from seller to 
purchaser. 

Real Estate Commissions: Sole responsibility of the Purchaser. 

Managing Broker: Donald E. Bailey 
301 N. Main Street 
Flora, IL 62839 

Office: (618) 662-5200 
www.buyafarm.com 



Time for Acceptance: 

Financing: 

If Seller fails to return a fully executed and dated copy of this Letter 
oflntent to Purchaser by 12/31/2019, then this Letter of Intent will be 
deemed null and void. 

Purchaser's obligation to purchase the Property is not contingent 
upon financing approval 

It is understood that this Letter of Intent is not intended to be a purchase agreement and does not 
create any obligation between the parties until the Contract may be fully executed; provided, 
however, that during the 60 business day period after this Letter oflntent has been fully 
executed, Seller agrees not to communicate with any third party concerning the sale or lease of 
the Property. This Letter of Intent is merely an outline of the terms under which the parties desire 
to enter into the Contract. 

If the foregoing terms are acceptable to Seller, please timely execute and date this Letter oflntent 
where indicated below and return a fully executed and dated copy to Purchaser. 

Sincerely, 

Jfa;-:J;L 
Devin Birch 
Broker, Buy A Farm Land and Auction Co. 

Managing Broker: Donald E. Bailey 
301 N. Main Street 
Flora, IL 62839 

Office: (618) 662-5200 
www.buyafann.com 



PUR:w 
By: . 

' 

Print Name: Gabriel A. Bowden, 

Title: Operations Superintendent 
Illinois American Water Company 

_Da_te_: _/_(-_J_6 __ , 2019 

ACCEPTED AS OF _______ -7 2019 

SELLER: 

By: ___________ _ 

Print 
Name: 

Title: 

~~~~~~~~~~~-

~~~~~~~~~~~-

City of Lincoln, IL 

Managing Broker: Donald E. Bailey 
301 N. Main Street 
Flora, IL 62839 

--------' 2019 

Office: (618) 662-5200 
www.buyafarm.com 
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REAL ESTATE SALES CONTRACT FOR ILLINOIS 
buyafann.com 

Seller Information Buyer Information 

Name(s) Name(s) 

Address: Address: 

Telephone: 

Is this a Dual Agency situation? o Yes o No If yes, complete section below. 

Acknowledgment of Dual Agency. Each of the undersigned parties do hereby confirm that, atler tull disclosure and 
explanation by ("Agent"), such party has consented to Agent acting as a dual 
agent in providing representation to and on behalf of Buyer and Seller. Each of the undersigned further specifically consent 
to Agent acting as a dual agent in regard to the transaction contemplated by this Contract. 

SELLER INITIALS ___ _ BUYER INITIALS __ _ 

1. Offer to Purchase. Buyer submits the following offer on 20 _____,to purchase the Property, 
as hereinafter described and defined, subject to Seller's approval. This offer shall automatically expire at 5 p.m. CST on 
--------·' 20 __ unless otherwise accepted in writing by Seller prior thereto. Time is of the essence as to 
Seller's response. 

D This box is checked if the Property has been sold at an auction sale. For an auction sale, this Real Estate 
Sales Contract is made to confirm and set forth the terms of the Buyer's bid, which has been accepted at 
the auction sale, including any terms announced on the date of the auction sale. The parties intend this Real 
Estate Sales Contract to be binding upon execution thereof. 

2. Legal Description. Buyer, hereby agrees to purchase the following described property ('"Property"), under terms 
and conditions set forth herein, having a common address of ____________ _ 

-·- ~------·-----------

with Seller's current vesting legal description, or a survey if herein agreed upon, to govern. The parties agree that the 
Property consists of approximately acres ( +/-). The parties acknowledge and agree that unless otherwise agreed 
to in Addendum A, no survey of the Property will be performed or obtained and that the acreage and descriptions as set 
forth or referred to herein shall govern. Buyer hereby acknowledges and understands that the Property, including 
improvements situated thereon, if any, is being sold on an .. as is, where is" basis. Addendum A - Agreement as to Survey 
is attached hereto if this box is checked. D 
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3. Purchase Price and Method of Payment. The Property shall be sold (check one box only): 

0 by the acre, with the purchase price to be the total sum of _________________ _ 
_____________________________ Dollars($ ____ ~ per acre, 

0 in gross, with the total purchase price for the Property shall to be the sum of _________ _ 
_ _ _ _ ____________ _ _ ____________ Dollars($ , 

which price is hereby accepted by Seller. The entire purchase price, less any earnest money hereby paid, shall be due and 
payable upon closing, plus or minus pro-rations, additions or changes, in the form of cash or certified, cashier's or bank 
check, or, as may be required by law, in readily available wire transfer funds. Time is of the essence as to the payment of 
the purchase price. Buyer shall and does hereby pay to Agent the sum of _______________ _ 
Dollars ($ to serve as earnest money, which shall be deposited and held without interest in 
------- ------------- escrow account and applied to the purchase price upon closing 
unless otherwise specified herein. 

4. Closing. Closing shall be not later than 20 _, or at such other time as the parties may 
mutually agree in writing. Time is of the essence as to closing and the payment of expenses hereinafter set forth. Closing 
shall take place at the office of . Seller 
and Buyer agree that all expenses are to be paid as follows prior to or at the closing or as otherwise herein established: 

(a) Seller's Expenses. Seller agrees to pay: (i) all costs and expenses for releasing any existing loans and/or 
recording releases thereof; (ii) unless otherwise agreed to by the parties on Addendum H-Special Agreements, one-half of 
the closing fee charged by closing agent; (iii) the cost of any owner's title insurance policy premium; (iv) the cost for the 
preparation of deed and Real Estate Transfer Declaration (P-Tax 203); {v) by credit against the purchase price the Sellers 
obligation for real estate taxes as pro-rated pursuant to paragraph 11 below; (vi) all transfer taxes; (vii) the cost of recording 
any mortgage or lien releases as to the Property; (viii) any other expenses stipulated to be paid by Seller under other 
provisions of this Contract; and (ix) if applicable, Seller's broker's commission. Addendum H-Special Agreements is 
attached hereto if this box is checked. 0 

(b) Buyer's Expenses. Buyer agrees to pay: (i) all expenses incident to any Buyer loan (including but not 
limited to, points, loan commitment fees, loan closing fees, preparation of note, mortgage, and other loan documents, 
recording fees, title examinations, mortgage title insurance policy premium, pre-payable interest, credit reports); (ii) unless 
otherwise agreed to by the parties on Addendum H-Special Agreements, one-half of the closing fee charged by closing 
agent; (iii) the cost of any copies of documents pertaining to restriction, easements, or conditions affecting the Property; 
(iv) the cost of recording the deed from Seller to Buyer; (v) any expenses stipulated to be paid by Buyer under other 
provisions of this Contract; and (vi) if applicable, Buyer's broker's commission. Addendum H-Special Agreements is 
attached hereto if this box is checked. 0 

5. Conveyance. Buyer shall direct Seller as to how Buyer will elect to take title. Unless Buyer directs otherwise, 
conveyance of the Property shall be to Buyer as herein listed by recordable Warranty Deed with release of homestead rights. 
Unless otherwise agreed in Addendum B - Reservation of Minerals, Seller is reserving no mineral, coal, gas, oil or other 
right, title or interest of any nature in the Property. Addendum B - Reservation of Minerals is attached hereto if this box is 
checked. D 

6. Evidence of Title. Seller shall furnish at Seller's expense a title insurance policy insuring title to the real estate in 
Buyer for the amount of the purchase price. Permissible exceptions shall include, but not limited to: (a) rights or claims of 
parties in possession not shown by the public records; (b) easements or claims of easements not shown by the public records; 
(c) encroachments, overlaps; boundary line disputes or other matters which would be disclosed by an accurate survey or 
inspection of the Property; ( d) any lien or right of lien for services, labor or material heretofore or hereinafter furnished, 
imposed by law and not shown by the public record; (e) taxes or special assessments which are not shown as existing liens; 
(f) any water, mineral or other rights already granted or reserved by Seller or other parties, including but not limited to any 
mineral leases; (g) the rights of any current tenants in possession of the Property; {h) such easements, covenants, restrictions, 
conditions and other matters, if any, identified in the title commitment, (i) those exceptions referred to on Seller's deed to 
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the real property, and (j) the usual printed exceptions in such title insurance policies. At least days prior to 
closing, Seller shall provide Buyer with a commitment for such title insurance. After receipt of the title commitment, Buyer 
shall have three (3) business days to provide written objections to Seller. If Buyer does not timely deliver a written objection 
to Seller regarding the title commitment, the contents of the title commitment shall be deemed approved by Buyer. If Buyer 
provides timely written objections to Seller, Buyer and Seller shall have three (3) business days after Seller' s receipt of 
Buyer's objections (the "Title Response Period") in which to agree in writing upon the manner of resolving Buyer's 
objections. Seller may, but shall not be required to, resolve Buyer's objections. If Buyer and Seller do not agree in writing 
upon the manner of resolving Buyer's objections, Buyer may cancel this Contract by providing written notice to Seller no 
later than three (3) business days after expiration of the Title Response Period, whereupon any earnest money shall be 
released to Buyer. If the Contract is not timely canceled by Buyer, Buyer's objections regarding the contents of the title 
commitment shall be deemed waived by Buyer and the parties shall proceed to closing. If the objection process herein 
provided for is undertaken, the closing deadline as set forth in the Contract shall be automatically extended for a period of 
not less than: (a) thirty (30) days, (b) that period of time as agreed to by the parties in resolving Buyer's objections, or (c) 
such other period as Buyer and Seller may agree to in writing. 

The widersigned parties acknowledge and agree that neither Agent nor Buy A Fann Land and Auction Company, LLC 
assumes any responsibility for providing evidence of marketable title, examination of the title, curing title defects or for 
any closing delays caused thereby. 

In the event the Property has been sold at an auction sale, any announcements made at the auction sale or agreements of 
the parties which modify or amend the terms of this paragraph 6 are set forth on Addendum H - Special Agreements. 
Addendum H - Special Agreements is attached hereto if this box is checked. D 

7. Possession. Except for leases of any interest in coal, oil, gas or other minerals which is a part of the Property and 
which leases are of record prior to the date of this Real Estate Sales Contract, all leases as to the Property shall be terminated 
by Seller prior to closing. Seller shall deliver possession of the Property to Buyer upon closing free and clear of any such 
leases except for any leases of any interest in coal, oil, gas or other minerals of record prior to the date of this Real Estate 
Sales Contract and except as set forth on Addendum C - Lease Disclosure to this Contract. Addendum C - Lease Disclosure 
is attached hereto if this box is checked. D 

8. Agreement to Continue Certain Contracts. Buyer acknowledges that all or some portion of the Property may 
currently be subject to certain state and/or federal government programs as set forth on Addendum D - Agreement as to 
Government Programs to this Contract. Addendum D - Agreement as to Government Programs is attached hereto if this 
box is checked D. 

9. Buyer Contingencies. The offer of Buyer as set forth herein is contingent upon the following if checked by Buyer: 
D Addendwn E - Contingency on Financing as attached hereto. 
0 Addendum F - Contingency on Sale and Close of Buyers Property as attached hereto. 

In the event the Property has been sold at an auction sale, the parties agree that the foregoing contingencies are not 
applicable. The parties acknowledge that Buyer's auction bid has been accepted and is not contingent on Buyer financing 
or the sale of any other property by Buyer. 

10. Compliance. Seller and Buyer agree to provide all information necessary to complete and execute all docwnents 
and perform all actions necessary to comply with the following, when applicable and as amended: a) Real Estate Settlement 
Procedures Act of 1974; b) Internal Revenue Service Form 1099S; c) Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue Code (which 
relates to tax reporting based upon the citizenship status of Seller); d) a mutually agreeable summary of the closing 
transaction; and e) all laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations applicable to the transaction. 

11. Proration of Real Estate Taxl!s. (Check one box only) 
D Option 1: Real estate taxes which are due and payable shall be paid before or at closing by Seller. Real 

estate taxes that are a lien on the property but not yet due and payable shall be prorated to the date of closing based on one 
hundred percent (100%) of the most recent annual ascertainable taxes. Buyer shall receive the credit at closing for an 
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amount equal to the Seller' s share of prorated real estate taxes and Buyer shall be responsible for payment of all real estate 
taxes becoming due and payable after the date of closing. 

D Option 2: Real estate taxes which are due and payable shall be paid before or at closing by Seller. Real 
estate taxes that are a lien on the property but not yet due and payable shall be prorated as follows: 

Seller will pay _ _ _ % of real estate taxes for tax year ___ and _ _ _ % of real estate taxes for tax year __ _ 

Buyer will pay _ _ _ % of real estate taxes for tax year ___ and _ _ _ % of real estate taxes for tax year __ _ 

Taxes shall be prorated as provided above based on one hundred percent (100%) of the most recent annual ascertainable 
taxes. Buyer shall receive a credit at closing for an amount equal to Seller's share of prorated real estate taxes and Buyer 
shall be responsible for payment of all real estate taxes becoming due and payable after the date of closing. 

o Option 3: The parties have agreed on the terms for allocation of the real estate taxes and for proration of 
such taxes as set forth in Addendwn H-Special Agreements. Addendum H - Special Agreements is attached hereto if this 
box is checked. 0 

12. Limitation on Warranty and Representations. Buyer acknowledges that a full inspection of the Property and all 
related information, including this Contract, was made prior to Buyer' s execution of this Contract, and that Buyer is satisfied 
in all respects with the condition of the Property and all matters pertaining thereto. The Buyer acknowledges that the Seller 
has not made, will not make and hereby disclaims any and all representations and warranties concerning the environmental 
condition of the Property. Buyer further acknowledges and agrees that, except as may otherwise be expressly set forth in 
this Contract, neither Seller nor any agent or representative of Seller, has made or shall be deemed to have made any oral 
or written representation or warranty concerning any matter relating to the Property to be sold and conveyed to Buyer 
hereunder or concerning any other matter connected with or related to the purchase and sale hereunder, and that the Property 
is being sold "as-is" as of the date of this Contract. All warranties for workmanship, habitability or fitness for a particular 
purpose are hereby expressly disclaimed by Seller and waived by Buyer. 

13. 1031 Exchange. Seller and Buyer agree to cooperate with each other, if requested, for purposes of effecting and 
structuring, in conjunction with the sale of the Property, a like-kind exchange of real property, whether a simultaneous or 
deferred exchange, pursuant to Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, (the "Code") and the 
Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder. Upon request of Buyer and/or Seller (the "Exchanging Party"), the other 
party (the "Cooperating Party") agrees to execute any and all documents, and take any and all acts, reasonably required, 
to effectuate such exchange, whether on a concurrent or deferred basis (including through a third-party qualifying 
intermediary) as are reasonable necessary to implement such an exchange; provided that Exchanging Party; (i) shall provide 
Cooperating Party with notice of its desire to enter into the exchange and of all acts and documents requested of or to be 
executed by the Exchanging Party in connection with the exchange; (ii) shall be solely responsible for assuring that the 
structure of any proposed exchange is effective for its own tax purposes and for paying all costs and expenses associated 
with the proposed exchange; and (iii) shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold the Cooperating Party and any ofits partners, 
officers, directors, shareholders, members, managers, attorneys and agents harmless from and against any and all liability, 
including, but not limited to, costs and attorneys' fees, caused by or resulting from their participation in the exchange. 
Cooperating Party agrees that Exchanging Party may assign this Agreement and any of its rights or obligations hereunder, 
in whole or in part, as necessary or appropriate in furtherance of effectuating a Section 1031 like-kind exchange for the 
Property, provided that such assignment shall not serve to relieve Exchanging Party of any liability for Exchanging Party's 
obligations hereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the scheduled closing shall not in any way be postponed or be subject 
to rescission or be contingent upon completion of the exchange; and Cooperating Party: (a) shall not be required to incur 
any liability or expense in connection with its participation in the Exchanging Party's exchange; (b) shall not be required to 
hold or otherwise acquire, or be entitled to, any property other than the Property; (c) shall not be required to execute any 
document creating any liability on its part by reason of the Exchanging Party's exchange; (d) makes no representation or 
warranty to Exchanging Party that such exchange will quality for tax deferral or other tax treatment, whether pursuant to 
the Code or otherwise 
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14. Residential Properly. If the Property, or any part thereof, is residential property, Addendum G - Residential 
Addendwn shall be applicable. Buyer further acknowledges receipt of the Real Property Disclosure Report, Lead Based 
Paint Disclosure, Mold Disclosure, and Radon Disclosure, all of which shall be deemed incorporated herein by reference. 
Addendum G- Residential Addendum is attached hereto if this box is checked D. 

15. Insurance. If all or a material part of the Property is destroyed without fault of the Buyer or is taken by eminent 
domain, the Buyer may elect to tenninate this Real Estate Sales Contract by written notice to Seller and Buyer shall be 
entitled to a refund of the earnest money deposit. Seller shall assume the risk of loss from damage or destruction to the 
premises prior to closing and may maintain such casualty or other insurance as Seller may elect. From and after closing, 
Buyer shall assume and bear the risk of loss from damage or destruction of the property. Each party may maintain such 
liability insurance coverage as the party may elect. 

16. Parties. The covenants and agreements herein contained shall extend to and be obligatory upon the heirs, executors, 
administrators and assigns of the parties. 

17. Modifications. Any modification of this Contract must be signed by all parties. 

18. Date. The date and time of this Contract shall be the latest date in the space above the Seller's and Buyer's 
signatures. 

19. Default If Buyer defaults as to any term or obligation required by this Contract, Buyer shall be deemed to be in 
default and: (a) Seller may seek specific performance notwithstanding any common law to the contrary, or seek any other 
remedy provided by law or equity; or (b) Seller may treat this Contract as being terminated and receive the earnest money 
as liquidated damages. Seller shall be entitled to recover from Buyer all of Seller's costs and expenses (including, without 
limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees) in enforcing any of the provisions of this Contract. If Seller breaches this Contract 
and is found to be in default, then and only then shall the earnest money be returned to Buyer. In the event earnest deposit 
is to be paid out or refunded other than for closing, Seller and Buyer agree to execute an authorization for release thereof, 
and if Seller and Buyer cannot agree, the earnest money will be held until the holder thereof is directed by a court to make 
distribution of such. 

20. Choice of Law. This Contract is being executed and delivered in the State of _________ and shall be 
governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of ________ _ 

21. Waiver. The waiver by either party of the breach of any provision of this Contract by the other party shall not operate 
or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach. 

22. Assignment Except as otherwise provided within this Contract, neither party hereto may transfer or assign this Contract 
without prior written consent of the other party. 

23. Legally Binding. The undersigned each represent that such party: (a) bas read this Contract; (b) intends this 
to be a legally binding contract with substantial legal implications when fully signed; (c) has had the opportunity to 
consult with an attorney before signing this Contract; and ( d) by signing does knowingly and voluntarily accept the 
terms herein. 

24. SELLER UNDERSTANDS IT IS ILLEGAL FOR EITHER SELLER OR BROKER TO REFUSE TO SELL 
OR DISCRIMINATE AGAINST ANY PERSON BECAUSE OF THE PERSON'S RACE, COLOR, SEX, 
RELIGION, NATIONAL ORIGIN, ANCESTRY, AGE, FAMILY STATUS, HANDICAP, OR UNFAVORABLE 
DISCHARGE FROM THE MILITARY SERVICE, AS THOSE TERMS ARE DEFINED IN EITHER THE 
ILLINOIS HUMAN RIGHTS ACT OR THE FEDERAL FAIR HOUSING ACT OR ANY OTHER APPLICABLE 
FEDERAL, STATE, COUNTY OR LOCAL STATUTE OR ORDINANCE. 

25. ls there a Licensed Real Estate Agent Interest? D Yes D No If yes, complete the rest of this section and 
initial below. Pursuant to 225 ILCS 454/10-27, you are notified that _____ _______ is a licensed real 
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estate agent/broker and has an interest, direct or indirect, as the Seller or Buyer of the Property that is the subject of this 
transaction. 

________ (Buyer) _ _ _ ___ _ _ (Seller) 

26. Incorporation of Exhibits by Reference. The following, if checked by the parties hereto, are made a part of and 
incorporated into this Contract by reference: 

Buyer 
Date: 

D 
0 
0 
D 
D 
0 
D 
D 
D 
0 
D 
0 

Addendum A - Agreement as to Survey 
Addendum B - Reservation of Minerals 
Addendum C - Lease Disclosure 
Addendum D - Agreement as to Government Programs 
Addendum E - Contingency as to Buyer's Financing 
Addendum F - Contingency on Sale and Closing of Buyer's Property 
Addendum G - Residential Addendum 
Addendum H - Special Agreements 
Residential Real property Disclosure Report 
Lead Base Paint Disclosure 
Mold Disclosure 
Radon Disclosure 

Buyer 

----------~ Date: ----------

Designated Agent _________________ Contact Phone # _________ _ 

Designated Agent License Number 

Brokerage Office Address 

Brokerage Office License Number 

Brokerage Office Telephone 

(Check one) 
D 

0 

D 

Seller hereby accepts the terms of this Contract. 

Seller 
Date: 

Seller presents a counteroffer attached as Addendum I - Counteroffer. 

Seller rejects the Contract. 

Seller 
Date: 

----------~ 

Designated Agent ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ Contact Phone# _______ __ _ 

Designated Agent License Number ------------

Brokerage Office Address 

Brokerage Office License Number - -------------

Brokerage Office Telephone Revised 091.2015 
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Met with the following people on August 27, 2019 

Mayor - Adam McVay 

City Clerk - Ken Martin 

Alderman - Dale Colaw 

Water/Street - Paul Goodwin 



Met with the following people on August 27, 2019 

Mayor-Adam McVay 

City Clerk- Ken Martin 

Alderman-Dale Colaw 

Water/Street - Paul Goodwin 



ANNUAL TREASURER'S REPORT- CASH BASIS 

CITY OF LINCOLN 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2019 

REVENUE SUMMARY: 2% Foreign Fire Insurance 24,258.94, Building Permits 30,186.98, Circuit Clerk Fines 71,345.18, Donations 
1,990.00, Equipment Rental Receipts 153,234.92, Franchise Fees 179,049.62, Interest/Dividends 22,531.23, Licenses & Permits 
54,145.96, New Liquor License Fees 12,000.00, Motor Fuel Taxes 369,277.92, Parking Collections 1,853.00, Property Tax 
1,840,055.78, Replacement Tax 259,052.34, Sales Tax/Use tax 3,224,749.96, Non-Home Rule Sales Tax 789,880.46, Sewage Receipts 
3,928,856.92, State Income Tax 1,408,178.62, Telecommunications Tax 269,838.41, Utility Tax 934,508.53, Violations 5,670.88, 
TIF DistrictTax Increment 131,328.06, Housing Authority Distribution 3,952.14, Mobil Home Tax Distribution 1,996.78, Forfeiture 
Tax 1,665.33, Hotel/Motel Tax 172,926.59, Birth Certificates 1,379 .. 00, Death Certificates 13,226.00, Sewer Taps 1,050.00, Pull Tabs 
& Jar Games 3,537.58, State Grants (not included elsewhere) 984.00, Other Grants 30,463.00, Proceeds From Sale of Surplus 
Property 10,001.50, Trash Billing Revenue 270,090.68, Loan Proceeds 60,000.00, Pension Contributions 288,783.84, Health 
Insurance Reimbursement 163,581.71, Salary Reimbursement 56,670.06, Claims 8,051.70, Other Reimbursements 64,025.79, 
Refunds 754.34, Enterprise Zone Administration Fees 5,000.00, Depot Rental 9,900.00, Crop Proceeds & Land Rental 11,373.95, 
Video Gaming Tax 287,926.14, Misc. Income 10.00. 

TOTAL REVENUES: $15,179,343.84 

COMPENSATION SUMMARY: 
SALARIES 

Under $25,000: Mary Bauer, Heidi Browne, Austin Brummett, Charles Conzo, Dayne Dalpoas, Jim Drew, Ronald Fleshman, Angela 

Getchel, Carolyn Gober, Seth Goodman, Cooper Hake, Joe Haning, Christopher Herzog, Richard Hoefle, Jeffrey Hoinacki, Charity 
Hutchison, Ronald Keller, Gene Mehan, Marilyn Montgomery, Linda Myers, James Oliver, Donnie Parker, Steven Parrott, 
Christopher Perrine, Kirstin Rawlins, Steven Schreiber, Alexander Shew, Ruth Sloot, Laverne Tesh, Norma Tripplett, Katlynn Tutter, 
Ashley Welch, Tracy Welch, Danny Wheat, Alexandrea Williams, Chase Wright and Frederic Zimmer. 

$25,000 to $49,999.99: Peggy Bateman, Brandon Basie, Christina Coffman, James Cosby, Ashley Davis, Nicholas Davis, Cori Ingram, 
Elizabeth Kavelman, Julie Landers, Jared Maxheimer, Susan Pegram and Rachel Shew .. 

$50,000.00 to $74,999.99 : Timothy Aper, Brandon Berkley, John Bobb, Shelbie Bosie, Timothy Butterfield, Brian Clements, Paul 
Cooper, Christopher Davis, Joseph Davis, Andy Dexter, Chad Elmer, Craig Eimer, Christy Fruge, M ichael Fruge, Billy Gandolfi, Travis 
Greenlund, Aaron Johnson, Maurice Johnson, Eldon Johnston, Chad Kern, Jason Kitner, Walt Landers, Jason Lucas, Kevin Lynn, 
Joseph Meiser, Heidi Moore, Shawn Pettit, Aaron Pickett, Christopher Reed, James Reed, Robert Sherren, Ryan Sullivan, Bret 
Tripplett, Kyle Veech, Christopher Whiteman, Ashley Williams, Clinton Wombles, Robert Wood, Weley Woodhall and Russell 
Wright. 

$75,000.00 to $99,000.99: Paul Adams, Darrin Coffey, Matt Comstock, Robert Dunovsky, Chris Harding, Todd Koehler, Mark Miller, 
David Oltmanns, James Rehmann, Benjamin Roland, Jason Van Winkle and Matthew Vlahovich. 

TOTAL SALARIES: 3,991,521.08 

FIRE PENSION PAYMENTS: 
Under $25,000.00: Christine Bahn, Zachary Camille and Sierra Fulk. 

$25,000.00 to $49,999,99: Roger Adams, Robert Bergman, Donald Cecil, Thomas Cecil, Deanne Ebelherr, Larry Fulk, Terry lessen, 
Beverly Lolling, Wayne Lolling, Richard Montcalm, Sandra Millard, Laura Molt, Richard O'Hara, Nana Papesch and Lyle Ruff. 

$50,000.00 to $74,999.99: Jean Buss, James Davis, Jr., Steven Dahm, Donald Fulk, William Haak, Thomas Martin, Jeffrey Singleton, 
Larry Spurling and Robert Washam, Jr .. 

TOTAL FIRE PENSION PAYMENTS $1,149,036.18 



POLICE PENSION PAYMENTS: 

Under $25,000.00: Evelyn Armstrong, Mary Dowdel, Herta Gleason, Carol Holmes, William Krueger and Patricia Mann 

$25,000.00 to $49,999.99: Carol Coombs, Debra Coons, Michael Geriets, Kenneth Greenslate, Douglas Grieser, Charles Gunning, 
Robert Hahn, Michael Harberts, Leah Hardy, Gary Hurley, Timothy Kerns, Mark Mann, Janet Maurer, Gregory Saylor, Sharon Shelby, 
Raymond Vonderahe, Betty Wilmert, and Michael Yarcho. 

$50,000.00 to 74,999.99: John Bunner, James Davis, Sr., Donald Gleason, Harley Mullins, Robert Rawlins, Ronald Robbins, Thomas 
Rowland, David Sielaff and Darrell Sisk. 

TOTAL POLICE PENSION PAYMENTS: $1,359,058.04 



2018-2019 Expenditure Summary 

4CL $ 1,161.75 ( Bobcat of Springfield $ 427.31 

A Busy Bee Service $ 817.00 ] Bode's Welding & Machining $ 4,318.98 

A.E.C. Fire Safety $ 10,288.68 [ Bodine Electric of Decatur $ 43,631.89 

A.T.&T. $ 1,264.08 ] Bradburn, Jason $ 748.00 

A-1 lock, Inc. $ 374.00 ( Bradford Systems Corp. $ 8,374.00 

Accella, Inc. $ 44,928.79 I By Design Landscaping $ 11,825.00 

Ace Hardware $ 5,208.33 [ Byrne's Backhoue & Excavating $ 12,500.00 

Ace Sign Co. $ 589.26 I Cardmember Services $ 39.00 

Adapt Pharma, Inc. $ 3,600.00 [ Cargill, Jnc. $ 24,005.77 

AEP Energy $ 32,092.04 ( CDW Government, Inc. $ 15,547.00 

Aerial Influence, LLC $ 5,792.00 ] Central Ill. Fire Chiefs $ 340.00 

AFC International, Inc. $ 8,269.15 [ Charron's Auto Repair $ 2,045.49 

Ag-Land FS $ 17,594.28 J Chicago Street Rentals $ 225.00 

Air One Equipment, Inc. $ 6,600.00 ( Clayton Holdings, LLC $ 88,874.34 

Akers Fabrication $ 447.11 ] Coast to Coast Computers $ 1,781.73 

Aladtec, Inc. $ 5,281.20 [ Coast To Coast Solutions $ 267.19 

Alexander Lumber $ 3,850.87 J COE Equipment, lnc. $ 10,689.62 

All Traffic Solutions $ 665.00 [ Collision Concepts, Inc. $ 1,711.86 

Amazon $ 13,358.30 [ Comcast Cable $ 6,550.43 

Ameren $ 385,441.70 1 Confrd. Onsite Paper Shredders $ 550.22 

American Environmental $ 620.00 [ Connonr Foster Land Surveying $ 895.00 

American Express $ 278.25 J Contractors Ready Mix $ 14,881.65 

American Public Works $ 506.61 [ Cooper. Jeffrey $ 430.00 

American Test Center $ 1,540.00 J Cosby, James (Reimb.) $ 920.94 

American Testing & Inspection $ 240.00 ( Crawford, Murphy & Tilly, Inc. $ 777,618.62 

APR Computers, Inc. $ 1,710.45 ] Culligan $ 615.96 

Aramark Uniform Services $ 10,738.43 [ Cummins Crosspoint, LLC $ 7,866.00 

Arbisi, Jeffrey A. $ 400.00 [ Danner-La Crosse $ 400.00 

Arbor Day Foundation $ 880.00 J Dan's Concrete & Tree Removal $ 15,300.00 

Area Disposal Service, Inc. $ 246,788.94 [ Dash Medical Gloves $ 781.90 

Arends, Hogan & Walker, LLC $ 1,602.65 l Davis, Nicholas (Reimbursement) $ 900.00 

Arthur J. Gallagher $ 203,365.00 [ Davls-Kavelman, Eliz, (Reimb.) $ 5,759.54 

Axon Enterprise, Inc. $ 620.00 1 Denny, Montie $ 2,400.00 

B. & B. Eelectric, Inc. $ 49,700.00 [ Dickerson, Bill $ 895.00 

Banner Fire Equipment $ 5,121.15 J Division Of Vital Records $ 7,720.00 

Barbeck Communications $ 1,180.00 [ Dock Dogs, Inc. $ 6,000.00 

Bauer, Michelle (Relmb.) $ 334.85 I DOT.Gov. Reg. $ 400.00 

BEA Of Illinois $ 2,934.31 [ Drake Scruggs Equipment, Co. $ 6,540.39 

BEC Enterprises, LLC $ 9,013.86 J Drew, James & Lisa $ 10,000.00 

Bee's Cub Cadet $ 9,590.00 [ Dunn Company $ 4,437.70 

Belson Outdoors $ 5,002.93 1 Dunovsky, Robert (reimb.) $ 351.84 

Beniach Construction, Co., Inc. $ 185,600.73 [ Ebelherr, Wayne $ 1,000.00 

Berkley, Brandon {Relmb.) $ 1,026.54 1 EDC, Inc. $ 2,000.00 

Best Western, Savoy $ 1,698.95 [ Egizi Electric $ 71,871.99 

Blg R $ 7,011.67 ] Eimer, Craig (reimb.) $ 341.05 

Blue Tarp Financial, Inc. $ 8,067.70 [ EMC $ 447,029.47 

Bobcat of Peoria $ 572.45 I ESO Solutions, Inc. $ 2,099.00 



2018-2019 Expenditure Summary 

Estes, Bridgewater & Ogden $ 22,000.00 [ Illinois EPA $ 22,500.00 

Everbridge, Inc. $ 3,500.00 1 Illinois Finance Authority $ 12,500.00 

Examworks $ 3,375.00 [ Jllinols Municipal League $ 3,148.00 

Farnsworth Goup, Inc. $ 126,007.97 1 Illinois Public Risk Fund $ 240,160.00 

Fastenal Industrial s 5,633.57 [ Illinois Route 66 Scenic Byway $ 400.00 

FGM Architects $ 53,745.65 1 Illinois Secretary Of State $ 901.00 

Fire Apparat~s & Supply Team $ 1,539.12 [ Illinois State Treasurer $ 3,004.01 

Fire Apparatus Ind. Repair $ 600.00 1 ILMO Products $ 380.40 

Fire Textresponse, LLC $ 500.00 [ Impact Recovery Systems $ 2,371.00 

Fitzpatric & Sons Electric $ 1,605.00 [ IMRF $ 84,371.44 

Fitzpatrick Construction Co. $ 7,387.00 1 Int. City/County Mgmt. $ 400.00 

Flag Depot s 510.60 [ Integrated Work Injury Network $ 1,972.44 

Fleet Safety Supply $ 850.77 ] International Code Council $ 1,099.95 

Forensic Mapping Solutions $ 599.00 [ Interstate Billing Services, Inc. $ 3,723.39 

Forsite $ 727.60 ] lnt'I Security Products $ 566.04 

Frontier $ 8,978.20 [ Int'/. Assoc. of Chiefs of Police $ 890.00 

Fun On The Run, Inc. $ 875.00 1 IPPFA $ 5,375.00 

Garner Sales & Service $ 560.98 [ J.C. Dillon, Inc. $ 30,869.00 

Gem pier's $ 1,358.92 [ J.G. Uniforms $ 440.23 

George Alarm $ 6,508.76 1 Jim Xamis Ford $ 1,504.39 

Global Emergency Products $ 5,848.66 [ Jive Communications $ 18,846.46 

Gov HR USA, LLC $ 8,344.24 ] Johnson, Maurice (Reimb.) $ 768.89 

Gracie Univ. $ 1,790.00 [ JULIE, Inc. $ 5,037.72 

Graue Chevrolet $ 3,711.18 ] JW Tire Repair $ 368.00 

Green Guard $ 1,388.04 [ Key Equip. & Supply $ 2,282.15 

Greenhaven Properties, LLC $ 2,845.00 1 Kinney Contractirs $ 106,425.60 

Greiner Buildings, Inc. $ 71,000.00 [ Koenig Body & Equip. $ 623.22 

Grrenlunf, Travis (Reimb.) $ 443.63 [ Kone, Inc. $ 4,182.27 

GTS Race Supplies, Inc. $ 565.74 1 Konica Minolta $ 2,968.32 

Hampton Eqiipment, Inc. $ 526.80 [ Konica Minolta Premier Fin. $ 4,236.50 

Hanson Engineers $ 8,751.55 1 Lambert, Harry $ 369.60 

Harold Goodman, Inc. $ 15,751.74 [ Land Of Lincoln CEO $ 1,000.00 

Harris-Hodnett $ 668.00 1 Landers, Walt (Reimbursement} $ 1,484.98 

Health Alliance Med. Plans $ 803,300.29 [ Landmark Ford Trucks $ 606.18 

Heartland Industrial Services $ 1,860.92 l Larry L. Fredercks, LLC $ 4,065.00 

Higgins, Micheael $ 3,680.00 [ Lauterbach & Amen $ 31,890.00 

Hilton Hotels $ 3,075.90 1 LCGHS $ 750.00 

Hoblltt, Esq., John A. $ 37,500.00 [ LEM CO $ 503.00 

Hoinacki, Jeff (Reimbursement} $ 339.30 1 LETAC, MTU #10 $ 1,630.00 

Horizon Medical Products $ 484.50 [ Level Four Advisors $ 18,780.44 

IDPR $ 409.40 1 Lexipol, LLC $ 7,470.00 

Ill. Assoc. of Chiefs of Police $ 259.00 [ Lincoln Area Wrestling Boosters $ 300.00 

Ill. Fire & Police Comm. $ 375.00 1 Lincoln Chrysler Dodge Jeep $ 56,530.69 

Ill. Fire Chiefs Assn. $ 325.00 [ Lincoln Daily News $ 210.00 

Ill. Juvenile Officers Assoc. $ 300.00 I Lincoln Heating & Cooling $ 9,405.09 

Illini Supply $ 2,271.70 [ Lincoln IGA $ 5,125.93 

Illinois American Water Co. $ 4,465.81 1 Lincoln Iron & Metal $ 610.20 



2018-2019 Exoenditure Summary 

Lincoln Land Communication $ 14,319.51 [ Office Sign Co. $ 925.74 

Lincoln P.D.--Fines $ 2,151.65 ] O'Reilly Automotive $ 1,369.77 

Lincoln Park District s 1,331.20 ( Orkin Pest Control $ 139.45 

Lincoln Printers $ 10,152.00 1 P.F. Pettibone & Co. s 863.05 

Lincoln Public Library s 35,794.01 [ P.H. Broughton & Sons $ 9,441.63 

Logan Co. Hwy. Dept. $ 15,484.90 1 P.J. Hoerr, Inc. $ 1,403, l 76.96 

Logan Co. Regional Planning $ 12,500.00 [ Patel, Kinnari R. s 2,250.00 

Logan County Clerk s 17,158.00 1 Patrick Lee Trucking $ 600.00 

Logan County ETSB $ 38,014.22 [ Paul Conway Shields $ 474.20 

Logan County Hardware $ 434.80 [ Peoria Flag & Decorating s 506.29 

Logan County Joint Solid Waste s 715.00 1 Performance Transmissions $ 654.71 

Logan County Pest Control $ 6,030.00 [ Personnel Concepts $ 431.09 

Logan County Sheriffs Office $ 2,614.27 1 Petersburg Plmbg. & Excavating $ 6,306.00 

Logan County Title Co. $ 1,330.75 [ Picture This Photography $ 500.00 

Logan County Tourism Bureau $ 159,683.64 1 Pix 40, Inc. $ 3,343.15 

Logan County Treasurer $ 48,264.16 [ Polee One.Com $ 2,377.00 

Logan County Treasurer--ETSB $ 190,071.10 1 Power Equipment $ 665.67 

Logan Railsplitting Assoc. $ 1,500.00 [ Prairie Signs, Inc. $ 3,961.00 

Louis Marsch, Inc. $ 10,656.55 [ Principal Life $ 43,355.54 

LTECAUTO s 2,357.00 1 Professional Pavement Maint. $ 134,583.54 

Lucas, Jason $ 325.44 [ Professional Services Industries $ 2,558.00 

MABAS#51 $ 730.00 ] Public Agency Training Council $ 1,590.00 

Mail Finance $ 1,340.64 [ Public Safety Center $ 3,642.39 

Martin Equip. $ 3,806.33 1 Puchalski, Gudoe & Marzullo, LLP $ 1,750.00 

McEntire's Direct Maytag $ 631.00 [ Pugsley Container, LLC $ 10,110.69 

McNish Corporation $ 2,647.86 ] Puritan Springs Water $ 610.47 

McQuellon's Appliance $ 1,800.00 [ Quarter Construction $ 2,245.94 

Mehan, Eugene W. $ 4,744.61 [ Quill Corporation $ 6,199.40 

Memorial Home Services $ 423.00 } R. & D. Investments, LLC $ 1,853.68 

Menard's, Springfield $ 4,518.66 [ R. & L. Truck Repair $ 949.11 

Mid Co, Inc. $ 4,391.32 ] R.P. Lumber $ 1,126.95 

Midland Paper $ 1,576.50 [ Radar Man, Inc. $ 885.00 

Midwest Lube, Inc. $ 468.84 l Rahn Equipment Co. $ 3,792.86 

Midwest Salt, LLC $ 1,447.95 [ Railroad Management Co. $ 471.39 

Mid-West Truckers Association $ 629.35 l Ramsey Geotechnical Eng., Inc. $ 974.00 

Miller, Mark (Reimbursement) $ 1,186.30 [ Randolph Center, LLC $ 1,000.00 

Mobil Mini-Tank & Pump Sol. $ 55,534.82 ] Ray O'Herron Co. $ 5,039.16 

Moore, Heidi (Reimb.) $ 3,774.38 [ Regions Bank $ 33,178.18 

Mug-A-Bug $ 11,013.00 l Rehmann, James (Reimb.) $ 524.43 

Municipal Electronics, Inc. $ 455.00 [ Resource Management $ 100,976.17 

NAPA Auto Parts $ 6,657.67 ] Revizions $ 1,155.00 

National Testing Network $ 2,668.92 [ Rexx Battery $ 1,112.05 

Neal Tire Store s 3,719.28 l Ridings Plumbing, Inc. $ 660.00 

NELCO $ 596.47 [ Royce D. Scales Ill $ 30,940.00 

Newman Traffic Signs $ 3,234.84 1 Ryan Electrical Solutions $ 459.00 

NFIP Direct Servicing Agent $ 4,376.00 { Safety-Kleen, Inc. $ 5,585.00 

O'Donaghues Radiator $ 1,035.95 ] Sampson, Polly A .. $ 900.00 



2018-2019 Expenditure Summary 

SCBAS, Inc. $ 1,246.50 [ Wal-Mart $ 4,578.38 

Schneider Masonry, Inc. $ 8,600.00 I Wal-Mart Community $ 4,479.72 

Sears.com $ 1,799.99 [ Walters Law Offices $ 14,647.05 

Senergy Electric Co., inc. $ 748.80 I Walz Label & Mailing Systems $ 6,886.80 

Sentinel Emergency Solutins $ 4,766.41 [ Wernsing, Lori $ 7,437.67 

Sentry Safety Supply $ 935 .79 ] Wex Bank $ 70,708.55 

Sheley Group, LLC $ 3,100.00 [ Whitney & Associates, Inc. $ 3,098.45 

Sheley Repair $ 3,052.35 I Woods & Bates $ 43,668.61 

Sheley Service $ 3,067.00 [ Woody/s Municipal Supply Co. $ 450.00 

Sherill Tire Inc. $ 371.92 [ WPSG Firestore $ 3,728.56 

Sherwin-Williams $ 1,568.36 J 
Shew's Design $ 3,450.00 [ Sub-Total $ 10,466,476.03 

Shirley's Custom Lights & Sign $ 500.00 ] All Others Less Than $200.00 $ 11,233.06 

Short, Joshua $ 960.00 [ 

Sirchie Acquisition Co., LLC $ 419.47 J Sub-Total Expenditures $ 10,477,709.09 

Soc. Sec. Ad min. $ 115,226.33 [ 

Springfield Electric $ 2,147.91 I IOTAL EXPENDITURE~ $ 16,977,324.39 

Springfield Overhead Doors $ 1,355.50 [ 

Springfield Shoe, Inc. $ 404.22 [ 

Staples Advantage $ 3,962.33 ] 

State Bank $ 1,508,854.86 [ 

Sterling Codifiers $ 3,059.00 I 
Swan Graphics, Inc. $ 435.00 I 
Tackett, Danny $ 400.00 I 
Technology Management Rev. Fund $ 5,003.16 I 
The Courier/SJR Media Group $ 3,124.90 1 
The Knox Co. $ 342.00 [ 

Top Knotch Construction Services $ 693.00 [ 

Treu Body Works $ 2,051.55 I 
Tri-Tech Forensics, Inc. $ 540.50 [ 

Truck Centers, Inc. $ 2,674.90 ] 

Tru-Stripe, Inc. $ 600.00 [ 

Tyco Fire & Security $ 750.00 I 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. $ 15,832.67 [ 

U.S. Postal Service $ 24,384.72 I 
ULINE $ 8,542.46 [ 

Uniform Den East, Inc. $ 1,033.06 l 
United Community Bank $ 66,607.83 [ 

United Contractors Midwest $ 189,953.85 I 
University of Illinois $ 7,755.00 [ 

Van Hook, Thomas $ 879.90 ] 

Vandeventer Engineering $ 1,613.00 [ 

Veolia Water North America $ 896,694.24 ] 

Verizon Wireless $ 9,930.71 [ 

Verizonn Connect Fleet USA, LLC $ 7,840.00 ] 

Vermeer Sales & Service $ 642.54 [ 

Vital Educ. & Supply $ 491.00 ] 



SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CONDITION 

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL INTERNAL 

GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS SERVICE ENTERPRISE 

Beginning 

Fund Balance s 6,854,524 s 462,074 $ 21,214 $ 35,826 s 378,118 5,998,318 
Retained Earnings 

Revenues 8,219,316 696,391 183,986 - 165,075 3,845,889 

Expenditures (9, 784,567) (831,658) (186,515) (10,665} (1,367,662) (2,369,948) 

Other Financing 

Sources 102,866 150,383 - - 1,280,589 725,558 
Uses (494,865) (12,919) - - - (719,404) 

Ending 
Fund Balances s 4,897,274 $ 464,271 $ 18,685 s 25,161 456,120 $ 7,480,413 
Retained Earnings 

Subscribed and sworn on this 27th day of November, 2019 

~·'L.L@ ... w. 

Charles'N.-Conzo, City Trtla'~u~ 

I, Peggy Bateman, Clerk of the City of Lincoln, Logan County, Illinois, do hereby certify that the above is a true copy of the 
Annual Treasurer's Report - cash Basis for the fiscal year ending April 30. 2019. 

~~~ ~teman:Clt; Clerk 

TRUST 

$ 15,820,626 

2,978,623 

(2,572,960) 

$ 16,226,289 
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City of Lincoln, IL 

Executive Summary 

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. appreciates the opportunity to present this proposal tor your 
consideration . 

The entire staff at Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. would like to thank the City of Lincoln for the opportunity 
to present our background, e~perience, and qualifications as they pertain to the City of Lincoln's insurance and risk 
management needs. 

As a result of our mar1<eting efforts, here are some of the notable changes: 

• 8 additional autos on the schedule 
• 17% increase in auto values 
• All property locations have been increased by the 3% inflation guard 
a 4% increase in total property values 
• 26% increase in expenditures 
• 21% increase in revenues 
• Trident has applied a 16% increase in order to continue to sustain the loss activity/development of open claims. 

The City of Lincoln will directly benefit from utilizing our collective knowledge and experience of serving as broker to many 
Public and Governmental Entities. Nationally, we provide services to over 5,000 schools, municipalities, and counties 
encompassing over 500,000 employees and $30,000,000,000 in property values. The Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management 
Services, Inc. division of Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. is solely focused on this segment of the mar1<et and our expanding client 
list, mar1<et relationships, and personnel reflect that commitment. 

We are confident that our proposal will demonstrate our ability to service the risk management needs and confirm our 
commitment to the City of Lincoln based on: 

• Our office's strong national presence, which includes clients from New Hampshire to Idaho 
• Our expertise in governmental entities 

Our company has the expertise and breadth of services to meet all of your risk management needs. We have an experienced 
team that will wor1< as an extension of you risk management department and will be committed to ensure your program's 
success. 

In the following pages, we will demonstrate what makes our company the best fit for your insurance placement and risk 
management needs. Thank you again for allowing us to be your partner in this placement. 

We again thank you for this opportunity, and look forward to being of service to you. 

Rich Stokluska 

Tuesday, November 26, 2019 
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City of Lincoln, IL 

Premium Summary 
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Property Equipment Breakdown $51,685 

Inland Marine $2,414 

General Liability $21,565 
Law Enforcement Liability $23,904 

Public Officials and Employment Practices Liability $13,254 

Automobile Liability and Auto Physical Damage $48,890 

Excess Liabillty $27,091 
Crime $1,508 

Cyber Liability $4,897 

Workers Compensation $253,977 
Totals 449,185 

.. ... .. 
2018-2019 ' . Exposure " . . . 

Property Value 42,500,467 
Equipment Value 3,017,034 
Payrolls 3,975,398 

Vehicle Value $4,421,379 

Vehicle Count 78 

Expenditures $18,208,368 

Revenue 18,433,681 

12 
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$3.453 
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4153 427 

$5,180,409 
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LORI K. MILOSEVICH, O.P.A., C.J'.B, 
TERRI L. PHELPS, C.P.A. 
JAMES C. LBQG, C.P.A. 

RIOHARD W. OGDEN, O.P.A. 

To the Honorable Mayor 
And City Councll 

City of Lincoln, Illinois 

Report on the Financlnl Statements 

Estes, Bridgewater & Ogden 
CERTIAED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

901 South Second Street 
Springfield, llllnols 62704 

217/528-8473 
Fax 217/528-8508 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities. each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lincoln, Illinois, as of and for the year ended AprH 
30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible fo1· the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control 1-elevant to the preparation and fail' presentation of financial statements that are free from 
materiel misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibllity 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial stateme11ts based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accm'Clance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable essu1'811ce about whethet· the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. 

An audit includes parfonning procedul'es to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or Cll'Ot'. Jn making those rW< assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity,s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the cilwmstances, but not fur the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of 1he entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropl'iateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overetl presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in alJ material respects, the respective financial 
position of the goverrunental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining .fund 
information of the City ofLincoht, IJlinois es of April 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where 
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles genet-ally accepted in the United States of Amc1ica require that the required supplementary information 
listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statemei\ts. Such information, although not a part 
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part offinanciaJ reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited pl'Ocedures to the required supplemental')' information in accordance with 
auditing standards genera1ly accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of prepating the infonnation and comparing the infonnation for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during ou1· audit of the basic financial statements, 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedul'es do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any asstrance. 

Management has omitted management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America require to be p1'e8Cllted to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although 
not a part of the basic fmancial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to 
be an essential part offlnancial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropt·iate operational, economic, or 
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing infomurtion. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City of 
Lincoln, Illinois' basic financial statements. TI1e combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements listed in the 
table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived 
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjcoted to the auditing pl'OCedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and l'econciUng such infonnation dhwtly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generalJy accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures offederal awards arc fairly 
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The accompanying financial infurmation listed as ''additional schedules" in the table of contents have not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly. we do not expa-ess an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Guverrummt Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 20, 20 I 9 on our 
consideration of the City of Lincoln, Illinois' internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal contt'Ol over fmancial 1'ep011ing and compliance and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide au opinion on the internal control over fmancial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral pert of an 
audit perfunned in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the City of Lincoln, Illinois' lntemal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Certified Public Accountants 
Springfield, Illinois 

November 20, 2019 
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LORJ K. MILOSEVICI{, C.P.A., C.F.E. 
TERRI L. PHELPS, O.P.A. 
JAMES 0, LEGG, O.P.A. 

RICHARD W. OGDEN, C-P.A. 

Estes, Bridgewater & Ogden 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

901 South Second Street 
Spttngfleld, llBnots 82704 

217/521J..8473 
Fax 217/528-8506 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATrERS BASED ON AN 
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITII GOVBRNMJJNT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor 
And City Council 

City of Lincoln, Illinois 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicahle·to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United Sta~, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lincoln, Illinois as of and for the year ended April 30, 2019, and the 
related notes to the .financial statements, which collectively compl'ise the City of Lincoln, Illinois' basic fmancial statements 
and have issued our report thereon dated November 20, 2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and perfonning OUT audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Lincoln, Illinois' internal control 
over fmancial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit pmcedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
putpose of expressing om opinions on the financial statements, but not fol• the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of Lincoln, Illinois' internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the City of Lincoln, Illinois' internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design 01· operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in 
the nonnal cout'Se of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A 
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and coJTeeted on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal con1ro1 that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those chat·ged with governance. 

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpo~ described in the first paragraph of this section and would 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. 
Given these limitations, during our au~it we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining 1-easonable assurance about whether the City of Lincoln. Illinois' financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, wo performed tests of its compliance with ce11ain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to bo reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of 
that testin& and not to provide an opinion of the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control or on compliance. This report is 
an integral part of an audit perfonned in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal 
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communicatlon ls not suitable for any other purpose. 

Certified Public Accountants 
Springfield, Illinois 

November 20, 2019 

5 



City of Lincoln, Illinois 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

April 30, 2019 

Thel'e are no fmdings to report at April 30, 2019. 
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City of Lincoln, Illinois 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

Prior Year Findings 
April 30, 2019 

There were no findings to report at April 30, 2018. 
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City of Lincoln. llUnois 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

April 30, 2019 

Prim!!(Y Government 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents ................................................................................ .. 
Restricted CBSb and c:ash equivalents .......................... , .............................. _ ... ,. 
Jnvesbllents ........ a •• , ... ,, . ........................ , ............ ,,,. ..... , •• ,,,.., .......................... ""''' 

Accounts receivable .......................................................................................... . 
1ixes rcc:clvable .......... H•••••••••H••••••HHlltHllltlllH••tt•••••H•••••H•••••···················· .. ••••• 
Pre.paid el'J>eltSe$,,, .......... , .. ,,,, .... ,,,,,, ....... ,,,, .. ,,,,,,,..,, ... ,,, ........ ,.,, .. ,, .. ,,,,,, ........ , ... ,, 

Due fiom other governments ............................................................................ . 

Total Current Assets ................................................................................ .. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 
Capital assets, not being depredated ................................................................. . 
PlOJ>CdY a1td C(JuJptnent .................... ,.,,, ...... .................................. , .................. . 
Utility systems ................................................................................................... . 

Total Cost ofCapilal Assets .................................................................... .. 
~s accumulataf depreciatk>n. .................... , ..................................... , ............... .. 

Net Capital Assets .................................................................................... .. 

TOTAL ASSETS ............................................................. , ....................................... . 

DEFERREDOUTFWWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions ............................................................ . 

Lioblllties and Net Position 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Acicounts payable ............ 1 ............................................... 0•••······························ 
Current portion-bonds payable ....................................................................... . 
Current portion - loans payable ....................................................................... .. 

Total Current Uabilities ................................ ............................................ . 

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 
Notes and bonds payable (less current portion) ............................................... .. 
Loans payable (less current portion) ................................................................ .. 
Net pension liability ......................................................................................... .. 
OPED obligation ............................................................................................... . 
'Bond pretnilD11111r111f1U t oo•111u111u1n .. t1UllUl1tee1t•U•Olt 11et1 I •••••• •tt HO rttffl I U lt•I ••H•IUftll'I , .. 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities ...................................................................... . 

TOTAL IJABIInlES ................................ ., ................................. , ... , ..................... . 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RfSOURCES 
Dcibrred inflows related to pensions ................................................................. . 
Unearned revenues-property taxes ................................................................. . 
Unearned revenues- other ................................................................................ . 

Total Deferred Inflows ofResources ........................................................ . 

NET POSITION 
Net investment In caplt11l assets. ....................................................................... .. 
Rcs1rlcted9<11 ...................... ,. ................................................................... ,. ................ . 
Unrestricted ..................................... , ...................... , .......... ,. .................. , ............ . 

TOTAL NET POSITION ...................................................................................... .. 

Govenunental Business-Type 
Activities Activilies 

$ J,SJS,178 
274,180 
S39,033 

1,861,SSO 
l,504 

1.599.178 

7.810.623 

273,415 
39,109,412 

39,387,827 
( 14.l 12.0SJ) 

2S.21S.174 

33.()86,397 

6,218.74~ 

83,687 
444,000 
239.832 

767.519 

4,81S,fl00 
1,063,876 

34,750,347 
7,094,421 

fl.723,644 

48.491.163 

6,526,401 
l,861,S50 

3.875 

8.391.826 

18,812,356 
274,180 

( 36.664.382) 

(Stzsns46) 

$ 1,797,197 
272,505 

870,002 

2.939,704 

17.660,849 
17,660,849 

( 10.()47.888) 

7.612.961 

10.552.()65 

565,000 
100.245 

665.245 

2,2SO,OOO 
102,881 

S4,,126 

2.407.007 

3.072.252 

4,540,709 
272,505 

2.667.199 

$ 7480.411 

The l()C()lnpmtying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 

Statement 1 

Total 

$ 5,332,37S 
546,68S 
539,033 
s10.002 

1,861,SSO 
l.S04 

1.599.178 

10.750.327 

278,415 
39,109,412 
17.660.849 
57,048,676 

( 24.159.941) 

32,888,735 

43.639,062 

6.218.74§ 

83,687 
1,009,000 

340.077 

1.432,764 

7,065,000 
1,166,757 

34,750,347 
7,094,421 

54,12§ 

50.130.651 

51.563,415 

6,526,401 
l,861,550 

3.875 

8.391&26 

23,3S3,06S 
546,685 

( 33.997.183.) 

($1009M33) 
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FlJNCl10NS/PROGRAM$: 
Primary Government: 

Govemmc::ntal activities: 
Gellend govennnent. ..• -··-·--····--·--··--· 
Public safety·-·--····-···---·····-···-········· 
Economic developmeot ...... ···-·-··-·-·-.. ·····-·· 
Publicworks .. -·--·-··-·-····---·--
Interest on long-tam debt ........ ·-··-·····--··-·· 

Total govcmmenlaJ activities·····-·········· 

Busine.w-type activities: 

Expenses 

(S 3,122,057) 
( 5,187.122) 
( 10,000) 
( 2.753,384) 
( 217.265) 
( 11.289.828> 

Cify of Lincoln, Illinois 
STATEMENT OF ACl'IVITIES 
For the Year F.nded April 30, 2019 

Qwgesfor 
~ 

s 553,915 
133,757 

281..m 

Pmmrn_~ 
Operating 
Grants and 

Omtributions 

$ -
33,405 

368,178 

4QLS8l 

Capital 
Grants and 

Con!ributkms 

$ --
. 

-

- Sewer Utility-------·-········-···--· c 2.449.srn 

($13 739 495> 

3.835.315 

Total Primaey Government .................................. . $ 4.522,987 s 401.m 

General rcvmu.es: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes. levied for general purposes 
R.eplaccmcnttaxes 
Road azid bridge taxes 
Sales and use taxes 
Income 'laxes 
Telecommunications taxes 
Utility taxes 
Video gaming taxes 
Hote11rnotel taxes 
Other taxes 

Interest income 
Transfi:r 1o Police and FR Pemion - F"iduciaiy Funds 
Refi.Ulds and n:imburseme:a1s 
Gain on sale of fixed assets 
Other income 

Total general revenues 

Change in net positica 

Net Position - Beginning 
Prior Period Adjusanent furGASB 75 - Note 13 

Net Position - Boding 

The aocomp8DYing notes~ an integral part of the financial statements 

Statement2 

Net (Expmse) Revaiue 
d.Oiansres inNctPosition 

Govemmemal 
Actiyitj§ 

($ 2.568.142) 
( 5,019,960) 
( 10,000) 
( 2,385,206) 
( 217..265'1 
( .lil.200..S'.73) 

c 10.20osm 

977,488 
171,445 
76!)55 

4,065,981 
1,297.054 

259,.353 
658,509 
296,843 
196,173 
26,099 
13,163 

189,000) 
i1s.m 

BMZ~ 
8.049.416 

( 2,151,157) 

( 9,862,431) 
( 5564.258.) 

($J:Z~ZZ.~ 

$ 

1.385.738 

1.385.738 

--
-
----
-
-
-

2,783 
--

83,000 
1!),$4 
96.357 

1,482.095 

5,998,318 
-

$. 7.4110.413 

_.Tul!! 

($ 2.S68,142) 
( 5,019,960) 
( 10,000) 
( 2.385,206) 
( 2l'l.26S) 
( 10.200,573) 

1.385.738 

( S,,814.835) 

977,488 
171,445 
16;)55 

4,065,981 
1,297,054 

259,353 
658,509 
296,343 
196,173 
26,099 
15,946 

( 189,000) 
118,878 
83,000 
91.0~2 

8.145.773 

( 669,062) 

( 3.864.113) 
( 5~64.258) 
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Statement3 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
April 30, 2019 

Other Total 
General Motor Governmental Governmental 

~ COij?Ol'ate Fuel Tax Funds Funds 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents., ............ uu ......... u .... $2,622,223 $ 378,033 $ 534,922 $3,535,178 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents ................ 255,495 18.685 274,180 
Investments .................................... ,.. .... , ..... , ....... 539,033 539,033 
Taxes receivable ......................................... u •• u 1,680,350 181,200 1,861,550 
Due fi'om other govel'nments ............................ 1,543,827 32,104 23,247 J ,599,178 
Accounts receivable ... n••••u••••••••••H••··········· .. ··•• 1.504 I.504 

TOTAL ASSETS .......... " ........................................ $§Ji42.432 $ 410.137 $ 758.854 $7,8Hl623 

Liabilities and Fund BalDnces 
LIABILITIES 

Accowits payable .......................................... u •• $ 60,933 $ $ 22,754 $ 83,687 
Deferred income ... t•••••••••·••••••••••t•••······ · · ... •••• • .. •• 1.684.225 181.200 1.865.425 

Total Liabilities ......... u ................. h ............ 1.745.158 203.954 1.949.112 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted for: 

Debt service ...................................... , ........ 18,685 18,685 
Special projects .. , ...................... re ............... 698,821 410,137 535.415 1,644,373 

Unassigned: 
General fund .............................................. 4.198.453 4.198.453 

Total Fund Balances .................................. 4.897.274 410.137 554.100 5.861.511 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $6.642.432 $ ~Ul1l37 $ '.Z~Jl54 $71810~23 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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City of Lincoln, Illinois 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENf AL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
Aprll 30, 2019 

Total Fund Balances-Total Gover1tme11tal Funds ............................................................................. u •• 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefol'e, 
are notreportOO in tile governmental funds .......................... ~ ........ u ............... , ....................... ,. ... 

Deferred outflows of l'esources related to pensions are not reported in the 
governmental funds since they do not provide current financial 1-esources ............................. .. 

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are not reported in the 
governmental funds since the do not use current financial resources ...................................... .. 

Long-tenn liabilities are not due and payable in the cun-ent period and, therefore, are not 
reported in the governmental funds: 

T.I.F. 0.0. bond payable,. ..................... ,., .............................................................. " ........ .......... . 
General Obligation bonds payable-2017 ................................................................................ .. 
General Obligati011 bonds payabJe- 2018 .......................... o .......... ......................... u .......... u ...... . 

Notes payable .............................................................................................................................. . 
Lease payable ............ J .............................................................. , .................... ,, ............................ . 

OPBB obligati.00 ................. ................. ... , ................ , .. , ................... , ... , ................................ ,, ..... . 
Net pension obligation .. , ...... , ...................................................... 4 •••••••••••••• • •• ,, ••••••• , ..................... . 

Net position of govern1nental activities ....... u ............ , ............................................................................ .. 

The aocompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

25,275.774 

6,218,746 

( 6,526,401) 

( 2,010,000) 
( 174,000) 
( 3,075,000) 
( 240,197) 
{ 1,063,511) 
( 7,094,421) 
( 34.750.347) 

($17.5TI.846) 
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City of Lincoln. llllnois 
STATEMENT OFREVENUESi EXPENDITURES.AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended Aprll 30, 2019 

REVENUES: 
Property taxes, ........................................... " ............. ., ......... . 
Rqllacement taxes ....................... ,, .. ,,,,,, ............. u ........... .. 

Road and bridge taxes .......................... " .......................... . 
Sales, and use taxes ....... u"., .. ,, .. ,,_,,, ................ ., ............... . 
Income taxes, .......................................................... n ........ . 

Motor fuel taxes ............................ " ................... " ............ . 
Telecommunications taxes ................... " .................. ~ ..... .. 
Hotel/motel taxes ............................................................. .. 
Utility taxes ...................................................................... . 
Vtd.eo gainl11& tax:es ...... " ....................................... ., .. ,U"''' 

0th.er taxes ........................................ , ................................ .. 
l1ttcrest Income ..•........ u ................... ....... .................. _,.,, ,,, , 

Cliarges for Ber'Vlces .................................... _ ................... .. 
Fines and rorlbltures ........................................................ .. 
Llcenses and pennits ....................................................... .. 
Refunds and reimbursements ........................................... . 
Miscellmcous. .................................................................... . 

Tcital Revenues ... - .................................................. . 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

General Government ................................................ . 
Public safety ............................................................. . 
Publio works ........................................................... .. 
B<:onomio Development. .......................................... . 
Capital prqjects ........................................................ . 

Debt service: 
Prhtcipal .................................................................. .. 
lntere.st ............... ,.,.,, .. ,,,,, ,,,,,.u ...... ,,., •• ,,,, .. h••••H•••••••• 

Capital outlay ................................................................... . 

Total Bxpendltures ................................................... . 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVEN~ OVER 
EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES (USES)"'""'""'""""""'"""' 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Opcmting transfers In .... , .................................................. . 
Operating tnmsfers (out) ................................................. .. 
Grant proceeds ................................................................ .. 
Loat1'Bol1d pt<M:ee<ls .... , .. , ......................... ,.,,,, ... ,,,,"''''''''" 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ..................... . 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES ................... _ .. _, .. 

FUND BALANCB - BEGINNING ............... ~ ...................... .. 

FUND BALANCE.-ENDING .................................. ~ ............ . 

General 
COQlOl8lC 

$ 662,277 
171,44S 
16:JSS 

4,065,981 
1,297,054 

259,353 

658,509 
296,843 
26,099 
11,310 

303,355 
104,260 
97,325 

t 18,878 
69)672 

8.219,316 

2,232,469 
3,507,306 
l,o75,l56 

632,386 

195,000 
92,434 

U>49.816 

9.784.567 

( 1.S6S.251) 

12,919 
494,86S) 
29,947 
60.000 

( 391.999) 

( 1,957,l!O) 

6,854.524 

$4_,897,274 

$ 

Motor 
Fuel Tax 

368,178 

658 

368,836 

448,151 

448JSI 

( 79.JlSl 

100,033 
12,919) 

87.114 

7,799 

402,338 

$ 410,137 

The accompanying notes ere en integral part of the financial statements. 

Olher 
Governmental 

Fynds 

$ 3JS,211 

196,173 

1,195 
1S3,23S 

10.802 

676Ji16 

209,098 

10,000 

451,013 
124,831 

t,l~M07 

1~8.,349 

( 1.271.733) 

205,832 

l,12~. 107 

l,JJ0.239 

59,106 

194,894 

$ 5~100 

Statement4 

Total 
Govemmcntul 

Funds 

$ 977,488 
171,445 
76,955 

4,065,981 
1,297,0~ 

368,178 
259,353 
196,173 
658,509 
296,843 
26,099 
13,163 

4S6,S90 
104,260 
97,325 

118,873 
80.474 

9.264,,768 

2,441,S67 
3,507,306 
1,523,307 

10,000 
632,386 

646,013 
217,265 

3.203,22~ 

12,181,067 

( 2.916.299) 

318,784 
( 507,784) 

29,947 
1,185,IOZ 

l,026,054 

( I ,89(),145) 

7,7~1.7S6 

$ ~!lfil1SU 
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City ofLinooln. Illinois 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES lN FUND BALANCES TO THE 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

April 30, 2019 

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds ....................................................................... . 

Amounts l'eported for governmental activities ht the statement of activities are different because: 

Oovemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of 
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported 
as depreciation expense. The following is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded 
depreciation in the current year: 

Capital Outlays ......... fl· ................. . . ......................... . . .............. t ................................. ............ . . . . . ... . 

Depreciatioo .................... .. ......................................................................................................... . 

The (increase) in OPEB obligation resulting from annual required contributions in excess of 
the con1ributions do not require the use of cun-ent financial resolll'ces and, therefore, 
is 11ot reported as expenditut'eS in t11e funds ......................................... " .... u ...................... ........ . 

Some expenses repo11ed in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditul'es in the governmental fundS! 

Net Pension Liability/Deferred Outflows/Inflows .................................................................... . 

111e issuance oflong-teim debt (e.g. bonds, loans, leases) provides current financial resources to 
govemmental fw1ds, while the repayment of the principal of Jong-term debt consumes the 
cua·rent financial resources of governme11tal funds. Neither transaction, however, has any 
effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of pl'emiums, discounts 
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts a1-e deferred and 
amortized in the statement of activities. In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on 
outstanding bonds, whereas in the governmental funds an interest expenditure is repol'ted 
whe11 due. The following is the detail of the net effect of these differences in the treatment 
oflong-term debt and related items: 

Repayment of G.O. bonds payable ................. , ...................................................................... , ... . 
Repaynient of capital lease ...... , .................... t . . ..... . ....... ...... .. ..... . . . . . . . ...... . ......... ..... . . . ...... . ....... . ... . 

Repaynie11t of notes pa.yable ....................................................... , ............................................... . 
Capital lease proceeds-fire buck ............................................................................................... . 
Wan proceecls - land ........................................... , ..................................................................... . 

Change in net position of governmental activities ............ .... ,. ...... .......... ,.u ...... ......... .... . .................... ....... . 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

($1,890,245) 

3,203,224 
( 1,116,415) 

( 366,246) 

( 1,442,381) 

463,000 
61,596 

121,417 
( 1,125,107) 
( 60.000) 

($2.151.157) 
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CURRENT ASSETS 

City of Lincoln, Illinois 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
/ April 30, 2019 
I 
i 
' 

Cash and cash equivalents .. , .............................................................................................................. . 
Restricted ca.sh and casl1 equivalents ................................................................................................. . 
Accounts .receivable ••.•..••.•.....•...............•................ , ....................•............................•....•.•................. 

Total Curt'ent Assets ,,,.,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,.,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, .. ,,,.,,, .. u,,,,,,,, ,,,,,,,,,.,,, ,,,, ,,,,,,,,,,u ••• ,,.,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,. ,,, .. , 

CAPITAL ASSETS 
Sewerage system ....•..•..•......•.........•. , ..................... ~····· ············ ····· ······· ................................................ . 
Less: Accumulated depi-eciation .•... , ......• , •..•.•...•.•...•..............•.....••.•....•..•..•..•.....•... u•••···················· 

Net Capital Assets ...... ....................................................... , ......•........... , ................. , .............••.•..•. 

TOTAL ASSE'I'S ........... , ............... n.11+u•••···························•·n••••···········•t•••••······ ·•11 •••n•t• llll• ••••••············ 

Liabilities and Net Position 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Notes and bonds payable - current portion ...................................................................................... . 
Loan payable-cunent portio11 .................................................... L ........................ .............. u••••·········· 

Total Cun-ent Liabilities., .•....••........•.......•.••..........•..•.•.........• ,, .....................•. ..•.... , ....•..............•.....•. 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Note-sand bonds payable (Jess current portion) ................................................ u .................... ............ . 

Bond preanium •••••.....••••.•................••........• , ...........•......... ...•..•...................................•.•.•....•.............. 
~an payable(less current portion) ..................................................•................................................ 

Total .1.4tg-Te11tl Liabilities ......................................................................................... , •.•...•.•.•.• 

TOT.AI., LIAB.R.,ITIES ........................................... , .. u ...... . . .... ................ .......... , • ••• •••••••••••••••• • • • •••• •• 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets .......•.•.••...•. , •..........•.................................... , ..•...............•....•............. 
Restricted ............................................................................................................................................ . 
U11restricted ...•...••..•........•.................. ..................••.•........•....•........................................••.........•.•..•.•.• 

TOT AL NET POSMON ............................................................................................................... . 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

Statement 5 

Sewer 
Fund 

$ 1,797,197 
272,SOS 
870.002 

2.939,704 

17,660.849 
( 10.047.888} 

7.612.961 

10.552.665 

565,000 
100.245 

665.245 

2,250,000 
54,126 

102.881 

2.407.007 

3.072.252 

4,540,709 
272,505 

2.667.199 

$ 7.480.413 
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OPERATING REVENUES 

City of Lincoln, Illinois 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 

CHANGES IN NET POSmON 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2019 

Ch•ges fut• serv-ices ................................................................................................ , ••.• "., .••••.••••••.... •• 
Otl1er income ........•............•.•......•.........•...•....•..•.•..•........•..•...•....•.•••.....•...................•.....•......•.......•..• 

Total Oper-ating Revenues •........•..•...... , •....•......•..•............•.................•...........•..•.........•...........••. 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Personnel seivice .............................................................................................................................. . 
Contractllal maintenance .... , ......•.•............ ,,, .............•..••. l •• , ...................................................... ~ •••••••• 
Other fees and cl1arges ...•...•.......•...••......••..•..• ...•...•.......••..•.•••••...•.•...•.•.•...........•..•.........•.•••........•...•.. 
Depreciation ........................................................................................................................... u ••••• • •••• 

Repait"s attd maintenance •.....•..........•.•..••..............................••.........•..••.............•..•..........••.•.............. 
Office suppJies-..••..•..•.••.•.• ,, ............................................... .................................................................. . 
Postage ......................................................................................... , ......................................... , ............ . 
Telephone ...............•.....•••.......•..............•......•.......... , ............................................................................ . 
Insumnce ................... , .................................................................................................................... , .. . 
F 'I' 'I' ' ac1 tfy uti 1t1es .•.•..••..• , ..................................................................................................................... . 

Total Ope.rating Bx.penses .................................................................................................. ~····· ·· ·· 

Net Operating In.come .. , ................ , ............................................................................................ . 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest income ................................. , .. , ............... , ............................................................................... . 
Intet-est (expense) .............................................................................................................. ,. ................ . 
Gain (loss) on sale of asset ••...•.•.•.•...... ., ............... , .......................................................... , .........•..•....• 
Operating trarasfers in ............................................................................... , ........................................ . 
Ope11ating transfm (out) ........................................................................ , ........... , ...•...........•.......•.......•. 

Total Nonoperating (.Ex.pe11ses) .................................................. u••••••····•••1••···························"· 
NET CllANGE :IN' NET POSITION ..........•...•.......... , ........................•................................. , ............. . 

NET rosmoN • BEGINNING ..•.......................•.......... , ....................................................................... . 

NE'f POSITION - ENDJN'G ................................................................................................................. . 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

Statement6 

Sewer 
Fund 

$ 3,835,315 
10.574 

3.845.889 

81,845 
1,349,539 

27,160 
549,552 
67,542 
10,041 
23,988 

763 
4,376 

255.142 

2.369.948 

I.475.941 

2,783 
{ 79,629) 

83,000 
639,775 

{ 639.775) 

6.154 

1,482,095 

S.998.318 

$ 7.480413 
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City of Lincoln, IUinois 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the Year Bnded April 30, 2019 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Collections fi~m customCl'S ..•.•..•.•............•.....................•...........•.....•. ..•...... ., .•....•.•. , .•.............•.......••. 
Od1ei- inco1110 .................................................................................................................................... . 
Payrne11ts for persom1el services ....................... ,. ........ u ..................................... u ... u ......... u ............. .. 

Payments for goods and seivices ............... ................................................ , ...................................... . 

Net cash provided by (used fol') operating activities ................................................................. . 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPlTAL FINANCING ACTIVI11ES 
Operating transfers in ......................................................... ,a. •• , •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• ., •••••••••••• , ••••• , •.•••• 

Operati11gtransfers (out) .••••.....•.•.•.••.•.•.••.•.•.•. ..•••.•...•....•.•....•..•........•.•••.•.•.•.•....•...•••.•.•.•••...••.••.........• 

Net cash provided by (used fo1~ noncapital financing activities ............................. ................. .. 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITW 
Acquisition and constl'uction of capital assets ................................................................................ .. 
Pr<>eeeds from sale of capital assets .................................................................................................. . 
Principal paid on bonds ......................................................................................................... " ......... . 
Interest paid on bonds ................................................. u ....................... ............... .... . . " ............. ........... . 

Pl'Oceeds ~m loans ............................ ........................................................... , ..•.•..•............•.•... ,, ..... . 
Principal paid on loans ...................................................................................................................... . 
Inte.rest paid on loans •.. .•.••............•.............•...•.......... 4, ••• , ••••••••••••• ••••••• ••••••••• ••••• •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and l'clated fmancing activities .................................. . 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest inc001e ............................................................................................ , .•••. ..••••••..•......•...•.......•.. 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .................................. . 

CASH AND CASH EQUIV ALENfS - BBOIN'NIN"0 .................. 4,~·········· ·· ······ ·· · · ······························· 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-ENDIN'G ...... " .............................. " ..................................... . 

Statement? 

Sewer 
Fund 

$ 3,521,567 
10,574 

( 81,845) 
( I. 749.136) 

1.701.160 

639,775 
( 639.775) 

( I,160,476) 
83,000 

( 555,000) 
( 84,025) 

301,585 
( 98,459) 
( 6.428) 

( 1.519.803) 

2.783 

184,140 

1.885.562 

$ 2dl62.'.Z02 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) 
OPERATING ACTIVITmS: 

Operating incotne (loss) ............... "' ...................................... ............................................................ "' 
Adjustment to reconcile operating income (Joss) to cash provided by (llsed fol') operating activities: 

Depreciation ....................................................................................................... "., .................... . 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in accounts receiwble ............... ,. ....................................................... .. 
(Increase) decrease in accounts payable ........................ f ...... "'"'""'"'"'····"'"o""'''~ · ......... .,,,,, 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities ................................................................ .. 

The accompanying notes are an integral prut of the financial statements. 

$ 1,475,941 

549,552 

( 313,748) 
( 10.585) 

$ l.7Ql.160 
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City of Lincolnt Illinois 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
April 30t 2019 

Pension Tmst Funds 

Cash and ca.sh equivale11ts .... " ... J ........ .............. ................ uu11uu1•u••••• 

Investlncnts ........ , .. , .... ........................................................................ . 
Accrued income ................................................................................. . 

TOT~ ASSE'l'S ................................................... " ........................ . 

Liabilities and Net Position 

Police Firefighters' 
Pensio11 Pension 

$ 120,471 
10,059,096 

33.289 

$10,212,856 

$ 110,674 
5,875,229 

27.530 

$ 6,013,433 

Statement 8 

Total 

$ 23lt145 
15,934,325 

60.819 

$16.226,289 

LIAB..il.JITIES ........... IU•••······················~· ·······'························"'"' , ..... . $ $ $ __ _ 

NET POSITION 
Reserved for employee retit'ement commitments ..................... .. 10.212.856 6.013.433 16.226,289 

TOT~ LIABILITIF8 ANI> NET POSITION .......................... .. $10.212,856 $ 6.013.433 $16,226,289 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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City of Lincoln, Illinois 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

ADDmONS 
Contributions: 

April 30, 2019 

EtnpJoyer-property tax.es ...................................... .............. . 
Etnployer- replacement taxes ............................................. . 
Employer- utility ta.xes ............. ., ...... .,. ................ ., ............... . 
Etnployee ............ , ................................................. u .... . . . ...... . 

lttvesttnent income ...................................................................... . 
Unrealizecl gains 011 investments ...... u .................. . ................ . .. u. 

Realized gains (losses) on investments ...................................... . 
Tra11Sfer In ............................... , ......... , ............................................ . 

Total Additions ................................................ , ................... . 

DEDUCTIONS 
Benefit payments ................... , ... ~ ..... , ...................................... , ... . 
Administrative expenses ......................... , ................................... . 

To1al Deductions ................................. , .. , ............................. . 

NET IN"CR.EASE (DECREASE) ................ ,.,,.,,, ........... ,,.,, ....... , .... . 

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR 
PENSION BENEFITS - BEGINNING OF YEAR ................. .. 

NET POSmONHELD IN TRUST FOR 
PENSION BENEFITS-END OF YEAR ............................ .. 

Pension Trust Funds 
Police Firefighters' 
Pens!Qn Pension 

$ 482,337 $ 
57,887 

124,667 
350,310 
545,625 
155,976 
54,863 ( 
83.000 

1.854.665 

1,323,623 
35.583 

1.359.206 

495,459 ( 

9.717,397 

442,102 
53,587 

152,370 
J 18,570 
146,91 l 
119,179 

14,761) 
106.000 

1,123~258 

1,152,411 
61.343 

1.213.754 

89,796) 

6.103.229 

$.lilJli..856 s 6JU3d33 

The accompanying notes are an integ1·al part of the financial statements. 

Statement9 

Total 

$ 924,439 
111,474 
277,037 
468,880 
692,536 
275tl55 
40,102 

189.000 

2i978~623 

2,476,034 
96.926 

2.572,960 

405,663 

15.820.626 

$16~6.282 
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City of Lincoln, IJlinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENI'S 

April 30, 2019 

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Lincoln, Illinois (the "City") was incorporated on February 16, 1865. The City operates under a Council-Mayo1· 
fonn of government and provides the following sel'vices as authotized by its charter: general government, public safety and 
public works. 

The basic financial statements of the City have been prepared in confol'mity with accounting pl'inciples genendly accepted in 
the United States of America, as applied to government units (hereinafter referred to as generally accepted accounting 
pl'inciples (GAAP)). The Oovemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial repoiting principles. The mo1·e significant of the City's accounting 
policies are described below. 

A. - Financial Reporting Entity 

TI1e financial reporting entity includes its governing boal'd and all related organi7.ations for which the City exercises oversight 
responsibility. 

The City has deveJoped cl'iterla to determine whether outside agencies wid1 activities which benefit the citizens of the City · 
should be included within its financial 1-eporting entity. The criteria includes, but is not limited to, whether the City exercises 
oversight responsibility (which includes financial interdependency, selection of governing authority. designation of 
manageinent, ability to significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal matters), scope of and special financing 
relationships. 

The City has det~mined that no other outside agency meets the above criteria. In addition, the City is not aware of any entity 
which would exercise such oversight on it in a manner in which the City would be considered its component unit. 

B. -Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statements of net position and the statement of changes in net position) 
report info1mation on all of the nonfiduciary activities _of the primary government. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or seg111ent is offset by 
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program 
revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit ftom goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment Other items not property included among program 
revenues are 1-eported instead as general revenues. Major individual goven1mental funds are reported as separate columns in 
the fund financial statements. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiducial'y funds. 
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City of Lincoln, Illinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 2019 

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNJFICANT ACC01JNTIN9 POLICIES, (CQNTINUED) 

C. - Measurement Focus. B~i~ of Accounting. and Financial Stateme11t Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are repotted using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis 
of accounting, as are the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Pl'Ope11y taxes are 
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are intended to finance. Grants and similat• items a1e recognized as revenue 
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Jn determining when to recognize 
intergovemmental revenue (grants and sha1·ed revenue), the legal and contractual requirements of the individual programs are 
used as guidance. 1bere are, however, essentially two bases fo1· this revenue recognition. In one, monies are virtually 
uttrestl'icted as to the purpose of expenditure and are nearly in-evocable; theref01-e, these amounts are recognized as revenue at 
the time of their receipt or eal'lier if they meet the criteria of availability. ht the other, monies must be expended 011 the 
specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid to the City; therefore, revenue is recognized b~ upon the 
expenditures recorded. 

Governmental fund financial statements are repotted using the cur.rent financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as they al'e both measurable and available. Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collectible withln the current period, or soon enough thereafter to pay current 
liabilities. The City considers revenues to be available if they are collect.ed within 60 days of the end of the cuJTent fiscal 
period, except for sales and telecommunication taxes collected within 90 days. Expenditures generally are recorded when a 
liability is incutred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures relating to 
compensated absences, ~recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, sales taxes, telecommunications taxes, licenses and pem1its, cbal'ges for services) fines and forfeits) 
misceJlaneous revenues and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrua I and 
so have been recogni7.cd as revenues of the current fiscal period. Personal property replacement taxes are considered to be 
measurable when they have been collected and allocated by the state and are recognized as revenue at that time. All other 
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City. 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds or accounts grou~, each of which is considered a separate 
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts dlftt comprise 
its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures, or expenses, as appropriatt:. Govemme11t resources are allocated 
to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the pmposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which 
spending activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped into generic fund types and broad fund categories. 

Major funds are funds whose revenues, expenditures/expenses, assets, or liabilities (ex.eluding extraordinary items) are at least 
100/0 of corresponding totals for all govemmental or enterprise funds and at least 5% of the aggregate amount for all 
governmental and enterprise funds. The identification and separate reporting of major funds serves to highlight financial 
activities which may be particularly jmpo1tant to financial statement users. Non-major funds are reported in aggregate in a 
separate column in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenuest Expenditures, and Changes itt Fund Balance 

The following fund types and account gl'Oups are used by the City: 
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City of Uncoln, Illinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 2019 

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFlCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CCONTINUEDl 

D. - Fund Accounting, (Continued) 

Govei·nment Fund Types 

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functlons of dte City are financed. The acquisition, use and 
balances of the City's expendable financial resources and the related liabilities are accounted for through governmental funds. 

Genera) Coworate Fund 

The General Corporate Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial 
resources ~pt those required to be accounted for in another fund. It includes general administration as well 
as the Special Fire Department, Police Task Force, DARE, Dl'Ug Forfeiture, DUI, and ERT Programs. The 
General Fund is a major fund. 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue Funds qre used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than special 
assessments, expei1dable trust, or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
specified purposes. The following Special Revenue Funds are maintained by the City: 

The Motor Fuel Tax Fund receives and expends the City's allocations of the highway user revenue 
money. TI1e amount available is alJocated on a populatlon basis, which is detennined by the latest 
federal census. Money allocated to this fund must be used for street construction, reconstruction, and 
maintenance. The Motor Fuel Tax Fund is a major fund. 

The TIF District Fund is used to account for the activities relating to the Tax Increment Financing 
District. The TIF District Fund is a major fond. 

The Revolving Loan Fund accounts for the Community Block Grant the City received. The Grant is 
to be used for the purpose of providing financial assistance to local businesses as approved by the 
Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity. 

Library Parking Lot - used to account for funding for parking lot 

New City Ga1'8ge - used to account for funds used foi· new gai·age 

Hotel/Motel Tax - used to account for taxes received. 

Internal Service Fund 

The Equipment Rental Fund provides servioes to all funds 011 a fee basis. 

Debt Service Funds 

The Debt Service Funds are used to accO\mt for the accumulation of resources for, and payment of, general 
long~term debt principal, interest, and related costs. 
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City of Lincoln. Il1inois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Apl'il 30, 2019 

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOJJNTING POLICIES, CCONfINUED) 

D. - Fund Accounting. (Continued) 

Capital Projects Fund 

The Capital Project Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and payment of, 
const&'Uction projects other dian those for proprietary fund const111ction. 

Proprieta1:y Fund Types 

Sewer Fund 

The Sewer Fund is used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a mannet• similar to 
that of private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing the 
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user 
charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic deteamination of revenues eamed. 
expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management 
control, accountability, 01· other purposes. Grants and interest income are considered as non-operating 
revenues for proprietary funds. The Sewer Fund is a major fund. 

The Sewer Operations and Maintenance Fund accounts for the operation of the sewer system for the City. 

The Contingency and Depreciation Fund is requ~ to accumulate money for replacements aud repair& to the 
system as may be necessary for the continued effective and efficient operation of the system. 

Fiduciary Fund Types 

Fiduciary Funds are used to accou11t for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, othe1' governments, or other funds. The following Fiduciary Funds are maintained by the City: 

The Police Pension Fund receives contributions for participants of the plan from the City as well as the 
pension fund participants cummtly employed by the City. TI1e fund accounts fur the assets held in trust to be 
used for payment or retirement benefits. 

The Firefighters' Pension Fund receives contributions for participants of the plan from the City as well as the 
pension fund participants currently employed by the City. The fund accounts for the ftSSets held in trust to be 
used for payment or retirement benefits. 

E. - Revenues - Exchange and Non-Ex.change Tl'ansactions 

Revenue resulting ftom exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on 
the acctual basis when the exchange takes pla<:o. Non-exchange transactions, in which the City receives value without directly 
giving value in return, include grants and donations. On the accrual basist revenue from grants and donations is recognized 
when received and eligibilicy requirements have been satisfied. 
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City of Lincoln, Illinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 2019 

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CCONIINUEDl 

F. - lnterfuod Transactions 

During the course of no1mal operations, the City has numel'ous transactions between funds. nansfers are repo11ed as "Other 
Financing Sources and Uses" in the governmental funds, as ''Transfers In" by the recipient fund, and 11Transfers Out" by the 
disbursing fund. 

On the governmental funds balance sheet, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are classified as 
"interfund loan receivable/payables.'' These amounts are eliminated on the statement of net position. 

G. - Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows fo1· proprietary and similar fund types, the City considers highly liquid investments 
to be cash equivalents if they have a maturity of three months or less when purchased. 

Separate bank accounts al'e not maintained for all City funds instead, certain funds maintain their uninvested cash balances in a 
common checking account, with acc0W1ting records being maintained to show the po1tion of the common bank account 
balance attributable to each participating fund. 

H. -Capital Assets 

General capital assets generally ~ult fi'Om expenditut-es in the governmental funds. These assets are reported on the 
government-wide statement of net position but are not reported in the fund financial statements. 

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements during the year. 
The City maintains a capitaliz.ation threshold of $2,500. Improvements a1-e capitalized; the cost of normal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the asset's life are not. Depreciation is computed on the 
straight line basis over a period of from S to 40 years based 011 asset class. 

I. - Compensated Absences 

The City does not record compensatory time for sick and vacation time. 

J. - Intergovernmental Revenues 

For governmental funds, intergovernmental revenues, such as contributions awarded on a non-reimbursement basis, are 
recorded when earned by the City. 

23 



City of Lincoln, Illinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Apl'il 30, 2019 

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED) 

K. - Fund Balance/Net Position 

Government-Wide Stateme11ts: 

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in tlu-oo components: 

a. Net Investment in capital assets- Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets net of accumulated 
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets. 

b. Restricted net position - Consist of net position with constraints placed on the use either by 1) external groups such as 
creditors, grantors, contributors or Jaws or regulations of othel' govemments, 01· 2) law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 

c. Unrestricted net position - All other net position that do not meet the definition of "resa·icted" or "net investment in 
capital assets.,, 

It is the City's policy to first use restricted net position prior to the use of unrestricted net position when an expense is incurred 
for purposes fur which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

Governmental fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned. Nonspendable 
fund balance cannot be spent because of its form. Restl'icted fund balance has limitations imposed by creditors, grantors, or 
conttibutors or by enabling legisJation or constitutional provisions. Committed fund balance is a limitation imposed by the 
City Council through approval of resolutions. Committed fund balance can be assigned for other uses only by similar action 
of the City Council. Assigned fund balances is a limitation imposed by a designee of the City Councl1. Unassigned fund 
balance in the General Fund is the net resources in excess of what can be properly classified in one of the above four 
categories. 

Proprietary fund net position is classified the same as in the government-wide statements. 

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted {committed, assigned, or unassigned) 
amounts are available, it is the policy of the City to generally consider restricted amounts to have been reduced first. When an 
expenditure is incum:d for put·poses for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used, it 
is the policy of the city that committed amounts would be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned 
amounts. In both instan~, when a proposed expenditure is made with specific balances identified as the source of the 
funding, that specific fund balance will be used. 

L. - Estimates 

The preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America that requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in tile financial 
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 
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City of Lincoln, Illinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 2019 

NOTE 1-SJJ.MMARY OF SIGNiflCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. <CONTINUED) 

M. - Budgets and Budgetazy Accounting 

The City foUows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in d1e financial statements: 

J. In April each year, die Finance Committee of the City Council submits to the City Cou11cil a proposed 
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing that May I . 

2. A copy of the proposed budget is placed on file with the City Clerk and a date for public hearings is 
announced. 

3. The budget is passed by City Council. 
4. The appropriation is legalJy enacted through the passage of an ordinance. 
5. After adoption of the appropriatio11, further eppropriatiollS are prohibited. Transfers from one appropriation 

of any fund to another appropriation of the same fund, not affecting the total amount appropriated, may be 
made subject to City Council approval. 

6. Fonnal budgetal'y integration is employed as management control device during the year for the General 
Fund, the Special Revenue Funds, and the Debt Service Fund. 

7. Budgets for the Genera~ Special Revem1e, and Debt Seivice Funds are adopted on a cash basis, which differs 
from the basis used for the financial statements. Budgeted amounts shown in the financial statements have 
been adjusted to reflect appropriation transfers between ce1tain expenditure categories du1iug the year; as n 
result, the final budget presented differs ftotn that which was originally adopted. 

N. - Investments 

Per Chapter30, Act235. Section 2 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes, the City of Lincoln may invest any public funds (1) in 
bonds, notes. certificates of indebtedness, treasury bills, or other securities issued, which are guaranteed by the full faith and 
credit of the United States of America as to principal and interest, or (2) in bonds, notes, debentures, or other obligations of the 
United States of Amedca 01· its agencies, or (3) in interest-bearing savings accounts, certificates of deposit or time deposits, or 
any other investments constituting direct obligations of any bank as defined by die Illinois Banking Act, or ( 4) in certain sho1t­
term obligations of corpo1'ations organized in the United States limited to the tenns set forth in Cl1apter 30, Act 235, Section 2 
of the Illinois Compiled Statutes, or (5) in money market mutual funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, 
provided that the portfolio of any such money mal'ket mutual fund is limited to obligations described in Chapter 30, Act 235, 
Section 2 of the Illinois compiled Statutes. Investments may be made only in banks insu1'ed by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
corporation (FDIC), savings and loan associations insured by the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance corporation, or credit 
unions charted under the laws of this state or the laws of the United States, provided the pl'incipal office of such credit union is 
located within the State oflllinois and the accow1ts re insured. The City follows the same investment policy fur the pension 
trust funds. Investment balances, consisting of U.S. Treasury Notes and BiHs, are stated at fair value. Assets of the different 
funds are commingled for investment purposes, where permitted, and investment earnings are prorated back to vario\ls funds 
when recognized as revenues. Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices at April 30, 20 I 9. Non­
negotiable certificates of deposit are reported at cost. 
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City of Lincoln, Illinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AprU 30, 20 J 9 

NOTE 1-SJJMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED) 

O. -Transaction Between Funds 

Transactions that would be treated as revenue, expenditures, or expenses if they involved organiz.ations exten1al to the 
governmental unit are accounted for as revenue, expenditures, or expenses in the funds involved. Transactions which 
constitute reimbu1'Sements of a fund for expenditures or expenses initially tnade fi'om that fund which are properly applicable 
to another fund are 1'eCOrded as expenditures or expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of the expenditUl'e or 
expense in the fund that is reimbursed. 

P. - Cash Flows 

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all time deposits with a maturity of less than three months as 
cash and cash equivalents. 

0. - Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds in the fund financial statements, 1011g-tenn debt and other 
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or 
propl'ietary fund statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life oftlte bonds 
using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond 
issuance costs are expensed ln the year of issuance. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recogni7.e bond premiums and discounts during the current period. 
The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as 
other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as othei· financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld ftom the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt se1vice expenditures. 

R. - Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. 
This sep1U'8te financial statement element, deferred oi1tflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies 
to a future period( s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. In addition to 
liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometim~ report a sepat'8te section for deferred inflows of resoul'ces. This 
separate financial statement element, deferred injl(JWs of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a 
tbture period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time, 
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City of Lincoln, Illinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 2019 

NOTE2-PROPERTY TAX CALENDAR 

The following information gives significant dates on the property tax calendar of the City. 

The property tax lien date is January 1, 2016. 
- The annual tax levy ordinance for 2016 taxes received dul'ing fiscal year 2019 was passed December 2016. 

The first installment of property taxes is due to the County CollecfOI• on July 1 and the second installment is due to the 
County Collector on September 1. 
Significant amounts of property taxes for 2016 were distributed to the City in July and September of 2018. 

The 2018 taxes are intended to finance the 2019 fiscal year and are not considered available for current operations and ai:e, 
therefore, shown as unavailable revenue. The 2019 tax levy has not been recorded as a receivable at April 30, 2018. 
Although the tax attached as a lien on property as of January 1, 2019, the tax will not be levied until December2019, and, 
accordingly, is not measurable at April 30~ 2019. 

NOTE 3-DEPOSITS AND JNVESTMENTS 

Following is a reoonciliation of deposits and investments as of Aplil 30, 2019: 

Statement of Net Position; 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Statement of Fiduclat')' Net Position: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Total 

Primruy 
Govemment 

$ 4,757,935 
1,126,089 

539.033 

6.423.057 

231,145 
15.934.325 

16.165.470 

$22,588.527 
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City of Lincoln, Illinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 2019 

NOTE 3-DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, CCONIINUEDl 

GOYERNMBNTALFUNDS 

A. - DEPOSITS WITII FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the event of a bank fililure, the City,s deposits 
may not be l'eturned to it. 111e government does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of April 30, 2019, $412,009 of 
the City's bank balance of $6,568,525 (total book balance was $6, 115, 169) was exposed to custodial credit 1isk. 

B. -INVESTMENTS 

The Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund (IME'I) is a governmental investment fund created under the Illinois Municipal 
Code. IMET actively manages two investment funds for municipal treasurers. Official custodians of municipal funds, and 
other public agencies in the State of Illinois. Official custodians of municipal funds, and other public agencies in the State of 
Illinois. The funds are the IMET 1-3 Year Series and the IMET Convenience Sel'ies. The 1-3 Year Funds provides the 
highest U.S. Government Securities' rating. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in the ma1·ket interest 
rates. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, die greater the sensitivity of its fafr value to changes in market 
interest rates. In accordance with the Pension Fund's investment policy, the Pension Fund limits its exposure to interest rate 
risk by strncturing the portfolio so that investments will have maturities to have available sufficient cash for all operating 
purposes. 

Cred;t risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is 
measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The Pemion Fund's 
invesbnent poHcy does not specifically address credit risk. 

Custodial credit risk for investments in the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to the investment, the IMET 
Fund will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in po~ession of an outside party. IMET 1-3 Yem· Fund 
invests exclusively in U.S. govemment backed secul'ities and pl'Ovldes the Highest U.S. Govemment Securities> rating. The 
IMBT Convenience Fund is a short-term money market instmment collateraUzed via FDIC insurance, the FHLB LOC 
Program, and Government Secw·ities at 110% on bank deposits. 

Concentration of credit ,.isk-At April 30, 2019, 100% of total investments were in Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund. 
State statutes do not Hmit the percentage of investment in the Fund, 
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City of Lincoln, Illinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 2019 

NOTE 3-DEPOSttS AND INVESTMENTS. CCONtJNUEDl 

POLICE AND FIRE PENSION FUNDS 

The City has adopted an Investment policy to invest in instruments allowed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS). The statutes 
allow pension ftmds to invest in the same securities as the City. 

A. - DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

Custodial credit risk fol' deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the event of a bank's failure, the Pension Fund's 
deposits may not be returned to them. To guard against credit risk for deposits with financial institutions the Pension Fund's 
investment policy requires a11 deposits with financial institutions in excess of feden!I depository insurance be collaterali7.ed 
and held at an independent third party institution in the name of die Police and Fire Pension Fund and evidenced by a written 
coJlateral agreement. 

B. -INVESTMENTS 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in the market interest 
rates. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market 
interest rates. In accordance with the Pension Fund's inveshnent policy, the Pension Fund limits its exposure to interest rate 
dsk by structuring the portfolio so that investments will have maturities to have available sufficient cash for alJ operating 
purposes. 

Credit risk is the 1isk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. 111is is 
measu1'ed by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The Pension Fund's 
investment policy does not specifically address ct'edit risk. 

CustotJ;aJ credit risk for investments in the risk that, in the event of the failw-e of the counterparty to the investment, the 
Pension Flmd will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in possession of an outside party. Illinois Funds 
and the open ended mutual funds are not subject to custodial credit risk. 1l1e Pension Fund's investment policy limits its 
exposure to custodial credit risk for investments by requhing the purchase of certificates of deposit from financial institutions 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Co1poration, or the National 
Credit Union Administration. 

Concentradon of credit risk- The Pension Fund places no limit on the amount the Pension Fund may invest in any one issuer. 
The Pension Fund's investments consist of certificates of deposit. mutual funds, and corporate and municipal bonds. 
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City ofLincoh1, Illinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30,2019 

NOTE 4-RESTRICTED ASSETS 

The City reports restricted cash in the Sewer Utility Fund due to the issuance of the IBP A notes in 2004 and in the Debt 
Service Fund for issuance of General Obligation (Limited Tax) Bonds issued in 2013 and various funds in the General Fund 
used for specific purposes. 

SEWER UIILITY FUND 

The note payable to the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency requires funding by the utility of certain reserve accounts. 
These reserve accounts are required to be segregated from othe1· fonds. TI1e followit1g accounts were so segregated at April 
30, 2019: 

Plant Contingency and Depreciation 
Sewer and Drainage 

Total 

$112,450 
160,055 

$272.505 

TI1e following requirements of these accounts are outlined as follows: 

Plant Cont/ngenc,y muJDepreciallon, established to accumulate funds for payment of the cost of extraordinary maintenance, 
necessary repairs and replacements, or contingencies for which no od1er funds are available. 

Sewer and.Dl'alnage, established to accumulate funds for the purpose of acquiring repairs, replacements or improvements for 
which no other funds are available. 

GENERAL FUND AND DEBT SERVICE FUND 

The General Fund bas various restricted accounts d1at are restricted for law enforcement and the fire department as well as 
other accounts. 

Police and Fire accounts 
Other 

Total 

$136,078 
119.417 

$255.49~ 

The Debt Service Fund is used to accumulate the taxes received for the payment of the bonds and used solely and only for 
paying the bonds. 

Debt Service Fund $ 18.685 
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City of Lincoln, Illinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 20 J 9 

NOTES-CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ending April 30, 2019 consists of the following: 

May 1, 
Primary Government 2018 Additions 

Governmental Ac/iv/ties: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 209,180 $ 69,235 
Construction in progress-police station, 

not being depreciated 2.000.308 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,209.488 69.235 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Land hnprovements 46,530 
Streets/I'raffic signals 4,881,640 
Building and Improvements 18,137,201 3,910,386 
Vehicles 9,530,228 1,171,369 
Equipment lJ:z.?..51~ S2,54l 
Tomi assets being depreciated 33.975.115 S.134.296 

Total capital assets 36.184.603 5,203.531 

Less total accumulated depreciation ( 12.995.638) ( 1.116.415) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 20.979.478 4.017.881 

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net $23.188966 $ 4.087.116 

Depreciation expense for tho current year is $1, I 16,415. 

Buslness-1,)pe Aclfvilies: 
capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Construction ln Progress $ 123,537 $ 77l.728 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 123.537 771.728 

Capital assets~ being depreciated: 
Utility services 2,971,603 
Building and hnprovements 7,303,860 
Equipment 5,6041723 4,163 
Vehicles 67S,4~ 38~.~8~ 
Total assets being depreciated 16.558.610 388.748 

Total capital assets 16.682.141 1.160.476 

Less total accumulated depreciation ( 9.§80,110) ( 549.552) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 6,878.500 ( 160.804) 

Business-Type Activities capital Assets, net $ 7.002.037 $ 610.924 

Depreciation expense for the current yeai• is $549,552. 

April 30, 
Deletions 2019 

$ $ 278,415 

( 2.00Q.308) 

( 2.000.308) 278.415 

46,530 
4,881,640 

22,047,587 
10,701,597 
1,436057 

39.109.412 

( 2.000.308) 39.387,827 

( 14.112.053) 

24,997.359 

($ 2.000.308) $25.275.V4 

$ $ 895.265 

895..265 

2,971,603 
7,303,860 
5,608,886 

( 181.771) lUU,2JS 
( 181J74) 16.765.584 

( 181.774) IZ660.S49 

181.TI4 ( 10.047.888) 

6,717.696 

$ $ 7,612.961 

31 



City of Lincoln, Illinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 2019 

NOTE 5-CAPll'AL ASSETS. CCONTJNUED) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the prima1y government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General govemment 
Public safety 
Public works/tl'anspo1tation 

Total depreciation expense- govemmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Sewer utility 

NOTE 6-LONG-TERM DEBT 

$ 246,549 
201,910 
667.956 

$1.116,415 

$ 549.552 

The following is a summary of the long~term debt t1'ansactions of the City for the yeal' ended April 30, 2019: 

Ma)! 11 2018 Addition~ Retirements 
Governmental Funds: 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018 $3,270,000 $ ($ 195,000) 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 347,000 ( 173,000) 
General Obligation Bond, Series 2014- TIF 2,105,000 ( 95,000) 
Note Payable - Fire Truck 125,000 ( 12,500) 
Note Payable - Equipment 111,312 ( 43,615) 
Note Payable - Police Cars 65.302 ( 65,302) 
Note Payable - Land 60,000 
Capital Lease - Fire Truck l.125.107 ( 61.596) 

$6.023.614 $J,l85.107 ($ 646.013) 

Enterprise Funds: 
General Obligation Bond, Series 2014- Sewer $3,370,000 $ ($ 555,000) 
Loan Payable - Vehicle 301.585 ( 98.459) 

$J.J:zo.oog $ 30!.~8~ ($ 65J.4S2) 

AQrH 3Q. 2019 

$3,075,000 
174,000 

2,010,000 
112,500 
67,697 

60,000 
1.063.511 

$.6.5,62.708 

$2,815,000 
203.126 

$J.01a.12~ 
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ity of Lincoln, Jllinois 
NOTES 10 BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 20 J 9 

NOTE 6-WNG-TERMDEBT. CCONTJNUED) 

Govemmental Activities: 

Genel'al Obligation (Alternate Revenue Source) Bonds. Series 2018 -The City issued $3,270,000 General Obligation 
(Altemate ~venue Source) Bonds, Series 2018, for which the proceeds will be used to pay for costs of certain capital 
expenditures related to the City,s police station as well as costs of issuance of the bonds. The bonds bear interest rates of 3-
4%. Payments will be made semiannually on June 1 and December I beginning on December 1, 2019. The maturity date is 
Decembe1· 1, 2032. 

The following is a summary of changes for the year ended Apl'il 30, 2019: 

General Obligation Bonds ~ 2018 

Balance 
April 30, 

2018 

$3.270.000 

Additions Payments; 

Balance 
April30, 
2019 

($ J 95.000) $3,075.QQO 

Future principal and inteiut payments on the General Obligation (Alternate Revenue Source) Bonds are as follows: 

Fiscal 
Year Ending Principal Interest Total 

2020 $ 175,000 $ ] 10.500 $ 285,500 
2021 180,000 105,250 285,250 
2022 185,000 99,850 284,850 
2023 195,000 94,300 289,300 
2024 200,000 88,450 288,450 

2025-2029 1,100,000 335,650 1,435,650 
2030-2033 1.040.000 101.600 1,141.600 

$3.075.00Q $ 2J~.6QO $4.Ql~~W2 

General Obligation Q.,imited Tax.) Bonds. Series 2017 - The City issued $498,000 General Obligation (Limited Tax) Bonds, 
Series 2017, for which the proceeds will be used to finance certain capital expenditures in and for the City (the "Project'1 and 
pay costs associated with the issuance of the bonds. The bonds bear interest rates of3.5%- 4% and the maturity date is 
December 1, 2019. 

11te following is a summary of changes for the year ended April 30, 2019: 

Balance Balance 
April 30, April 30, 

2018 Additions Payments 2019 

General Obligation Bonds - 201? $ HZ.QQQ $ ($ lZ3.nOO) $ lli.000 
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City of Lincoln, Illinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 2019 

NOTE 6-WNG-TER.)J DEBT, CCONTINUEDl 

Future pl'incipal and interest payments on the General Obligation {Limited Tax) Bo11ds are as follows: 

Fiscal 
Year Ending 

2020 

Principal 

$ 174.000 

Interest Total 

$ 6.260 $ 180.960 

Tax Increment Financing General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source). Series 2014 - The City issued $2,285,000 in 
bonds for the purpose to improve streets, curbs, and sidewalks and rehabilitate, reconstruct, repair or remodel existing public 
and pl'ivate buildings within the Central Business Tax lnol'ement Financing Disa·ict. TI1e City pays debt service expenditures 
from Increment property taxes collected within the Tax Increment Financing District. 

The bonds are dated September 1, 20l4 and are payable though December 1, 2034 with interest rates ranging ihim 3% to 
4.75%. 

The following is a summary of changes for the year ended April 30, 2019: 

TIF - General Obligation Bonds - 2014 

Bafanoe 
April 30, 

2018 

$2.105.000 

Additions Payments 

Balance 
Apl'il 30, 
2019 

($ 95.000) $2,0 I 0.000 

Future principal and interest payments on the Tax Incrementing Financing General Obligation Bonds are as follows: 

Fiscal 
Year Ending Principal I11te1-est Total 

2020 $ 95,000 $ 78.317 $ 173,317 
2021 100,000 75,468 175,468 
2022 100,000 71,968 171,968 
2023 105,000 68,468 173,468 
2024 110,000 64,793 174,793 

2025-2029 605,000 268,972 873,972 
2030-2034 730,000 143,988 873,988 
2035-2036 165.0QO 7.836 172.836 

$2.010.0.00 $ 222.810 ~.2s9.~H! 
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City of Lincoln, IJJinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 2019 

NOTE 6-LONG-TERM DEBT. CCONTJNUED} 

Note Payable - Fire Truck-The City has a loan agreement with the Illinois Finance Authority from the Fire Truck Loan 
Program fol' the purchase of a fire truck. As of April 30, 2019 the City owed $112,500 to the Illinois Finance Authority. The 
Joan was dated April 2008 for $250,000 with zero percent interest and payments of $12.500 for 20 years ending November 1, 
2028. 

The following is a summary of changes for the yem· ended April 30, 2019: 

Fire Truck Loan 

Annual requirements are as follows: 

Fiscal 
Y ea1· Ending 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

2025~2028 

Balance 
April 30, 

2018 

$ 125.000 

Principal 

$ 12,500 
12,500 
12,500 
12,500 
12,500 
50.000 

$ l 121SOQ 

Additions Payments 

Balance 
April 30, 
2012 

($ 12.SOQ) $ 112.500 

Note Payable - Equipment- The City borrowed $216,980 on Septembe1· 30, 20 l S for the purchase of various vehicles and 
equipment The interest rate is 2.75% and is due June 15, 2020. 

The following is a summa1y of cha11ges for the year ended April 30, 2019: 

Equipment Loan 

Annual requil'ements are as follows: 

Fiscal 
Year Ending 

2020 
2021 

Balance 
April 30, 

2018 

$ ]J J.312 

Principal 

$ 44,823 
22.873 

$ 67.696 

Additions 

$-=..._= 

Interest 

$ 1,SSS 
315 

$ 1.870 

Payments 

Balance 
April30, 
2019 

($ 43,615) $ 67,697 

Total 

$ 46,378 
23.188 

$ 69.S§(j 

35 



City of Lincoln, Illinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 2019 

NOTE 6-LONG~TERMDEBT. <CQfil]NUEDl 

Note Payable - Police Cars-The City borrowed $195,832 from United Community Bank on September 20, 2016 for 
purchase of police squad cars. The interest rate is 2.00%1 and is due July 1, 2018. This note was paid off during the year 
ended April 30, 2019. 

Balance 
April 30, 

2018 Additions Payments 

Balance 
April 30, 
2019 

Police Car $ 65,3Q2 $·-~- ($ 65,302) $.=-= 

Note Payable- Land - The City purchased a vacant lot next to Lincoln City Fire Department August 2, 2018. The City took 
out a loan with tbe State Bank of Lincoln fol' $60,000 for 24 months with an interest rate of2.50%. There are four semi~ 
annual payments for $15,550 of p1·incipal and interest beginning May 15, 2019. 

Future principal and interest payments on the loan agreement are es follows: 

Fiscal 
Year Ending Principal lnte1-est Total 

2020 $ 29,474 $ 1,625 $ 31,099 
2021 30,526 573 31.099 

$ ~o.ooo $ 2.122 $ ~12a 

Capital Lease-Fire Truck-The City of Lincoln entered into a lease agreement with Clayton HoldinWJ, LLC for the lease 
purchase of a new fire truck for $1,125.107. The fit'St payment of $88,874 begins November 6, 2019 and final payment is 
made May 6, 2025. Interest rates 1'8nge from 1.00%. 1 % to 14.00%. Payments are due in Novembel· and May each year. 

Future principal end interest payments on the lease agreement are as follows: 

Fiscal 
Year Ending Principal Interest Total 

2019 $ 153,035 $ 24,714 $ 177,749 
2020 156,745 21,004 177,749 
2021 160,545 17,203 177,748 
2022 164,437 13,311 177,748 
2023 168,425 9,324 177,749 
2024 172,508 S,241 177,749 
2025 87.816 1.058 88.874 

$L063,~1J $ 21.8~~ $),]~~.J~6 
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City of Linco1n, Illinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 2019 

NOTE 6-LONG-TERM DEBT, <CONTINUED> 

Businea-Type Aetivfftes: 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2014-The City issued $4,975,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 
2014 forwh.ich the proceeds were used to payoff the IEPA Wastewater loan. The bonds are dated October20l4 and are 
payable through December 1, 2023 with interest rates 1'8ngi11g from 2% to 3%. 

The following Is a summary of changes for the year ended April 30, 2019: 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds - 2014 

Future principal and interest payments are as follows: 

Fiscal 
Yea1· Ending 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

Balance 
April 30, 

2018 

$3.370,000 

Principal 

$ 565,000 
580,000 
595,000 
605,000 
470.000 

~.Bl~.gog 

Additions 

$-=-

Interest 

$ 72,925 
61,625 
47,125 
32,250 
14.100 

$ 228.~~ 

Payments 

Balance 
April 30, 
2019 

($ 555.QQQ) $2.8] 5,000 

Total 

$ 637,925 
641,625 
642,125 
637,250 
484.100 

$3.!W.~S 

Loan Payable-Yehlcle - On May 7, 2018 the City entered into a loan agreement with State Bank to borrow $301,585 to 
purchase a 2018 Vactor from Coe Equipment to replace the 2007 Vactor. The interest rate is 2.60% and is due April 11 2021. 

The following is a summary of changes fo1· the year ended April 30, 2019: 

Loan Payable - Vehicle 

Future principal and interest payments are as follows: 

Fiscal 
Year Ending 

2020 
2021 

$ 

$ 

Balance 
April 30, 

2018 

Principal 

100,245 
102.881 

203,]26 

Additions Payments 

Balance 
Aprll 30, 
2019 

$ 301.585 ($ 98.459) $ 203,]26 

Interest Total 

$ 4,643 $ 104,888 
2.007 104,888 

$ 6.650 $ 209.7'M 
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City of LincoJn, Illinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 2019 

NOTE 7 -INTERFUND ~CES 

Ioterfund Receivables and Paygbles-There were no interfund receivables and payables at Aprif 30, 2019. 

Interfund Tl'a11gfers- Inte1fund transfers consisted of the following at April 30, 2019: 

General Fund: 
Fire Fighters Pension Fund 
Police Fund 
Equipment Rental Fund 
TIP Fund 
Motor Fuel Tax Fund 

Fiduciary Funds: 
Fire Fighters Pension Fund 
Police Fund 

Equipment Rental Fund: 
General Fund 

TIP Fund: 
General Fund 

Motor Fuel Tax Fund: 
General Fund 

Transfers In 

$ 

12,919 

106,000 
83,000 

155,482 

50,350 

100.033 

Transfers Out 

$106,000 
83,000 

155,482 
50,350 

100,033 

Total Interfund n ·ansfers $ ~gz,zs~ 

12,919 

$ 507.784 

The purpose of the interfund transfers are as follows: 

The transfers to and from the General Fund and Equipment Rental Fund were for debt service expenditures. 

NOTE 8-DEFICIT FUND EQUITY 

The following net position deficit exists as of April 30, 2019: 

Governmental Funds ($17478.SS§) 

The deficit balance is primarily the result of insufficient assets to fund the Net Pension Liability. The City will be developing 
strategies to reduce the deficit. 
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City of Lincoln, Illinois 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Apl'il 30, 2019 

NOTE 9-ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND fLAN 

Plan Description. The City of Lincoln's {City) defined benefit pension plan for Regular employees provides retirement and 
disability benefrts, post retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The City's plan ls 
affiliated with the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan. Benefit provisions are 
established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assembly of the State of Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be 
obtained on-line atwww,l1nrf.ol'g. 

Benefits Provided IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired pri01· to January I, 2011, are eligible for 
Tier 1 benefits. For Tier 1 employees. pension benefits vest after eight years of service. Pm1ioipating members who retire at 
age SS (reduced benefits) OJ' after age 60 (full benefits) with eight years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement 
benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to l 213% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service 
up to 15 years, and 2"/0 fol' each yeat' thereafte1·. 

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2 employees. pension benefits vest after 
I 0 years of service. Participating members who retfre at age 62 (reduced benefits) or afte1· age 67 (full benefits) with 10 years 
of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to I 2/3% of their 
final 1·ate of eantings, for each yeal' of cl'edited se1vice up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafter. 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms. Wei-e covered by the benefit terms: 

Retirees and Beneficiaries currently receiving benefrts 
Inactive, Non-Retired Members 
Active Members 

Total 

IMRF 

69 
17 

_2Q 

Contributions. As set by statute, the City's Regular plan members arc required to contribute 4.50 percent of their annual 
covered salary. The statutes requires cmpk>yers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to 
finance the retirement covel'age of its own employees. The City annual required contribution rate for calendar yea1• 2018 was 
11.14 percent. The City also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits and supplemental retirement benefits, all of 
which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF Boatd of 
Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute. 

Net Pension Liability. The City,s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2018. The total pension liability was 
detennined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 
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City of Lincoln, IIUnois 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 2019 

NOTE 9-ILLINOJS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND PLAN. <CONTINUED) 

Actuarial Ass1mljJlio11s. Valuation Date: Actuarially determined contributions rates al'e calculated as of December 31 each 
year, which is 12 months p1ior to the beginning of the fiscal yeat' in which contributions at'e reported. 

TI1e following are methods and assumptions used to detennine total pension liability et December 31, 2018: 

• Actuarial Cost Method- Aggregate Entry Age Normal 
• Asset Valuation Method-Market Value of Assets 
• Piice Inflation - 2.50% 
• Salary Jncreas~ -3.39% to 14.25% including inflation 
• Investment Rate of Return- 7.25% 
• Retirement Age - Experience based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition. Last updated for 

the 2017 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period 2014-2016. 
• Mo11ality- For non-disabled retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection 

scale MP-2017 (base year 2015). The IMRF specific rates wel'e developed from the RP-20 I 4 Blue Collar Health 
Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to match cun-ent IMRF experience. Fm· disabled retirees, an IMRF 
specific mottality table was used with fully gene1-atio11al projection scale MP-2017 (base year 2015). The IMRF 
specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Disabled Retirees Mortality Table applying the same adjustment that 
were applied fo1· non-disabled lives. Fol' active members, an IMRF speciflo mortality table was used with fully 
gene1·atio11al projection scale MP-2017 (base year2015). The IMRF specific l'ates were developed from the RP-2014 
Employee Morality Table with adjushneuts to match cun·ent IMRF experience. 

• Long-Term Expected Rate of Return - The long-tenn expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of l"eturn by weighting the expected futul'e reel 
rates of return to the target a~et allocation percentage and adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best 
estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major a~et class are summarized in the folJowing table: 

Long-Tel'm 
Portfolio Expected 

Target Real Rate 
Asset Class Percentage of Return 

Domestic Equity 37% 7.15% 
International Equity 18% 7.25% 
Fixed Income 28% 3.75% 
Real Estate go;., 6.25% 
Alternative Investments 7% 3.20-8.50% 
Cash F.quivalents 1% 2.50% 

Total 100%1 
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City of Lincoln, Illinois 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 2019 

NOTE 9-JLLINOIS MUNICJPAL RETIREMENT FUND PLAN. <CONTINUED> 

Single Discount Rote. A Single Discount Rate of 7.50% was used to measure the total pension liability. The projection of 
cash flow used to determine this Single Discount Rate assumed that the plan members' contributions will be made at the 
current contribution rate, and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially 
determined contribution rates and the member t'ate. The Single Discount Rate reflects: (1) a long-tenn expected mte of retum 
on pension plan investments (to the ex.tent that the plan's fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits) 
and (2) tax-exempt municipal bond tate based on an index of20-year general obligation bonds wid1 an average AA credit 
rating as of the measurement date (to the extent that the plan's projected fiduciary net position is not sufficient to pay 
benefits.). 

For the purpose of this valuation, the expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 7, 50%; the municipal bond rate is 
3. 78%; and the resulting single discount rate is 7.50%. 

Changes In the Net Pension Liability. 

Balances at December 31, 2017 

Changes for the year: 
Service Cost 
Interest on the Total Pension Liabi1ity 
Difference between expected and actual 

experience of the Total Pension Liability 
Changes in assumptions 
Contributions - employer 
Contributions-employee 
Net investment income 
Benefit payments, including refunds of 

employee contributions 
Other (Net Transfers) 

Net Changes 

Balances at December 31, 1018 

Total Pension 
Llability 

(a) 

$9.101.187 

63,016 
657,805 

61,218 
198,154 

( 723,923) 

256.270 

$9,357.457 

PJan Fiduciary 
Net Position 

(b) 

$9.483.374 

89,803 
36,276 

( 633,588) 

( 723,923) 
249.998 

( 981.434) 

$B.~'2 l .94Q 

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liabilityl(Assel) to the Single Dlsrount RaJe Assumption. 

Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 

1% 
Decrease 

6.25% 

$1.748.420 

Current Single 
Discount Rate 
Assumption 

7.25% 

$ 855.517 

Net Position 
Liabillty/(Asset) 

(a)-(b) 

($ 382.187) 

63,016 
657,805 

61,218 
198,154 

( 89,803) 
( 36,276) 

633,588 

( 249.998) 

1.237.704 

$ §~~.SJZ 

1% 
Increase 
8.25% 

$ 108.890 
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April 30, 2019 

NOTE 9-!J.LINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND PLAN, (CONTINUED) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Defen-ed Outflows of Resotn-ces and Deferred Inflows of Resoi~s Related to 
Pensi011$. 

Defel'l'ed Amounts to be ~gnized 
in Pension Expense fn Future Periods 

Difference between expected and actual expel'ience 
Net difference between projected and actual 

earniltgs on pension plan investments 
Changes in assumptions 
Contributions subsequent to measurement date • 

Total 

Defe1·1-ed Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 21,456 

1,202,587 
69,449 

$1.29J.492 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

$ 

600,833 

$ 600.833 

* Contributions subsequent to the measurement date may be recogni7.ed as a reduction to the NPL. The atnount is not known 
as of the date of this report. Subsequent to the measurement date, the following amounts will be t'eCOgniud In pension 
expense in the upcoming years: 

Subsequent to the measurement date, the following amounts wilJ be recognized in pension expense in the upcoming years: 

Year Ending 
December31 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

Thereafter 

Total 

Net Defened Outflows 
of Resoprces 

$285,703 
74,515 
66,080 

266,361 

$692,659 
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April 30, 2019 

NOTE 10-IMRF PLAN- SHERIFF'S LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL 

Pla11 Description. The Clty•s defined benefit pension pJan for Sheriffs Law Bnforcement Personnel employees provides 
retirement and disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The City 
plan is affiliated with the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan. Benefit provisions 
are established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assembly of the State of Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may be 
obtained at on-line at www .imrf.org. 

Benefils Provided IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired prior to Janua1y l, 2011, are eligible for 
Tier 1 benefits. For Tier 1 employees, pension benefits vest after eight years of service. Participating members who retire at 
age 55 (reduced benefits) or after age 60 (full benefits) with eight years of c1-edited service are entitled to an annual retirement 
benefit:, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to I 213% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service 
up to 15 years, and 2% for each yearthe.reafter. 

Employees hired on or after January I, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. Fo1· Tier 2 employees, pension benefits vest after 
10 years of service. Participating members who retire at age 62 (reduced benefits) or after age 67 (full benefits) with 10 yea1'S 
of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to I 2/3% of their 
final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafter, 

Employees Covered by Be11efit Terms. As of December 31, 2018, the following employees were covered by the benefittenns: 

Retirees and Beneficiaries cun'elltly receiving benefits 
Inactive Plan Members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
Active Plan Members 

Total 

IMRF 

1 
0 
Q 

Contributions. As set by statute, the City's Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel plan members are required to contribute 7.S 
percent of their annual covered sala1y. The statute requires the City to contribute the amount necessruy, in addition to member 
contributions. to finance the retirement covernge of its own employees. The City contribution rate for calendar year 2018 used 
by the employer was 13.28 percent. The City also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits and supplemental 
retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the lMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by 
the IMRF Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute. 

Net Pension Liabilities. The City's net pension liability was measul'ed as ofDecember3I. 2018. The total pension liability 
was determined by an actual'ial valuation as of that date. 
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April 30, 2019 

NOTE 10-JMRF PLAN-SHERIFF'S LAW ENJl'QRCEMEN'f PERSONNEL. (CONTINUED> 

Actuarial Assumptions. Valuation Date: Actuarially determined contributions 1·ates are calculated as of December 31 each 
year, which is 12 months prior to the beginning of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported. 

The following are methods and assumptions used to detennine total pension liability at December 31, 2018: 

• Actuarial Cost Method - Aggregate Enny Age Nonnal 
• Asset Valuation Method- Market Value of Assets 
• Price Inflation - 2.50% 
• Salal'y Increases - 3 .39% to 14.25% including inflation 
• Investment Rate of Return - 7.25% 
• Retirement Age - Experience based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition. Last updated for 

the 2017 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period 2014-2016. 
• Mortality - For non-disabled retirees, an IMRF specific mortality fable was used with fully generational pl'Ojection 

scale MP-2017 (base year 2015). TI1e IMRF specifio rates were developed ftom the RP-2014 Blue Collar Health 
Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF experience. For disabled retirees, an IMRF 
specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection scale MP-2017 (base year 2015). The IMRF 
specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Disabled Retirees Mortality Table applying the same adjustment that 
were applied for non-disabled lives. For active members, an IMR.F specific mo1tality table was used with fully 
generational projection scale MP-2017 (base year 2015). The IMRF specific rates we1-e developed from the RP-2014 
Employee Morality Table with adjustments to match cunent IMRF experience. 

• Long-T'°'m Expected Rate of Return - The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
detennined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected retums, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class, 
TI1ese ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 1-eal 
rates of return to the target asset allocation percentage and adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best 
estimates of geometric real t'8tes of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 

Long-Tenn 
Portfolio Expected 
Target Real Rate 

Asset Class Pe1'Centage of Return 

Domestic Equity 37% 7.15% 
International Equity 18% 7.25% 
Fixed Income 28% 3.75% 
Real Estate 9% 6.25% 
Alternative Investments 7% 3.20-8,50% 
Cash Equivalents ~ 2.50% 

Total 100% 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 2019 

NOTE 10-IMRF PLAN-SHERIFF'S LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL. (CONTINUED) 

Smgle Discount Rate. A Single Discount Rate of 7.50% was used to measure the total pension liability. The projection of 
cash flow used to determine this Single Discount Rate assumed that the plan members' contributions will be made at the 
current contribution rate, and that empJoyer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially 
determined contribution rates and the member rate. The Single Discount Rate reflects: ( 1) a long-term expected 1-ate of retum 
on pen sf on plan investments (to the extent that the plan's fiduciaay net position ls projected to be sufficient to pay benefits) 
and (2) tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds with an avel'age AA credit 
rating as of the measurement date (to the extent that the plan's projected fiduciary net position is not sufficient to pay 
benefits.). 

For the purpose of this valuation, the expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 7.SOo/o; the municipal bond rate is 
3.78o/o; and the resulting single discount rate is 7.SOo/o. 

Changes in the Net Pensio11 Liability. 

Balances at December 31, 2017 

Changes for the year; 
Service Cost 
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 
Difference between expected and actual 

experience of the Total Pension Liability 
Changes in assumptions 
Contl'ibutions - employer 
Contributions - employee 
Net investment income 
Benefit payments, including refunds of 

employee contributions 
Other (Net Ti'ansfers) 

Net Changes 

Balances at December 31, 2018 

Total Pension 
Liability 

(a) 

$ 87.414 

6,292 

866 
1,950 

( 7,035) 

2.073 

$ 89.4§1 

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position 

(b) 

$ 70.585 

1,823 

( 5,675) 

( 7,035) 
2.730 

( 8.157) 

$ ~~,428 

Sensitivity of Net Pe11slo11 Liabilityl(Asset) to the Single Discount Rate Assumption. 

Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 

10.4 
Decrease 
6.25% 

$-3.5.659 

Current Single 
Discount Rate 
Assumption 

7.25% 

$ 27.Q59 

Net Position 
Lfabtllty/(Asset) 

(a)-(b) 

$ 16.829 

6,292 

866 
1,950 

( 1,823) 

5,675 

( 2.730) 

10.230 

$ 'zgs2 

to/o 
Increase 
8.2S% 

$ 19,678 
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April 30, 2019 

NOTE 10-IMRF PLAN -SHERIFF'S LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL. (CONTINUED> 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Defen-ed Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions. 

Deferred Amounts to be Recognized 
in Pension Expense In Future Periods 

Difference between expected and actual experience 
Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on pension plan investments 
Changes in assumptions 
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date • 

Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 

9,860 

$ 9.860 

Defe1·red Inflows 
of Resources 

$ 

4,975 

"' Conttibutions subsequent to the measurement date may be recognized as a t'eduotion to the NPL. The amount is not known 
as of the date of this repo1t. Subsequent to the measurement date, the following amounts will be recognized in pension 
expense in the upcoming years: 

Subsequent to tlte measurement date, the following amounts wiU be recognized in pension expense in the upcoming years: 

Year Ending 
Decembe1• 31 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

Thereafter 

Total 

Net Deferred Outflows 
of Resou1-ces 

$ 1,438 
573 
518 

2,176 

S 4.ZQS 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30, 2019 

NOTE 11-POUCEPENSION FUND 

Plan Description: The Police Pension Fund is a single employer defined benefit pension plan to provide retirement, death and 
disability benefits to police officers and their dependents. The plan issues an annual report to the IJlinois Department of 
Insu1'ance; however, they do no issue their own stand-alone financial statements. The City accounts for the plan as a pension 
trust fund. The fund is established and administered as prescribed by "A11icle 3. Police Pension Fund - Municipalities 
500,000 and Under'' of the Illinois Pension Code. Plan members' contributions are recognized in the period in which the 
contributions are due. Employer contl'ibutions are 1-ecogniz.ed when due and the employer has made formal commitment to 
provide t11e contributions. 

Benefits Provided: 

The Plan offers two tiers of benefits as well as early retirement, death and disability and tennination benefits as outlined 
below: 

NORMAL RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFIT 

Hil"ed Prior to January 1. 2011 

Eligibility. Age 55 with at least 20 years of creditable service and no longer a police officer. 

Benefit. 500A of final salary is payable commencing at retirement for 20 years of service. An additional 2.5% of 
final salary is added for each additional year of service in excess of 20 years of service (not to exceed 75% of 
final salary). "Final salaryn is the salwy attached to rank held on the last day of services or fut• 1 year prior to 
the last day, whichever is greater. 

Annual Increase in Benefit: An officer will receive an initial increase of 1/12 of3o/o foa· each month that has 
elapsed since retirement. The initial increase date will be the later of the first day of tl1e month following the 
attainment of age 55, or the first wmiversary of the date of retirement Subsequent h1creases of 3% of the 
cutTent pension amount (including prior increases) will be provided in each Januwy thereafter. 

Hired On or After Januaty 1. 2011 

Eligibility: Age 50 with at least 10 yeat's of creditable sel'vice and no longer a police officer. 

Benefit: 2.5% of final average salmy for each year of service is payable at retirement (not to exceed 75% of final 
avemge salary). "Final average salary'' is determined by dividing the highest total salary over 96 consecutive 
months of service in the last 120 months of service by the total number of months of service in the period. 
Annual salary for this puipOse will not exceed $106,800, indexed by the lesser of 3% or Ya of the CPI-U for the 
12 months ending with the September preceding each Novembea· I. The salary cap will not decrease. 

Annual Increase in Benefit: The initial increase date will be January 151 following the later of the attainment of 
age 60, or the first anniversary of the date of retil'ement. Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent 
January 1st, The first increase and subsequent increases wi11 be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or Y2 of 
the CPI-U fo1· the 12 months ending with the September preceding each November 1, applied to the original 
benefit. 
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EARLY RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFIT 

Hired Prior to January 1. 2011 

None 

Hired On or After Janmuy l. 2011 

El/g;bility. Age 50 with at least 10 years of creditable service and no longer a police officer. 

Benefit: The nonnal retirement pension benefit reduced by lt2 of l % for each month that the police officer's age is 
under age 55, 

A1111ual Increase In Benefit: Tite initial increase date will be the Januaiy 151 folJowing the later of the attainment of 
age 60, or the first anniversary of the date of retirement. Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent 
January tst. The first Increase and subsequent increases will be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or lt2 of 
the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September preceding each November 1, applied to the original 
benefit. 

PENSION TO SURVIVORS 

Hired Prior to January 1. 2011 

Death- Line of Dutv 

Surviving spouse is entitled to 1000/o of the salaty attached to the rank of the police officer on the last day of 
service, payable immediately. 

Death - Non-Duty 

CU11'e11t Pensioners (1'1cluding Disabled Pensioners): Surviving spouse to receive continuation of the pension. 

Active Employee with 2o+ Years of Service: Surviving spouse is entitled to the full pension eanted by the police 
officer at the time of death. 

Active Employee with 10-20 Years a/Service: Surviving spouse is entitled to 50% of the salary attached to tl1e 
rank of the police officer on the last day of service, payable immediately. 

An11ual Increase tn Benefit: None. 
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Hil'ed On or After January 1. 2Ql 1 

Death - Line of Duty 

Surviving spouse is entitled to 100% of the salary attached to the rank of the police officer on the last day of 
service, payable immediately. 

Death - Non-Duty 

Cun·ent Pens;oners (Including Disabled Pens;oners), Active Employee w;fh 20+ Years of Service, (lltd Active 
Empluyee with 10-20 Years of Service: Surviving spouse to receive 66 %% of the police officer's earned 
pension at the date of death. 

Annual Increase in Benefit: The initial increase date will be the January 111 after the attainment of age 60 by the 
recipient of the survivor's pension. Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January P1• The first 
inoreaseand subsequent increases will be the lesser of3% of the original benefit or ¥.i oftheCPI-U for the 12 
montlts ending with the September preceding each November l, applied to the original survivor's benefit 
amount. 

TERMINATION BENEFIT 

Hired Prior to Januaiy 1. 2011 

Eligibility: At least 8 years but less than 20 years of creditable service. 

Benefit: 2.5% of final salary fol' each year of service is payable beginning at age 60. "Final salary" is based on 
the greater of salary during the last year of service prior to tennination of employment 01· the pay rate for the 
police officer at tennination of employment. 

Annual Increase in Benefit: An officer will receive an initial increase of 3% on the first anniversary of the date of 
start of payments. Subsequent increases of 3% of the curt'ent pension amount will be p1uvided in each January 
thereafter. 

Hired On or After January 1, 2011 

Eligibility: At least 10 years but less than 20 years of credimble servlce. 

Benefit: 2.5% of fmal salary for each year of sel'vice is payable beginning at age 60. "Final salary" is based on 
the greater of salary during the last year of service prior to termination of employment or the pay rate for the 
police officer at tennination of employment. Annual salary for this purpose wiJ I not exceed $106.800, indexed 
by the lesser of3% or~ of the CPI*U for the 12 months ending with the September preceding each November 
l. The salary cap will not decrease. 

Annual Increase in Be11eflt: The initial increase date will be the Januaiy 1st following the first payment 
Subsequent increases will occu1· on each subsequent Janua1y Jst. The first increase and subsequent increases 
will be the l~rof3% of the 01iginal benefit or~ of the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September 
preceding each November J. applied to the original benefit amount 
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DISAJJJLITY BENEFIT 

Hired Prior to Januaty 1. 2011 

Eliglbfllty: Disability (duty or non-duty). 

Benefit: A police officer who becomes disabled on duty is entitled to receive a pension equal to the greatest of 
65o/o of final salary or the pension they would have been entitled to upon retirement at the time of disability. 
Fora non-duty disability, the police officer is entitled to 50% of final salaty. ''Final salary" is based on dte pay 
rate for the police officer on the last day of service. 

Annual Increase in Benefit: The initial increase date wiJt be the January 111 following the attainment of age 60. 
Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January tst. The first increase is 3% of the original benefit 
for each full year that has passed since the pension began. Subsequent increases will be the 3% of the ol'iginal 
pension benefit amount. 

Hired On or Aftel' Januruy 1. 2011 

Eligibility: Disability (duty or non-duty). 

Benefit: A police office1· who becomes disabled on duty is entitled to receive a pension equal to the greater of 
65% of final salary or the pension they would have been entitled to upon retirement at tbe time of disability. 
For a non-duty disability, the police officer is entitled to 50% of final saJary. "Final salary" is based on the pay 
rate for the police officer on the last day of service. 

Annual !net-ease In Benefit: The initial increase date wlll be the Janmuy 1 at following the attainment of age 60. 
Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January l 11t. 111e first increase and subsequent increases 
will be the lesser of3% of the original benefit or~ of the CPI-U for dte 12 months ending with the September 
preceding each November 1, applied to the 01iginal benefit amount 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms. As of April 30, 2019, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 

Retirees and Beneficiaries cumntly receiving benefits 
Inactive Plan Members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
Active Plan Members 

Total 

31 
I 

26 

Contributions: Covered employees are required to contribute 9 .991 % of their base salaiy. The City's annual contribution to 
the plan is provided by property tax levy. These taxes are required to be of an amount necessary to finance the plan as 
actuarially detennined by an enrolled actuary. The cut'l'ent funding policy for the pension fund is to be 100% funded on an 
actuarial basis by year 2040. 
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Net Pension Liability. The City's net pension liability was measured as of April 30, 2019, and the total pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actttarlal Assumptions. The tota I pension liability in the April 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measu1-ement: 

Economic Rate8: 

Inflation 
Salary Increases 
Projected Increase in Total Payroll 
Discount Rate used for Total Pension Liability 
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets 

2.50% 
4.00% • 6.00% 

3,25% 
6.31% 
7.00% 

Mortality rates were used based on the L&A 2016 Illinois Police Mortality Rates and the Retirement Rates were based on 
L&A 2016 Blinois Police Retirement Rates Capped at Age 60. 

All rates shown in the economic assumptions are assumed to be annual rates, compounded on an annual basis. 

The long-term expected rate of return on assets is intended to represent the best estimate of future real rates ofl'eturn and is 
shown for each maj0t• asset classes in the investment policy. The expected rates of return on assets shown here is from the 
State of Illinois Department of Insurance Actuarial Experience Study dated September 26, 2012. TI1e best estimate of future 
real rates of return are developed for each of the major asset classes. Expected inflation is added back in, Adjustment is made 
to reflect geometric returns. 

The 1ates provided in the table below are based on the arithmetic average. TI1e Investment Policy Statement will provide more 
detail regarding dte Fund's policies on asset allocation tal'gets and acceptable ranges. 

Asset Class 
Long-Te1·m Expected 

Rate of Return 
Long-Term 

lnflRtion Expectations 
Long-Tenn Expected 
Real Rate of Retum 

US Large Cap Equity 
US Mid Cap Equity 
US Small Cap Equity 
Non-US Developed Large Cap Equity 
Emerging Markets Equity Unhedged 
US Corporate Bonds 
US Government Fixed Income 
USCash 
Global Real Estate - REITS 
Commodities • Long Only 

8.30 
9.30 
9.30 
8.40 

10.50 
4.20 
3.20 
3.00 
8.30 
4.90 

2.50 
2.50 
2.50 
2.50 
2.50 
2.50 
2.50 
2.50 
2.50 
2.50 

5.80 
6.80 
6.80 
5.90 
8.00 
1.70 
.70 
.so 

S.80 
2.40 

Long-term expected real returns under GASB are expected to reflect the period of time that begins when a plan member 
begins to provide service to the employer and ends at the point when all benefits to the plan member have been paid. The 
rates provided above are intended to estimate those figures. 
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The expected inflation rate is 2.50% and is included in the total long-term rate of return on investments. The inflation rate is 
from the same source as the long·term real rates of return, and is 11ot necessarily reflective of the inflation measul'es used for 
other pu1poses in the report. 

Geometrfo rates of return are equal to arithmetic rates of return when the annual retums exhibit no volatility ove1· time. When 
arithmetic returns are volatile on a year-to-year basis, the actual realized geometric retunts over time will be lower. The higher 
the volatility, the greater the difference. 

Discount Rates. The discow1t rates used in the determination of the Total Pension Liability is based on a combination of the 
expected long-term rate of return on plan investments and the municipal bond rate. Cash flow projections were used to 
determine the extent which the plan's futu1-e net pension will be able to cover benefit payments. To the extent future benefit 
payments are covered by the plan's projected net position, the expected rate of return on plan investment is used to dete1mine 
the portion of the net pension liability associated wlth those payments. To the extent future benefit payments are not covered 
by the plan's projected net position. the municipal bond rate is used to determine the portion of the net position liability 
associated with those payments. 

Changes in Net Pension Liability. The table below illush-ates the change in the Net Position Liability (NPL) from the prior 
Measw-ement Date to the cuirent Measurement Date. Under Statement 68~ the difference between the NPL from the prior 
measurement date to the current measurement date should be recognized as an expense, unless pennitted to be recognized as a 
defen-ed outflow or inflow of resources. 

Increase (Uecrease) 
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Liability Net Position Liability 
Cal {b) (a)-(b) 

Balanea Beginning at OS/01/18 $26. 718.802 $ 9.690.792 $17.028.0lQ 

Changes for the year: 
Service Cost 502,821 502,821 
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 1,610,322 l,610,322 
Actuarial experience 452,668 452,668 
Difference between expected and actual 

experience oftbe Total Pension Liability 
Change in assumptions ( 701,709) ( 701,709) 
Contn'butions - Employer 749,444 ( 749,444) 
Contributions - Employee 169,994 ( 169,994) 
Contributions - Other 180,315 ( 180,315) 
Net Investment Income 726,840 ( 726,840) 
Benefit payments, including refunds of 

employee contl'ibutlons ( 1,323,623) ( l,323,623) 
Other (Net Transfers) 26,606 ( 26,606) 
Administrative experience ( 16.783) 16.783 

Net Changes 540.479 512J93 27.686 

Balances Beginning at 04130/19 $27.259.281 $10.203,585 $1ZOSS,696 
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Sensitivity of the Discount Rate. The Net Pension Liability has been detennined using the discount rate listed in the 
assumption section. Below is a table illustrating the sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to the discount rate assumption. 

1% Current 1% 
Dec1-ease Discount Rate Increase 

S.31% 6.31% 7.31% 

Employer Net Pension Liability $2J.16Q.134 $17.055,696 s1J.:z~z.12a 

The sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to the discount rate is based primarily on two factors: 

1. The duration of the plan's expected benefit payments. Younger plans with benefit payments further in the future will 
be more sensitive to changes in the discount rate. 

2. The funded percentage of the plan (ratio of the net position to the total pension liability). The higher the funded 
percentage, the higher the sensitivity to the discount rate. 

Pension &pense and Defen-ed Outflows of &sources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions. For the year 
ended April 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of$749,444. At April 30, 2019, the City reported deferred 
outflows of resout'CCS and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

The table below shows the cumulative amounts to be shown as deferred outflows and inflows of resources. Changes in total 
pension liability related to the difference in actual and expected experience, or changes in assumptions regarding future events, 
are recognized in pension expense over the expected remaining service Ufe of all employees (active and l'etired) in the pension 
fund. Differences in pl'Ojected and actual earnings over the measurement period are recognized over a S·year period. 
Amounts not yet recognized are summarized below: 

Deferred Amounts to be Recognized 
iu Pension Expense in Future Perlods 

Difference between expected and actual experience 
Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on pension plan investments 
Changes in assumptions 
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date * 

Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 385,257 

136,802 
1,302,988 

$ 1.825.047 

l>efei·1-ed Inflows 
of Resources 

$ 293,274 

89,727 
2,006,108 

$ 2,389.102 

• Contributions subsequent to the measurement date may be recogni7.ed as a reduction to the NPL. The amount is not known 
as of the date of this report. Subsequent to the measurement date, the following amounts will be recognized in pension 
expense in the upcoming years: 
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Subsequent to the measurement date, the fo11owing amounts wilJ be recognized in pension expense in the upcoming years: 

Year Ending 
Aprl130, 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
Thereafter 

Total Deferred Inflows 

Net Defel'l'ed Inflows 
Of.Resources 

$ 79,358 
( 57,443) 
( 485,133) 
( 59,526) 
( 33,675) 
( 7.643) 

($--564,062) 

NOTE 12-FIREFIGHTERS' PJNSION FUND 

Plan Description: The Firefighters' Pension Fund is a single employer defined benefit pension plan to provide retirement, 
death end disability benefits to fil'emen and their dependents. The plan issues an annual report to the Illinois Department of 
Insut'Bnce; however, they do no issue their own stand-alone financial statements. The City accounts for the plan as a pension 
trust fund. The fund is established and administered as prescribed by ''Article 4. Fh'efighters' Pension Fund - Municipalities 
500,000 and Under' of the Illinois Pension Code, Plan members' contributions are recognized in the period in which the 
contributions are due. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has made formal commitment to 
provide the contl'ibutions. 

Be1reflts Provided: 

The Plan offers two tiers of benefits as weJI as early retirement> death and disability and tennination benefits as outlined 
below: 

NORMALRETIREMENTPENSIONBENEFIT 

Hired Prior to J anuaiy 1. 2011 

Eligibility: Age 50 with at least 20 years of creditable service and no longer a firefighter. 

Benefit: 500/o of final salary is payable commencing at retirement for 20 yea1"S of service. An additional 2.5% of 
fmal salary is added for each additional year of service (prorated monthly) in excess of20 years of service (not 
to exceed 75% of final salaiy). ccFinal salary,, is based on the pay rate for the firefighter at retirement. 

Annual h1crease In Benefit: A firefighter is entitled to an initial pension increase equal to 1/12 of3% of the 
original monthly benefit for each full month that has passed since the pension began. Tho initial increase date 
will be the later of the fit'St day of the month following the attainment of age 55. or the first anniversal'y of the 
date of retirement. Subsequent increases of3% of the current pension amount will be provided in each January 
thereafter. 
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Hired On or AfterJanuary 1. 2011 

Eligibility: Age 50 with at least 10 years of Cl'editable service and no longer a firefighter. 

Benefit: 2.5% of final average salary for each year of service is payable at retirement (not to exceed 75% of final 
average salary). "FinaJ average salary" is detennined by dividing the highest total salary over 96 oouseoutive 
months of service in the last 120 months of service by the total number of months of se1vicc in the period. 
Annual salary for this purpose will not exceed $106,800, indexed by the lesser of 3% or Y:i of the CPI·U for the 
12 months ending with the September preceding each November 1. The salary cap will not decrease. 

A1P.nual Increase In Benefit. The initial increase date will be Jm1umy 1st following the attainment of age 60, 01· the 
first anniversary of the date of retirement. Subsequent increases wiJI occur on each subsequent January !51• The 
first increase and subsequent increases will be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or Y2 of the CPl-U for the 
12 months ending with the September preceding each November 1, applied to the original pension amount. 

EARLY RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFIT 

Hired Prior to January 1. 2011 

None 

Hired On or After Janumy 1. 2011 

Eligibility: Age 50 with at least l 0 years of creditable sel'vice and no longer a firefighter. 

Benefit. The nonnal retirement pension benefit reduced by Yi of 1 % for each month that the firefighter's age is 
under age SS. 

Annual Increase in Benefit. The initial increase date will be the Januaiy I st following the attainment of age 60, or 
the first anniversary of the date of retirement. Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January 1•. 
The first increase and subsequent increases will be the lesser of3% of the original benefit or Yi of the CPI·U for 
the 12 months ending with the September preceding each November 1, applied to the original pension amount. 
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PENSION TO SURVIVORS 

Hired Prior to January 1. 2011 

Death - Line of Duty 

Surviving spouse is entitled to 100% of the salary attached to the rank of the fil'efighter on the last day of service, 
payable immediately. 

Death - Non~Duty 

Current Pensioners (Including Disabled Pensioners): Surviving spouse to receive continuation of the pension at 
the time of dead1 or 54% of pensionable sala1y at the time pension began, if greater. 

Active Employee with 20+ Years of Service: Suiviving spouse is entitled to the full pension earned by the 
fn-efighter at the time of death, or 54% of the pensionable salary at death if greater. 

Active Employee with 10..20 Years of Service: Surviving spouse is entitled to 54% of the salary attached to the 
rank of the firefighter on the last day of service, payable immediately. 

Annual Increme fn Benefit: None. 

Hired On or After Januai:y 1. 2011 

Death - Line of Duty 

Surviving spouse is entitled to 100% of the salary attached to the rank of the firefighter on the last day of service, 
payable immediately. 

Death-Non-Duty 

Current Pensioners (/ncludi11g Disabled Pensioners), Active Employee with 20+ Years of Servi~. and Active 
Employee with 10-20 Years o/Servlce: Surviving spouse to receive 66 %% of the flrefighter's earned pension 
at the date of death. 

Annual Increase In Bene.fit: The initial increase date will be the January t 11 after the attainment of age 60 by the 
recipient of the survivor's pension. Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January i•. The first 
increase and subsequent increases will be the lesserof3% of the original benefit or Vi of the CPI-U for the 12 
months ending with the September preceding each November 1, applied to the original survivor's pension 
amount. 
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TERMINATION BENEFIT 

Hired Prior to January 1. 2011 

Eliglhility: At least l 0 years but less than 20 years of creditable service. 

Be11efit: An accrual factor times final salaiy for each year of service is payable beginning at age 60. "Accrual 
Factor0 is a factor of 1.5% at 10 years of service, increasing ratabJy up to 2.4% at t 9 years of service. "Final 
salary" is based on the pay rate for the firefighter on the date of separation. 

Annual /ncrewe in Benefit: A firefighter will receive an initial increase of3% on the first anniversary of the date 
of start of payments. Subsequent increases of3% of the current pension amount will be provided in each 
January thereafter. 

Hired On or Aftei· Januazy 1. 2011 

Eligibility: At least 10 years but less than 20 years of creditable service. 

Benefit: An accrual factor times fmal salazy for each year of service is payable beginning at age 60. "Accrual 
Factor• is a factor of 1/5% at t 0 years of service, increasing ratably up to 2.4% at t 9 years of service. "Final 
salary" is based on the greater of salazy during the last year of service prior to tennination of employment or the 
pay rate for the ftrefighter at tennination of employment A1muaJ salary for this purpose will not exceed 
$106,800, indexed by d1e lesser of3% 01· ~of the CPl-U for the 12 months ending with the September 
preceding each November 1. The salary cap will not decrease. 

Annual Increase in Benefit: The initial increase dat"e will be the January 111 following the fll'St payment. 
Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January 1•. The first increase and subsequent increases 
will be the l~erof3% oftheoriginal benefit or Y2 oftheCPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September 
preceding each November l, applied to the original pension amount. 
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DISABILITY BENEFIT 

Hired Prior to Janua01 I , 2011 

Eligibility: Disability (duty; 01· non-duty with 7 years of service). 

Benefit: A firefighter who becomes disabled on duty is entitled to l'eceive a pension equal to the greatest of 65% 
of final salary or the pension they would have been entitled to upon retirement at the time of disability. For a 
non-duty disabilityJ the firefighter is entitled to 50% of final salary. "Final salaryu is based on the pay rate for 
tlte firefighter at reth'ement. 

Annual l11crease in Benefit: The initial inorease date will be the January l" foJlowing the attainment of age 60. 
Subsequent incnmses will occur on each subsequent January l'*. The fil'st increase is 3% of the original benefit 
for each full year that has passed since the pension began. Subsequent increases are 3% of the original pension 
benefit amount. 

Hired On or After January 1. 201 1 

EllgJbility: Disability (duty; or non-duty widt 7 years of seivice ). 

Benefit: A firefighter who becomes disabled on duty is entitled to receive a pension equal to the greater of 65% 
of final salary or the pension they would have been entitled to upon l'etirement at the time of disability. For a 
non-ducy disability, the firefighter is entitled to 500/o of final salary. "Final sala1y1

• is based on the pay rate fur 
the firefighter at last day of seivice. 

Annual Increase in Be11ejl1: The initial increase date will be the January 111 following the attainment of age 60. 
Subsequent increases witJ occur on each subsequent Janua1y 111• The first incl'ease and subsequent increases 
will be the lesser of3% of the original benefit or Y2 of the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with d1e September 
preceding each November 1, applied to the original pension amount. 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms. As of April 30, 20 l 9J the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 

Retirees and Beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Inactive Plan Members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
Active Plan Members 

Total 

26 
2 

19 

Contributions: Covered employees are required to contribute 9.455% of their base salary. The City's annual contribution to 
the plan is provided by property tax levy. These taxes are required to be of a11 amount necessary to finance the plan as 
actuarially detennined by an enrolled actuaty. The curf'ent funding policy for the pension fund is to be 100% funded 011 an 
actuarial b~is by year 2040. 
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Net Pension Liability. TI1e City's net pension liability was measured as of April 30, 2019, and the total pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as oftbat date. 

Actuarial Assumptions. TI1e total pension liability in the April 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Economic Rates: 

Inflation 
Salary Increases 
Projected Increase in Total Payroll 
Discount Rate used for Total Pension Liability 
Long-Tenn Expected Rate ofRetum on Plan Assets 

2.50% 
3 .50% -23 .49%1 

3.25% 
5.99% 
7.00% 

Mortality rates were used based on the L&A 2016 Illinois Firefighters Mortality Rates and the Retb-e111ent Rates were based 
on L&A 2016 J11inois Firefighters Retirement Rates Capped at Age 62. 

All !'ates shown in tile economic assumptions are assumed to be annual rates, compounded on an annual basis. 

The long-term expected rate of return on assets is intended to represent the best estimate of future rea I rates of return and is 
shown for each major asset classes in the investment policy. The expected t'tltes of return on assets shown here is from the 
State of Illinois Department of Insurance Actuarial Experience Study dated Septembe1· 26, 2012. Long-tenn real rates of 
return are shown as the expected l'ate of return, net the assumed inflation rate. 

The rates provided in the table below are based on the arithmetic average. The Investment Policy Statement will provide more 
detail regarding the Fund's policies on asset allocation targets and acceptable ranges. 

As.set Closs 
Long-Te1·n1 Expected 

Rate of Return 
Loug-Term 

Inflation Expectations 
Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

US Large Cap Equity 
US Mid Cap Equity 
US Small Cap Equity 
Non-US Developed Large Cap Equity 
Emerging Markets "Equity Unhedged 
US Corporate Bonds 
US Government Fixed Income 
US Cash 
Global Real Estate - REITS 
Commodities - Long Only 

8.30% 
9.30% 
9.30% 
8.40% 
10.50% 
4.20% 
3.20% 
3.00% 
8.30% 
4.90% 

2.50% 
2.50% 
2.50% 
2.50% 
2.50% 
2.50% 
2.50% 
2.50% 
2.50% 
2.50% 

5.80% 
6.80% 
6.80% 
5.900h 
8.00% 
1.70% 
0.70% 
0.50% 
5.80% 
2.40% 

Long-tenn expected real returns under GASB are expected to reflect the pel'iod of time that begins when a plan member 
begins to provide service to the employer and ends at the point when an benefits to the plan member have been paid. The 
rates provided above are intended to estimate those tigm-es. 
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NOTE 12-FIREFIGBTERS' PENSION FUND. CCONTJNQED} 
' 

The expected inflation l'ate is 2.50% and is included in the total long-tam rate of retu1·n on investments. The inflation rate is 
from the same source as the long-tenn real rates ofretum, and is not neces881ily reflective of the inflation measures used for 
other purposes ht the report. 

Geometric rates of retun1 are equal to arithmetic rates of l'eturn when the annual returns exhibit no volatility over time. When 
arithmetic retums are volatile on a year-to-year basis, the actual realix.ed geometric returns over time will be lower. The higher 
the volatiHty, the greater the difference. 

Discount Rates. The discount rates used in the determination of the Total Pe11sion Liability is based on a combination of the 
expected long-term rate of return on plan investments and the municipal bond 1'8te. Cash flow projections were used to 
determine the extent which the plan •s future net pension will be able to cover benefit payments. To the extent future benefit 
payments are covered by the plan's projected net position, the expected rate of return on plan investment is used to determine 
the portion of the net pension liability associated with those payments. To the extent future benefit payments are not covered 
by the plan's projected net position, the municipal bond rate is used to determine the portion of the net position liability 
associated with those payments. 

Changes in Net Pension Liability. The table below illustrates the change in the Net Position Liability (NPL) from the prior 
Measurement Date to the culTellt Measul'ement Date. Under Statement 68, the difference between the NPL from the prior 
measurement date to the current measul'ement date should be recognized as an expense, unless permitted to be recognized as a 
deferred outflow or inflow of resources. 

Increase <Deereau} 
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Liability Net Position Liability 
(a} (b) Cal-OU 

Balances Beginning at 05/01/18 $20.535.644 $ 6.106.702 $14.428.942 

Changes for the year: 
SetVice Cost 321,469 321,469 
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 1,301,465 1,301,465 
Actuarial experience 285,414 285,414 
Difference between expected and actual 

experience of the Total Pension Liability 
Change in assumptions 1,478,600 1,478,600 
Contributions - Employer 755,398 ( 755,398) 
Contributions - Employee 118,570 ( 118,570) 
?lletlnvestrnentlncoine 155,050 ( tS5,0SO) 
Benefit payments, including refunds of 

employee contributions ( 1,149,036) ( 1,149,036) 
Other (Net Transfers) ( 3,474) 3,474 
Administrative experience ( 22.269) 22,269 

Net Changes 2,237.912 ( 145.221) 2.383.133 

Balances Beatnnlng nt 04/30/19 $22.773.~~{i $ s1961.481 $l618l~1Q2S 
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April 30, 2019 

NOTE 12-FIREFIGHIERS' PENSION FUND. (CONTINUED) 

Sensitivity of the Discount Rate. The Net Pension Liability has been detennined using the discount rate listed in the 
assumption section. Below is a table illustrating the sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to the discount rate assumption. 

Employer Net Pension Liability 

1% 
Decrease 

4.99% 

$20.093.405 

Cun·ent 
Discount Rate 

5.99% 

The sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to the discount rate is based primarily on two factors: 

1% 
Increase 

6,99% 

$14,149.281 

1. TI1e duration of the plan's expected benefit payments. Younger plans with benefit payments further in the future wiU 
be more sensitive to changes in the discount rate. 

2. The funded percentage of the plan (ratio of the net position to the totaJ pension liability). The higher the funded 
percentage, the higher tbc sensitivity to the discount rate. 

Pension Expense and Defel?'ed Ou(flow3 of Resow'Ces and Deferred lnjlaws of &sources Related to Pensions. For the year 
ended April 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of$755,398. At April 30, 2019, the City reported deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions ftom the following sources: 

The table below shows the cumulative amounts to be shown as deterred outflows and inflows of resources. Changes in total 
pension liability related to the diffel'ence in actual and expected experience, or changes in assumptions regarding future events, 
are recognized in pension expense over the expected remaining service life of all employees (active and retired) in the pension 
fund. Difterences in projected and actual earnings over the measurement period are recognized over a 5-year period. 
Amounts not yet recognized are summarized below: 

Deferred Amounts to be Reeognized 
bl Penaion Expense in Future Periods 

Difference between expected and actual experience 
Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on pension plan inveshnents 
Changes in assumptions 
Contnbutions subsequent to the measurement date • 

Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 341,296 

329,688 
2,440.409 

$3.1J1.393 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

$ 135,129 

337,770 
3,058,575 

$3.S31A74 

* Contributions subsequent to the measul'ement date may be reoognized as a reduction to the NPL. The amount is not known 
as of the date of this report. Subsequent to the measurement date, the following amounts will be recognized in pension 
expense in the upcoming years: 
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NOTE 12-FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND. CCONTJNYEDl 

Subsequent to the measurement date, the following amounts will be recognized in pension expense in the upcoming years: 

Year Ending 
ADlil30, 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
Thereafter 

Total Deferred Inflows 

Net Deferred In0oW8 
Of l\esogrces 

($174,603) 
( 133,891) 
( 505,107) 
( 759) 

281,453 
112,826 

($420.081) 

NOTE 13-0TllERPOST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS COPED) 

PLAN DESCRIPTION 

In addition to providing pension benefits, the City provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for its retired 
employees. The City's OPEB plan is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the City. The authority 
to establish and/ol' amend tlte obligation of the employer, employees, and retirees rests with the City. No assets are 
accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Section P52, 
Postemployment Benefits Othel' than Pensions-Reporti11gfot Benefits Not Provided Through Tnnts '/'hat Meet Specified 
Crileria-Defi11ed Benefit Therefore, the City reports a "total OPBB liability'' in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75. 

SUMMARY OF ELIGIBILITY AND COVERAGE 

The plan sponsor has reviewed and agreed to the below eligibility and coverage pl'OVisions. 

EUglbilfty Provisions 

Full~lime Employees-IMRF 
Tier I IMRF Full-Time City employees age 55 with at least 8 years of service are covered. 
Tiel' Il IMRF Full-Time City employees age 62 with at least l 0 years of service are covered. 

Full-Time Employees - Police 
Tier I Full-Time Police Officers, at least 50 years old with at least 20 years of service are covered. 
Tier Il Full-Time Police Officers, at least SS years old with at least 10 years of service at'e covered. 

Full-Time Employees - Fire 
Tier I Full-Time Firefighters, at least 50 years old with at least 20 years of service are covered. 
Tier Il Full-Time Fii'efighters, at least 55 years old with at least 10 years of service are covered. 
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NOTE 13-0TJIER POST-RETJREMENIBENEFITS COPEB>. CCONTJNUED) 

Medical/Prescription Coverage 

Types of Coverage: 

PPOSOO 
QHDHP 1500 
HMO 100 
Health AJJiance Medioare Supplement Plan N 

Coverage Provisions: 

Retfrees-IMRF. Police. or Ffre with 20+ vears of service 

Pre-65 Coverage: 
-Retiree pays for half the cost of the premium (for employee only coverage) and the City pays the remeining half. 
-Retiree pays the full cost of dependent coverage. 
-Dependent coverage may continue under COBRA should the Retiree terminate of pass eway. 

Post-65 Coverage: 
-Retiree pays for half the cost of the Medicare supplement premium (for employee on!y coverage) and the City pays 
the remaining half. 
-Retiree pays the full cost of dependent coverage. 
-Dependent coverage may continue under COBRA should the Retiree te1minate or pass away. 
-Cove1·age is secondmy to Medicare. 

Retirees -IMRF. Pol.ice. or Fire wirh leJs than 20 vears o(servjce 

Pre-65 Coverage: 
-Retiree pays the fulJ cost of coverage. 
-Dependent coverage may continue under COBRA should the Retiree tenninate of pass away. 

Post-65 Covea-age; 
-Retiree pays the fu11 cost of coverage. 
-Dependent coverage may continue under COBRA should the Retiree tenninate or pass away. 
~Coverage is secondary to Medicare. 
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NOTE 13-QTBER POSTMRETJREMENT BENEFITS COPEBl. (CONIINUEDl 

Dental and Vision Coverage 

Types of Coverage: 

Dental 
Vision 

Coverage Provisions: 

All Retirees 
Dental: 

Retiree pays lhe full cost of coverage. Dependent coverage is available, with the Retiree paying the full cost. 
Coverage ends when Retiree stops paying for it or after 18 months, whichever is sooner. 
Dependent coverage ends at the same time as Retiree. 

11'1Sion: 
There is no Vision coverage in retirement 

MEMBERSHIP 

At April 30, 2019 (latest information available), membersbip consisted of: 

Active employees currently receiving benefits 
Inactive employees cun-ently receiving benefits 

TOI'AL 

Participating employers 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

64 
27 

2l 

.l 

The City negotiates the contribution percentages between the City and employees through union and personnel policy. The 
City contributes the cost of providing the benefits to retil'ees via the insured plan (pay as you go), For the fiscal year ended 
April 30, 2019, the City contributed $253,255. 
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NOTE 13-OTHER POSTMRETIREMENI BENEFITS (OPED), (CQNTINUEDl 

TOTAL OPBB LIABILITY 

The City's total OPEB liability was measured as of April 30, 2019 and was detennined by an actuarial valuation as of that 
date. 

Actuarial Assumptions. The total OPEB liability in the Apiil 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actual'ial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless od1erwise specified: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 
Prior discount rate 
Discount rate 
Healthcare cost trend rates 

2.5% 
3% 
3.97% 
3.79% 
Flat 5.5% annually 

Mortality mtes were based on the RP~2014 study. 

Discount Rate. The discount rate was initially decreased from 4.00% to 3.97°/o when developing a beginning Total OPEB 
Liability to better reflect the high-quality fixed income environment as of May I, 2018. The underlying index used is the 
Bond Buyer20-Bond G.O. Index. The initial rate used was as of April 26, 2018. 

The discount rate was then decreased from 3.97% to 3.79% to better reflect the current high-quality fixed income 
environment. The underlying index used is the Bond Buyer 20-Bond G.O. Index. The rate has been updated to the current 
Fiscal Year-End based on changes in market conditions as reflected in the index. The rate used is as of April 25, 2019. 

The actuarial essumptions used in the May 1, 2018 valuation were based on the l'esults of an actuarial experience study for the 
period May 1, 2017-May 1, 2018. 

CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY 

Balance, May 1. 2018 

Changes for the year: 
Service cost 
Interest 
Contributions-Employer 
Changes in assumptions 

Net changes 

Balance. April 30, 2019 

Total 
OPEB 

Liability 

$6.728.175 

208,829 
262,077 

( 253,255) 
148,595 

J66.246 

$7.094.421 
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NOTE 13 -onIER POSTMRETIREMENT BENEFITS COPER), (CONTINUED) 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND lNFWWS OF RESOURCES 

The table below shows the cumulative amounts to be shown as Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources. Changes in 
Total OPBB Liability related to the difference in actual and expected experience, or changes in assumptions regarding future 
events) are recognized in OPBB Expense over the expected remaining service Hfe of all employees (active and retired) in the 
postl'etirement plan. Differences in projected and actual earnings over the measurement period are recognized over a 5-year 
period. Amounts not yet recognized are summariud below: 

Difference between expected and actual experie11ce 
Changes in assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on pension plan investments 

Total Deferred to be recognized in futut'e expense 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 
136,263 

$ 136263 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

$ 

$===-== 
The amount is not known as of the date of this report. Subsequent to the Measurement Date, the following amounts will be 
recognized in OPEB expenses in the upcoming years: 

Year Ending 
April30 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

Thereafter 

$ 12,332 
12,332 
12,332 
12,332 
12,332 
74.603 

Because this is the implementation year of GASB 74ns. the beginning Total OPEB Liability is based on the same data as the 
ending Total OPEB Liability. Therefore, thel'e are no differences between actual and expected experience that are being 
defen-ed in the current year. The changes in assumptions are due to a change in discount rate ftom the beginning of the City's 
Fiscal Year to the end. 

OPE{} PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENf 

Because of the implementation of GASB 74ns, the beginning balance of the OBEP liability was adjusted to reflect the Net 
OPEB Liability instead ofdte Net OPEB Obligation as previously reported. The following provides the analysis of the prior 
period adjustment 

Net OPBB Obligation 
Net OPBB Liability 

As Previously 
Reported 

$1,163,917 

$1.163917 

Adjustment 

($1 ,163,917) 
§,728.175 

$5.564.258 

As Restated 

$ 
6.728.175 

$6,728,175 
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NOTE 14-DEFERRED COMPENSATION PAYABLE 

The City offers its employees a defecred compensation plan created in accordance with lntemal Revenue Code Section 457. 
TI1e Plan is administered by Nationwide Retirement Solution, Inc. and V ALIC. The plan, available to all full-time City 
employees, permits them to defei· a portion of their salary until future years. Tite deferred compensation is not available to 
employees until tennination, retit'ement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. 

AU amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income 
attributable to these amounts, property, or rights are held in trust for the exclusive benefits of participants and other 
beneficiaries. As a result, the deferred compensation investments are not reported in the City's financial statements as an 
agency fund. 

NOTE 15-INSQRANCE AND RISKMA.NAGEMENT 

The City is self-insured for unemployment compensation. The City reimburses the State for unemployment compensation 
olaims paid to former employees. 

The City is also exposed to various risks including but not limited to losses from workers' compensation, general liability and 
property damage. Such risks are managed through the purchase of insurance contracts. 

Payments are made from the Liability Insurance fund to provide the payment of workers' compensation insurance, liability 
insurance and auto insurance. 

Settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

NOTE16-COMMITMENTSANDCON1.INGENCIES 

As of April 30, 2019, the City has matters of pending litigation which an: being handled by the City's liability insurance oanier 
through legal counsel designated by them. In addition, there al-e also pending workman's compensation claims against the 
City, all of which arc being handled by the City's workman's compensation insurance carrier 01· Iegal counsel designated by 
them. 

Pursuant to the four collective bargaining agreements the City has with various ba1·gaining units, the City does have an 
ongoing responsibility to provide individual health insurance coverage to retired members. The liability of these post­
retirement benefits has not been determined at this time. 
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Cit;)' ofLincola. D1iDois Sc:hedulc l 
SCBEl>ULEOFC'JIANGESINNETPENSIONIJABILl'IY 

ILLINOJS MUNICIPAL RE'!'IREMENT FUND-REGULAR 
R.cquircd Supplcmcalal Inimnalioo 

April 30, 2019 

LastlO Calewlar Yms 
(sdledaleto be built~ftc:m 2014) 

catendar~!m4i!l&December31, __ 2Ql8 2011 2016_ 2015_ 2014 2013 2012 .201L _2010 .. . . 2009 

To1al Pensioa Uabllily 
Servi<:e Cost $ 63,016 s 66,554 $ 75,350 $ 8D,s84 $ 83,194 s - s - $ - s - $ 
Immston the Toad Pcnsicu LiabilitY 657.805 666):2.7 656,899 652,112 643.790 
Benefit Olqes 
Differc:Dcc bclweeD ~and 

Acmal Experience 61,218 138,567 5S)Sl ( 31,278) ( 3SQ,257) 
Assn•npiion~ 198.154 ( 277~ ( 16,.869) 16,361 332,223 
BCICfit~elllS 8Dd RdUnds ( 723.92.l) ( 683.870) ( 646.682) ( 609.135) ( __ SM..258) 

Net Cmge iD ToUI Pension Liability 256,270 ( 90,504) 123,950 108,644 124,692 

Totll Pemioa Uability-Bcginniug 2.121.m 2121.§.21 ,2.067.741 ll.~{122 IW.~~ 
Toca! PemioD Uabllit,y -Ending (a) $ 9357457 s 9101187 s 9 191691 s 9067741 $ 3959097 s - s - $ - s - S. 

PJu Jliduciary Net Position 
Employer Contn"butions $ 89,803 $ 79,080 s 89,874 $ 118,302 s 189.583 s - $ - $ . $ - s 
Employ= Comributioos 36,276 33,134 34,508 34,362 32.799 
Pension Plan Net Invcstmeat Income ( 633,588) 1,618,194 S74,5S2 42.796 530,500 
Beoe:fit~ and Rctbnds ( 723,v.23) ( 683,870) ( 646.687) { 609,135) ( 584,253) 
0th« 249,998 ( 149031) 2&..932 60S12 ( 252.@4) 

Net Cbange ia PlaD Fiduciuy Net Position ( 981,434) 891/hT 151,186 ( 352,603) ( 90,470) 

Plan Fidadary Net:Position -Jk:jnaiag 9,~J74 8~85:M7 ~43~581 S.Zl7.ll4 8177~ 
l"Jan Fiduciary Net Position· Eodillg (b) s 8.501940 S94g3U4 $ 8S85767 s 1434..5&1 s &787184 $ - s - $ . $ - S. 

Net Pension Liabilityf(ASKt)-
Ending (a)-(b) s §SS,Sl7 ($ W,!87) $ 6052'24 s (i33!6Q s 171913. s . s - $ - s - S. 

Pio Fa:lac:iaJy Net Position as a 
Percmtageof'Totll Pensiou Utbiley 90.86% 104.20% 93.41% 93.02% 98.118% 

Covered Valwltion hyroll s 806,134 s 736,310 s 766,844 s 774,725 s 790.725 
Net Pension Liability u a r~ 

of Covcn:d ValaatiOJl Payroll 106.13% (51.91%) 79.02% it.73% :.U.74% 
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City ofLincoln. lllinois Schoclule2 
SCBEDULEOF CHANGES IN NErPENSION LIABILll'Y 

D.UNOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENTFUND-SHERIFF'S LAW ENFORCEMENr PERSONNEL 
Required Supplemcldlll Information 

Aprill(>. 2019 

last 10 Calendar Years 
(schedule to be builtprospocti.velyfi:om20l4) 

!dlmam:endint!DecemM~l. _ 2!118 2017 - - 2016 .. 2015 _201_4_ _ 2013 _2012_ .2011 2010 2009 

Total.PellsioD IJUmty 
ScM:eCost s - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - s 
1JJtaest on !be Total Pe11skm Liability 6,292 6.449 6,269 6,242 6.r113 
Bendit aaaop 
D~ betweenfJcpedcd a:lld 

ActmlE.~ 866 773 770 712 
Assumptiga Changes 1,950 ( 2;362) ( S,922) ( 96) 
Benefit Paymonts andRcfimds ( 7.03Sl ( 6,862) ( 6.695) ( 6522) 

NetCbaJlgeill Totll PtllsiOD Liabilil;r 2.0TJ ( 2,002) ( S,578) 346 s.11s 

Total l'cmioD Liability-Bcginlliag (l,414 89.416 94,994 94,64§ 89.4'.ll 
Total Pension Liabilify-Enclng (a) $ 89487 s lS74J! s 89416 s 94994 s 94648 $ - s . $ - s - S. 

l'lall Ficlaciary Net Position 
Smploya"Conln"butions $ l,!23 $ 2,733 $ 3,177 $ 3,308 $ 3,334 $ - $ - $ - s - $ 
Employee ContributiOllS - . - -
Pension Plan Net Jmocs1n1alt Income ( S.67S) 12,852 4,291 'NI 3,579 
Benefit Paymatts and Rmds ( 7,(iJ5) ( 6,862) ( 6,69S) ( 6,522) ( 6,166) 
Olher __ -2.23.0 ' 1.983) - 601 4319 239 

Net Change iD P1u Yublclary Net.Position ( 8,157) 6,740 1,374 1,402 986 

Plan FidudaJ)' Ne.t PosHiola-BcgjllJling 10.585 63.84~ li2.4ZI li!~ ~o~ 
Plan Piduduy Net Pos11ioa-Ending (b) $ ~ s ]QS~ s !iU4S $ ~ s 61069 s - $ - s - S. - s 

Net Pension Llability/(Asset)-
ElldiJJg (a)-(b) $~ s 16.829 s ~.m L . ....nS21 s 33,512 s - $ . s - $ - S. 

PJaa Fiduciary NetPositioA as a 
Ptt'ttll11ge ofTotaJ Pension Liability 69.76% 80.75% 71.400.4 65.16% 64.52% 

OMndValatiou~ s - s - $ - $ - s 
Net Pension Uahilit;y as a Pen:mtage 

of Om:Rd Valuatiou Payroll 0.00% 0.00% O.ll0% 0.00% 0.00% 
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City ofllnr.oln, llliDOis Sc:hcdulc3 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES INTBE NETPENSIONIJABIUlY 

POUC£ PENSION FUND 
Required Suppb:mental IDft>rmatlou 

April 30. 2019 

~212 ~ll ~17 22J~ ~!S 2Qt4 '112Jl ~ 20.lL __ .201D 

Tolal Pension Lialli!if1 
Service Cost $ SOl,821 S 463,SSS s .c40,910 s 443,785 s 449,636 $ - $ - $ - s - s 
Int=st 1.610,322 l,,.567,149 1,713,9'13 l.,333,691 1,330,894 -
Cbmga ofBcntfit r~ 
DiffermccsBetween Expected ll!ld 

Ac:mal Experimcc 452,668 8,496 ( 413,687) ( 239,2&3) 
Cbauges in Assmnpticm ( 701,709) 326,412 ( 2,780$4) 3,146,SSO 
Bendt Paymmls and Reibods ( t;m..623> ( 1.292,,417> ( 1.311.371) ( 1.234.3S?.) ( 1.168.469) 

Net 0mge in To1lll J>ensi&D Liabili'1 540,479 1.078.194 ( 2,351,169) 3,4-05,420 612,061 

To1al l'enslon Liahiif;Y-Begimdng 2~7]8.802 ~~~ 27 92.l Jil. 24.~l§J~ 23,974J26 
ToaJ.PmsioaLiahil!t;y-Ending(a) $27.259.2&1 57.6.21&.m $7564-0608 $27991m $24S86,357 s - s - s - s - s. 
Plan Fiduda.ry Net Position 

Coatrlbulions-Employer $ 749,444 s 679,43i s 626,931 s 616,437 s 639$29 s - $ - $ - $ - $ 
Coolrlb'Utions-Memba' 169,994 163,716 160,086 201,349 152,714 
Cootributioos-Othf:r' 180,315 l,OSO - . -
Net .lnvestmmt lncomc 726,840 714,167 641,981 ( 12,17S) (;]4,451 
Benefit Pl;)'lllGl!S and Refunds ( I,323,623) ( 1,29'.2,417) ( l,'.311,371) ( 1)84,352) ( l.168,469) 
Adminktndive FJcpmse ( 16,783) ( 17,954) ( 37,129) ( 17,.857) ( 16,340) 
Other 26606 - - 18.'ZZJ ( 3.408) 

Net Change in Plu Fiducluy Net Position 512.793 248.030 80,491 ( 477,81JJ) 278,.883 

Plu Fiduciary Net:Posi1loa-Jlecialliug 2.~.m 9.44~7~ 9362.264 2,840,0H 2.~§t.201 
Piao. F'J.Cludary Net Position - Ending (b) S~3S8S $ 9690792 $ 9442.ZQ $ 9J6US $ 9!!40084 s - s - $ - S. - $ 

Employ!rNetPmioD ~-
EodiJlg (a)- (b) $1705S 696 $11.028.010 $~197846 $~ $14746.m $ - $ - $ - $_ .. . - s 

The cmmityt:ar" inmrmation was devclcped in 1be complctioc oflhis report 
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Clty ofUnco!n. llinois Scbcdule4 
SCBIDULE OF CHANGES JNTBE NET PENSION LIABIUIY 

FIREPIGHIERS' PENSl'ON FUND 
RA:qUin:d Supplemmt.al .Infmmalion 

April30,2019 

2019 ---2.0J!_ -2011 . -20.16_ 2015 2014 2013 2012 ~ _20.10 

ToflllPaasiml ~ 
Sc:rvioa Cost s 321,469 s 309,494 s 290.496 S 44S,2.Tl s 448,145 s - s - $ - s - s 
I1llmSt 1,301,465 1,269,954 l~irl,$)7 995,712 l ,019.S69 
Cblmges ofBmofitTams 
Difl'tR:n=s Between Expectedmcl 

.Actlla1 Experieiice 285,414 Sl,578 122,476 ( 370.137) 
Cblmges inAssumptioos 1,478,600 51,001 ( S,76S,21G) 3,170,391 
Benefit Paymcnls sad Refimds ( 1J49,~ ( l,129.284) ( J,052.204) ( 214,67© ( - .260.3m 

Net Cbange in TotalPeuion Liability 2,237.912 552,743 ( 4,817,008) 3)56~ 507,.317 

Total Ptmion Liabmo- -BeginniDg 20-53S.644 I~ 982..901 24222-909 21~3.342 21.036..025 
TotalPtmioll l.JabiliV-Endmg (a) mmsS6 $20.S3S644 Sl2.2lrunl S'l.4729909 $2LS43.342 s - $ - $ - $. - s 

Plan FIClaciary Net l"osilion 
CattnOulions-F.mployer s 755,938 s 687,221 s 651,S68 s 609,350 s 616,191 $ - $ - s - s - $ 
Comribmiom-Member 118,.570 1l4,9SS 120,769 113,61S 106,()25 
Net Iuvestmem.Income lSS,OSO 873..W 93.765 515,SSl 24,668 
Benefit Paymalls and Rdimds ( 1,149,036) ( 1,129,284) ( 1,052,204) ( 9.84,676) ( 960,397) 
~~ ( 21.;1$) ( 16,973) ( 14,990) ( 17,S6S) ( 14,589) 
Od!« ( _3.424) - - -- --21..47.S . - 1.02-1 

Net Change .In Plan Fiduciary Net Positioa ( 145,221) S29,38S ( 201,092) 324,750 ( 227,()81) 

Plan Fldaciary NetPositlcm • Bcgilmin: ~IQ6.702 5~ZZJ12 S.Z1MQ2 ~.4a~ Hl!:Z~ 
Plan Yschleiuy NetPositiOll-Ending (b) s :i!}jjJ ~1 S tilD~W. s ~S11.ll7 s ~:UU!l2 s sm.§~ s - $ - $ - $ - S. 

Emplo,Ja" NetPeasloa Liability-
Endbig (a)• (b) Slil12.01l $14428942 $14405584 $12.lill.SOtl $16089683 s - $. - s - s - S. 

lbe currmt)'Carill1bnmdion was~ in the l:Ol'llpletion of this Jq>Olt 
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Actuarial 
Actuarial Value of 
Valuation Assets 

Date <al 

04/30/19 N/A 
04130/18 NIA 
04130/17 NIA 
04/30/16 NIA 
04130115 NIA 

City of Lincoln, Illinois 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

Required Supplemental Information 
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BBNBFITS PLAN 

April 30, 2019 

Actuarial Aceraed 
LlabHity (AAL) AAL Funded 
-·Entry Age (UAAL) RatJo 

(bl (b-a) (alb) 

7,094,421 7,094,421 0.00% 
6,469,562 6,469,562 0.00% 
4,867,764 4,867,764 0.000.4 
4,867,764 4,867,764 0.00% 
4,867,764 4,867,764 0.009/0 

Covered 
Payroll 

(cl 

3,902,910 
3,486,078 
3,334,750 
3,334,750 
3,334,750 

N/A Infonnation .is not available as an actuarial valuation was not pcrfonned. 

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 45 for the fiscal year ended Aprll 30, 2015. 
lnfonnation for prior years ts not available. 

Schedule 5 

UAALRSa 
Percentage ot 

Covered PayroD 
((b..a)/c) 

181.77% 
185.60% 
146.00% 
146.00% 
146.00% 
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Calendar year endjngDeoembg3 l. 2018 

Actuarlalb' Detmnined Contribution. s 89,803* 
Comn"butials in Rdalioll 1Xl 1hc Ac:luariall;y 

Dc:tc:rminof Comributian 12.Bm 
Contn1Nlion Deficiency (F.xcess) s -
COYCl'Cd-Employcc Payroll $ W.,1~ 
Colltribations as a Peicaitagc of 

CO'vered-Employee Payroll 11.14% 

NOTESTOSCllEDULE OFCONTRIBtnlONS 

s 

s 

City of Lincotn, 1llinois 
SCHEDULE or CONTRIBtnlONS 

U.LlNOIS MlJNICIPALRETIREMENI'FUND-REOULAR. 
~ Supplcinent81 Infurmalicm 

April 30, 7.019 

2017 2016 2015 2014 -1!113 

79,080 $ 91l,2S8 $ 114,737 s 205,668 s 
22080 &9.874 111.302 112.Sll 

- s 384 (S 3565) $ 16085 S. 

$ 736.JlQ s 266..&44 s '1J..4.715 s 790.715 $_ 

10.74".4 11.72!.4 1521% 23.98% 

• EslimaJrd band OJ CQnlriburlqn rtJ# of 11.14% and cavemiwzluatton JX1>"0ll <f'S806,134. 

11tis ~ &ltouJd be vut/ild by the auditDr. 

Scbedule6 

2012. mi .mo. .2Q.Q2. 

s s s s 

$,=-~-
$, __ _ s __ = s -

$ - s - $_ s -
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City ofUncoln.Dlinois 
SCHEDULE OFCONTRIBUIIONS 

ILLINOIS MUNICIPALRETJREMENTFUND- SHERIFF'S LAWENFORCEMENI' PERSONNEL 
Reqaim!Sopp1ir:mental Inhmatiw 

ca!mJarym end!ngDecembq 31. 2Ql8 2917 

Actmrially Delamined Ccmribution • s -* s -
Comribulions in Rdmion to 1he Actaarill1Jy 

Oel=mined c.omribulion 1123 2.m 
Camributicm Dc6c:iency (Excess) ~ ~~) (S ~3) 

Covc:rcd-Employcc Payroll $ - $ -
CaltrlboEions as aPcroeutllg.C of 

~oyeePayroll 0.00% 0.00% 

NOTFS TO SCHEDULE OF CON11tIB1l110NS 

• &tilna#dboJ«l.on.COl'dributlon rate <f 13.28%anli. covmrdvabatlonptZJl10/l Q/$0. 

1his 1ftlmiJlr slt«lld be W!l'f/ied by the l/JllJJl()r.. 

------------------------·-··- -- ·--· .. .. 

s 

(S 

s 

April 30.. 2019 

2016 201S _2fil4_ 2013 __ 2Clll_ 

- s - s - s - $ 

l.1!2 UQS 3,334 

HZD ($ ~~ ($ UiS> s - $, 

- $ - $ - s - $ 

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Sdledak7 

__ 2Qll__ -201L _2Q09 

- $ - s - s 

- s - $ - s: 
- s - s - S. 
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Chy of'Lincoln, lilinois 
SCBEDULE OF CON'l'RIBUDONS 

POUCE PENSlONFllND 
Required Supplememl In1bnnalion 

April30,2019 

Scbedule8 

AQUadaI1y Dclermined ConlnWcn 
Contn'lluliOllS io Rdmon to !he AdmrialJy 

Detamiaed Conm"bution 
Coottibuticm ~(Excess) 

~O)'Q:~ 
Coalribulioos 115 aPerc:elllage of 

Covmd-Emplayee Payroll 

NO'IDTOSCBEDULE OFCONTlUBUllONS 

.?m.2 

$~ 

75~ 
$ ll§.31 

$ l.716.852 

43.65% 

J2!l .221Z. 

$ 827,142 s 63(),384 

§72.4.ll ~6~1 
s ]~~ $ 34.il 

SI ~0..412 S.J.a469. 

41.2% ~.2% 

.20.16. ZQ!i 1Q!! .2Qll. 2Ql2. ~ l!l1.0. 

$ 590,.410 $ 544.,847 $ s s s s 
§!Mn &39,929 

($, 26 027> ~ 95 0&2) s - s s . s - s_ 

s 1,531.652 $ 1.525.733 s - $ - s - s - s -
40..2% 41.9% 

The Adual:iaUy Determined Ccatn1Jutiou shown for the cmrentycar is the Sll'ltut.Oly minimum requimnmt tom the May 1.2017 A<marial.Rcport completed by Lautetbaclt &Amen, LLP fOr tbe181c lt\I)' ~for the 
Decanber2017 m Jeyy. 1be medlodsand assumptions shown below me based al tllcsarncAclualial Valuelion. For more ddail on the~ and~ mtes disclClsec1 below. please see the Actuadal Vahiatioo. 

AculariaI Cost Method: 
AmoniDlion Mahod: 
Ranaining.Amorlizalion Period: 
Asset Valuadon Mdhocl: 
Joflat[oo; 

hytoll lncteases: 
JndMdual Pay J.ncreases: 
llMslnlrnt RE ofRelum: 
Mortality Rates: 
RcdrcmeutRats: 
Tcrminatioo Rates: 
Disability Ra= 

Projected UnitCcdi! 
LeYe1 %Pay (Closed} 
23Yem 
5-Year smoothed Market Value 
2.50% 
325% 
4.00%- 6.00'.4 
7.00% 
RP-2014 A4iustecl for Plan S12tUs, Collar, and Illinois Public Pension Dala, as Appropriate 
100%ofL&A2016DlinoisPoliceRetiremaltRalcSCappedata~liO 
120%ofL.tA 2016 I1linols Police Termiaation RaRS 
100% ofL&A.2016 D1inoi5 Police Disability Raia 
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aiy ofLillCOID, miDois 
SCHEDULE OP CONDUBUI10NS 

F!RBFIGHIERS' PENSION FUND 
Required Suppiancntal. Intl:mmion 

Aptil 30, 2019 

Scbedulo9 

~ ~ l2U .2Ql§. .2ou. 1:0li. 2QU ~ WJ. ~ 

Actmrially Detamined Contribution $ &91,443 $ m,086 $ 634,928 $ 617,884 $ 612,306 s s s $ $ 
CCllllributiom in Relalion UJ tbe.Aduarially 

Detcn:nined Con!riburion ~S,93l SZJ21 ~1~ 6093S !'il~l!!l 
Conllibution Deficiency (Exl:ess) s 1;u~ s J14.R6S {'S l~~) s i~ ('S_--3.8jS) S. s - s - s - s -
Covcred-F.mplayee Payroll S l.22QJ6S $ 1,188..806 $ l,lSIJl!i s 1,m:m S l.OSS,924 $. s - s - $ - $ -
Qmlributicnsasa Pc:r=Jtagc of 

Covcred-F.mployee Payroll 61.93% 57.81% S6.59% 53.65% S836% 

NO'IDTOSCBEDULE OF CONI'RIB11IlONS 

'lbcAdllarilllly DC!lnmJned Cootn'llUlionsbowll fm'cbe CUUUlt~ is tbestatutorymmimum n.quiltmmtfrom.cbe May 1. 2017 Acmarial Reportcomplettd by L.aut=bach & Ainm. UP for the tax ltvyJWDll'lmdarimi tbrthe 
Decembcr201718X levy. 'lbe mdhods andassumplioas mown belowm basedm ~same AdoariaIVahmion. For more ddaiI cm tbeagr>-bascd aud~ rates disclosed below, please sec1be AclullrilJ Vahmicm. 

.Ac1uarial CostMetho<t 

.Amortimioo Mecbod: 
RemaiDiDg Amorlization }'ajod; 
Asset Valuation Mdhod: 
lnflatioo: 
PaylOll Jnaeases: 
Individual Pey Jnerca:s: 
InvestmcntRale ofRetum: 
Morllllity Riltes: 
Retiremmt Rm: 
Tctmlllalion Rates; 
Disability Rates: 

Projcctm Unit Credit 
Level% Pay (Closed) 
23Years 
S-Year Smoolbed Madcet Value 
2.SO% 
3.25% 
3.S0% 1o 20.19% 
7.00% 
RP-2014 A4)usted filr Plan SWus, Collar.and Illinois Public Pcmion DD, as AppropJi8tc 
100% ort.&:A 2016 JllinoisFsrdigblm Remaneat Rates Capped at age 62 
100%ofl&:A201G IllinoisFimfigbtetsTcrmioalianRDs 
80% ofL&A 2016 ~ Firdigbtt!s Disabi1i1y Ra!.es 
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rot VENUES: 
Taxes 11nd intel'govenunental revenue: 

City of Lincoln, Illinois 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 

GENERAL FUND 
For the Veal' Ended April 30, 2019 

Propeey taxes ........................................................................................................... . 
ht.come taxes •••••..••••• , ......................................................................................... , ••••.•. 
Sales and use taxes ..•.•.•......•...•......•...•..•.....•.•..•.....•......•..•.......•...•............. ,. ........••... 
Telecomm.t1nicatio11s tax ...•......••.•. I .............. ... .......... ............. .... , • ••• • ••• • • •• ••••••• • • ••••••• 

Replacement taxes .....................•.•...•.••...•.........•.....•............••....•...•.....••. ...•.......•.•.. 
Road and bridge taxes ............................................................................................ . 
Utility taxes ................ ,, .. , .• t.•••"-•"' " ''•••••••••u•u""''""''"''•••"•'•""""••••••U••"•••• .. •••••••• 
Videc> gs.ming taxes •... _. ......................................................................................... . 
Otlle.t' taxes,,,, ,,., ,,,,,, ,,,,, ,,, ,,,,,, •••.••.••••.•.••••••••. .•••••..•••••.•• u • .• ••• • •••• • ••••••• • • ••••• , ,, .. • ••••••••• • 

Fi.re tax ............................ .............. ,. .......•.....•.....•....... "'" ......................................... . 

Total Taxes and Intergovernmental Revenue ............................................ ..... . 

Charges for Services: 

FtancJ1ise fees · ······ ·· ···· ·· · ··· · · · ······ ·· ···· ·· ·· ··· ·· ··· ······ ·· ~· ····· ··· ·•••u••···· ·· · · ··········· · .. ··········· SRO contributions .•.•.•............. , ....•..•.•.....•.. , ........ , ......................... ,, ........•.•.....•...... 
Adllli11istmtive :fees •••.••..••••••.•••••••••••••••••••••.•••.••..••..•.••••...•••••••..•••••••••••.••••••••••••••. ••• 
Tmslt seivice billing ......... ,, .................•.........•...........•..•...................•.....•.•.......•..... 
Birtfi and deatlt certificates ...................................... u ........... ,, .. ........ ...... ... , .......... . . 

Depot retttal ........................................................................................................... . 
Other ,. ........................................................................ ............................................ . 
Liceltses end petm.its •.•..•.•....•......•....•..•..•.•..•.•. .... , .•................•..•...•....•.....•.•........... 

Tota.I Charges For Seivices ....•........•........•..•...•.......•.............•.......•.................. 

Fines and Foifeitures: 
Traffic fines ................................................................................................ ............ . 
Otl1e1· fines .................................................................................. ,, •.••. , .••.•..•.•.•..•.••.• 

Total Fines and Fol'feitures ............................................................................. . 

Miscellaneous: 
Miscellaneous ..• , ....... , .. , •. r ••••••• •••••••••••••••• ~ ................. .......................... ,,,,,,.,,, ••• • •••••• 

Donations •......•..•..............••.............•..•... , ....•.......•.•......•.•.•...•....•. ,,,,,,, ..•......•.•......... 
Refunds an.d reimbursements ............................................................ , ............ , ...... . 

Total Miscellaneous ........................................................... , ...........•........•......... 

OriginaVFinal 
Budgeted 
Amounts 

$ 703,057 
1,270,000 
3,750,000 

288,000 
208,000 
76,000 

650,000 
252,000 

1,800 

7.198.857 

188,000 
27,950 

5,000 
52,800 
13,165 
10,800 
4,700 

104.280 

406.695 

50,310 
3.520 

53.830 

soo 
212.272 

21i.112 

$ 

Schedule 10 

Cur.rent 
Year 

Actual 

662,277 
1,297,054 
4,065,981 

259,353 
171.446 
76,955 

658,509 
296,843 

3,538 
22.561 

7.514.517 

179,050 
56,670 
5,000 

23,302 
14,605 
9,900 

14,828 
97,325 

400,680 

64,571 
39.689 

104J60 

69,672 
118.878 

188.550 

(continued) 
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REVENUES (Continued): 

City of Lincoln, Illinois 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 

GENERAL FUND 
For the Year Ended Apl'il 30, 2019 

futerest Income ............................................................................................................... .. 

Other Financing Sources: 
State of Illinois-Grants ...................................•..................................................... 
Loan Proceeds ...•..................... 4 ............................................................................... . 

Transfer from Motor Fuel Tax Fund ...................................................................... . 

Total Otlter Fina11cing Sources ...... u ..... ,_ ....... u .................... , •• _.., .. u, ..... ,., ........ .. 

TOT.AL RE'VENUES .................................................................................................. . 

EXPENDITURES: 
Public Safety: 

Fire Department: 
Pc.rsonnel seivices ................................................................................... ~········· 
Supplies. ............... u•••••••••••••••• ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••11 ••••••••••••••••••••••••u•••••••••••••••••• 
Repairs and maintenance ................................. , .............................................. . 
Contractual service.s ••.............•.•.•..••••...............•..................•......•..................... 
Other seivices and cltm~s ..•.•.•.....•••...•....•..•..••••....•.•••..•..•.....••.••...••.........•...•. 
Capital outlay ......................................................................................... ~············· 

Total Fire Department ............... " ............................................................... . 

Police Department: 
Pe.rsonnel services ................................................................................................ . 
Supplies .....•..•... , ... , ................................ ,_.,, ........................... , ....... ,, ....... , .•. u ••••• 

Repa.im artd mainte118nce ........................................................................... , ••.•• 
Contractual seNices ........................................................................................ . 
Otl1er services and charges ............................................... ........ , .••..••.••........ , ...... . 
Capital outlay- .......................................................... , ........................................ . 

Total Police Departmei1t .............................................................. , ............ . 

ESDA: 
RepaiJ'S and maintenance ................................................................................ . 

Crossing Guard: 
Perrsoru1el services ............................................................................................. . 

Public Benefits: 
Animal control contI'a.ct .......................................................................... ~ ....... . 

Total PubJic Safety' ............................. u ................................ ................... .. 

Original/Final 
Budgeted 
Amounts 

$ __ 4"""''=10=0 

29,219 

29.219 

7.905.473 

J,382,284 
36)50 
53,000 
7,500 

51,650 
6.626 

1.537.310 

1,868,074 
60,000 
24,000 
35,800 
54,875 

2.042.749 

5.000 

5.000 

41.045 

3.631.104 

Schedule 10 

Current 
Year 

Actual 

$, _ _..1...,1."'-'31=0 

29,947 
60,000 
12.919 

102.866 

8.322.183 

1,280,487 
48.404 
55,058 
8,339 

21,916 

1.414.204 

1,813,530 
149,499 
21,284 
26,298 ' 
34,218 
29.313 

2.074.142 

6.250 

3.523 

38.500 

3.536.619 

(continued) 
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City of Lincoln, Ulinois 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 

GENERAL FUND 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2019 

EXPENDITURES (Continued): 
Pnblic Wodcs: 

Zoning: 
P«sonnel services ...•........•..............•...................••.•.........•. , ............................ . 
SuppJies .•...•.••.•..... , .. , ................................. ........................................................ . 
Repairs and maintenance ............................ ,. ..•... ""''u••··· .......... u ................... . 
Othe1· services and charges ..................... u1a . ....... .... . . ..... . ...... ... . .............. ........ . 

Total Zoning ...................•....•..••••..•....•••..................•...•...•.....••.............•..••. 

Trash Collection: 
Penonnel services ...................... , ...•....•.......•..............•.....••........••........•............ 
Office supplies .............................................................................. , ..•..•.........•.. 
Eq,uip1nellt_. ............................................................ , ..................................... ,,,,,, 

Total Tras11 Collection .............................................................................. . 

Public Grounds and Buildings: 
Supplies ..................••.......•...•...•.....•..•.....•.•.................................................•..... 
Repairs and 1naintena11co ... ,, .••....• tt . . ....................... . ......... . .... ............. u ••••••• , ••• 

Contracrual set"Vires ........................................................................................ .. 
Utilities .•.....•..••......•..•.....•.•...•.... 4 •••••••••••••••••••••••••• • • •••••••• • ••••••••••••••• • •••••• • ••• • ••••• • 

Other se1vices 81ld charges ............................................................................. . 

Total Public Grou11ds and Buildings ....................................................... .. 

Streets and Alleys: 
Personnel seIVices ........................................................................................... . 
Supplies ..•....................•....•.•.......••••......•.•.•..••.•..........•...•.••.•......... , ................... . 
Repairs and maintena11ce ................ u ..... .. ............... u ....... . .. ~ • • u ................... " .... . 

Stree-t ligllts •..... .•.•.•••.•.••.•••••••.•.••.•...•.•...•......•.••....••.••.........•...........•..•...•••........ 
Contractual seJ"Vices ..••......••.••...••.•.•...••....••••.•...••• ,, •....•.•.•.....•...•...•••.•.••..•....•.•. 
Ottter services and charges ·············••u••••••tt•••••U••······················••u••················ 
Capital outlay ................... ............................................................. , ................... . 

Total Streets and Alleys ............................................................................ . 

Tota.] Public Works •.............•... , ......................................................... . 

Original/Final 
Budgeted 
Amounts 

$ 95,750 
1,900 
1,500 

53.250 

152.400 

19,582 
1,620 

10.194 

31.396 

1,000 
16,000 
34,500 
41,660 

93.160 

491,706 
108,500 
46,000 
55,000 
50,000 
92,745 

843,951 

1.089.511 

$ 

Schedule 10 

Current 
Year 

Actual 

89,995 
3,735 

33 
37.300 

131.063 

19,315 
194 

4.811 

24.320 

1,259 
17,355 
58,431 
72,729 

13 

149.787 

473,061 
99,031 

123,762 

65,131 
9,002 

38.480 

808.467 

1.113.637 

(continued) 
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EXPENDITURES (Continued): 
Genet·at Government: 

City Clerk's Office: 

City of Li11cotn, Tilinois 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 

GENERAL FUND 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2019 

Personnel services ..•...•.•..• , .................................................. ............................ , 
Supplies ........................................................................................................... , 
ReJ>Bl.rs and maintettance ..•••.•...•••.•......•........•..•.••....••.................•••.•..••.••....•••.. 
Conbctual services .................................•...........................................•........... 
0th« setVices and charges .............................................................................. . 

Total Cify Clerk's Office ................................... t ... ...... ........................ ...... . 

City Administrator: 
Personnel set'V'ices .........•...•.•....•.•... ,. ................................................................. '". 
Supplies ........................................................................................................... . 
Other sel'\lices and charges .....•.•......•................•......•...•.•................. ,, •••.......•.•. 

Total City- Administrator's Office .......... ........ 4 . ..... . . . ... . . . . . . . ............. . ......... . 

Merit Commission: 
Persottnel se:JV'ices .............................................................. , .....•..•..•.................• 
Othe1· se:l"Vices a~d cltarges .••..••••••••••••.•••••••.•••••••••••••.•••••..•••••.••••••••••••• •. .•.•••• , •. 

Total Merit Commission ..•....... ,. ..................................................... , .......... , 

Mayor's Office: 
Personnel servi~ .....•.....•......... , ................................................... , ................. . 
Supplies •.....•.....•........ I' •• • ••• , • • ••••••• • ••••••••• • ••••••••••• • ••••••••••• • ••••• •••• , • •• • • •••••• • • • • • •••••• • • • 

Tmvel and training •••.....•..•..............•... .•.............•.... , ............. , ..•..•............ , ......• 
Other se1vices and chai'ges ...•......................•...•....••..............•...•.•...•.•.......•...•.• 
Capital outlay .....••..•.•..••.....•.•.•..•.•....•..•...•..•..• , .......••..............•..•.....•......•.•....•.• 

Total Ma.yor's Office .....•..........•......•. , .•.•..•..•...•..•...•.. , .......... , ....... , .•.•.....•.. 

Audit: 
Audit foo ........................................................................................................... . 

Legat: 
Conb'actllal se1-vices .............................................................. ,. ......................... . 

Original/Final 
Budgeted 
Amounts 

$ 87,335 
5,000 
2,500 
3,000 

28.000 

125.835 

70,000 
800 

5.800 

76.600 

1,800 
5,500 

7.300 

46,800 
500 

6,500 
50,171 

103.971 

23.000 

96.500 

$ 

Schedule 10 

Current 
Year 

Actual 

98,528 
3,770 

4,943 
15.463 

122.709 

35,579 
1,878 
9.437 

46 .. 894 

1,150 
2.836 

3.986 

45,921 
475 

5,653 
15,605 
14,061 

81.715 

26.6QO 

91.462 

(continued) 
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EXPENDITURES (Continued): 
General Oovemment (Continued): 

Contingent: 

City of Lincoln. Illinois 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 

GENERAL FUND 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2019 

Unemployment •..••••....•.•.......•.............•.•.....•....•..•..................••......•.•............... 
Co1ltract11al seivices ...•.•...••.•....... , .................................................................... . 
Special project expenditures ..... ................................................... u ........ ......... . . 

Other services and charges .....•..•.. u • • ., .... ...... ....................... .................. . ... . .... . . 

Total Contlnge11t ....................................................................................... . 

IMRF: 
Social security contribution •••u••············•u•••••·····························•u•U•••············ 
IMR.F conkibutio11 ..........•.•.•..•..•••.........•.••...•.•.....•...•..•••••.••..•...•..•.....•..•..••.•.•.• 

Total ™RF .............................................. , .............•....... , .. , ............. , ......... . 

lnsul'ance: 
Health Insurance •.•.•..........•....••.•..........•......•.•...........•...•......•.....•.....•......... ..•... 
Health fusutMce ~ Reti1-ees •.••.......•••.•....••.••.•....•....••.•.•..•...•.•••.•.•••.•..••••...•.•..••• 
Injured officer premium ................................................................................. .. . 
Dental 'InStJrance ., ..................... ...................................................................... . 
Life Insurance ...•...•.••..•...........••....•.•..•••.....•....•......• ,,u .......................... ........ .. . 

H.S.A ........... ,, .•.•....•... , .................................................................................... . 

Tota.1 I11surance ..•.•..•.•....•.••.......•..•..•.......•....•....... .•.. " ..................... , ..•......•. 

Liability Insurance: 
Vehicle itlSum11ce .......................................................................... ,., ...••.••.•..••••.. 
Liability insurance .........•.•.•..•.•....•••.......• , ........................... ,_ .......................... . 
Workers co1npensation ••••.•.••.•.•..•.•.... , .................................. " ........................ . 
Property' insumnce ........................................................................................... . 
Compensable Claims ....................... , ..... u .. ...... . ............. . .... .......... ........... . . ....... .. . 

Total Uability" Insut811ce •......•.•. , .............................................................. . 

Lincoln Industrial Commission: 

Otflei· setVices and charges ···················u·•·························•••tt•·•······················ 
Total Genera.I Oovernme11t ............ " ...... u ...... ., .... ., ......................... .... ....... .. 

OriginaVPinal 
Budgeted 
Amounts 

$ 1,500 
264,085 
20,000 
13.815 

299.400 

117,490 
108.745 

226.235 

590.781 
187,928 
10,100 
40,065 
2,268 

63,815 

894.957 

44,284 
81,730 

256.958 
56,862 
5.000 

444.834 

25.500 

2,324.132 

$ 

Schedule 10 

Current 
Year 

Actual 

297,874 

6.583 

304.457 

114,758 
84.372 

199.130 

613A36 
179,370 

5,178 
41,279 
2,194 

63.049 

904,506 

54,804 
63,326 

240,160 
85,236 

443,526 

21.545 

2.246.530 

(continued) 
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EXPENDITURES (Continued): 
Capital Projects: 

City of Lincoln, Illinois 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 

GENERAL FUND 
For the Yeat·Bnded April 30, 2019 

Sales tax. rebates ............. t••····························· ····· .................................................... . 
D 'gn/B • • esJ ngi11eer111g ., ..................................................................................... ••••••u• 

~nd acquisition ................ ,. .................................................................................... . 
Capital Outlay - Public safety building ............................................................... .. 
Othei· - Public works .............................................................................................. . 
Principal payments •.................•.•........................................................•..............•.... 
Inte1i.est Jl8.ymoots ••••.•.•...•.•..••.•.•.•.•.•...••.•.•.•....•....•.•.••.••••..••.••...••.•.....••.•.••..•.•.•.•.•.•.• 
Other fees ................................................................................................................ . 

Total Capital P1ojects. ....................................................................................... . 

Other Financing Uses 
Trans:fer to Motor Fuel Tax ............•.....•..•.....................•..••.................................... 
Tra.nsfer to Equjpment Rental Fund ....................................... ~ .............................. . 
Transfer to TIF ......•.•...•...•.................. , .......................................................... t••••······ 
T.ratlSfer to Police Pension ....................... , ............ -.,. ... u ......................... , .............. . 

Transfer 'to Fire Pe11Sion ............................................ , ........................................... , 

Total Otlter Fittancing Uses ............................................................................ . 

TOTM.., EXPENDITU'RES .....•.•••.•...•••...•.•...•.•............•......•.•••. , ...•..•......•.•...•...• , ..•.••• 

NET CHANGE IN' FUND B~CE ...........•••....•....•....•...•..... , ..•........•.............•.•.. 

Fl.JN'D BAI.ANCE-BEGINNING ............................................................................ .. 

FlJND BALANCE- ENDJN'G .................................................................................. . 

OriginaJ/Flnal 
Budgeted 
Amounts 

$ 25,000 
85,000 

2,169.862 
675,000 

2.954.862 

155,509 
41,640 
83,000 

106.000 

386.149 

10.385.758 

Schedule 10 

Current 
Year 

Actual 

$ 25,000 
108,746 
69,235 

1,898,727 
497,890 
195,000 
92,434 

750 

2.887.782 

100,033 
155.482 
50,350 
83,000 

106.000 

494.865 

10.279.433 

($ 2.480.285) ( J ,957,250) 

6.854.524 

s 1.891m 
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REVENUES: 

City of Lincoln, Illinois 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2019 

Motor fuel taxes •..•...•................ , .............................................................................. . 
Interest income ...................................................................................................... . 

TOTAi., REVENUES .••. ltt••••••··················••u••••••u••···························••4•••···················· 
EXPENDITURES: 
Public Works: 

Personnel services •.•.•.••.•....•.................••.....•........ , .................................................. . 
Supplies .. .......................................................... , ..••..• , ............ .............•.....•............... 
Bngirieering ...........•..•....•.•.•..•...•..•.... , .....•. , ...•..........•..•.....•.......•.....•...•..••......•...•....• 
EQ.uipment 'Rental ................................................................................................... . 
T1affic signals ........................................................................................................ . 
Fifth Street road project .......•.. u ................................ u .... . ............................... ._ ...... . 

Street ligl1ts ............................................................................................................. . 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ........................................................................................ . 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Sta.te Ora11t-IDOT Reimburse1nent .. uuuun••t1•••• ......... ,, ......... , .... , • •• u ................... . 

TtB.llSfer from General Fund ................................................................................... . 
Tmnsfer- to Genel'al Fund, •.•....•.•...•...•... u ... ...... . . . ......... ......... . ..... .............. . . . . . . . ...... . . . 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES) .............................................. . 

Nn CHANGE 'IN' F'VND BALANCE ........... .......................................... ............... . 

FlJND BALANCE - BBGJ'NNING ·········••t••••••••11••···•••U••••••••1•••································· 
FCJND BALANCE-ENDJN"G .......... ,..,. ....... M••••Mffll•M•t••••· .. ••••••• ... •• ............. ............. . 

Original/Final 
Budgeted 
Amounts 

$400,000 
580 

40Q,580 

94,000 
120,000 
56,000 

130,000 
30,000 

175,000 
100,000 

705.000 

210,000 

210.000 

($ 94.42Q) 

Schedule 11 

Current 
Year 

Actual 

$368,178 
658 

J68,8l6 

96,948 
66,817 
65,155 
95,116 
22,642 
21,586 
79.887 

448,lSl 

100,033 
( 12.919) 

87.114 

7,799 

402.338 

S~lfl.l3Z 
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Budgetm:v Accounting 

City of Lincoln, Illinois 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2019 

The City follows these procedures in establishing d1e budgeta1y data reflected in the f mancial statements: 

1. In April of each year, the Finance Committee of the City Council submits to the City Council a proposed operating 
budget for the fiscal year commencing that May l. 

2. A copy of the proposed budget is placed on fiJe with the City Clerk and a date for public hearings is announced. 
3. The budget is passed by City Council. 
4. The appropriation is legally enacted through the passage of an ordinance. 
S. After adoption of the appropriation, fm1her appropriations are prohibited. Transfers from one appl'Opriation of any 

fund to another appropriation of the same fund, not affecting the total amount appt'opriated, may be made subject to 
City Council approval. 

6. Fonnal budgetary integration is employed as management control device during the year for the General Fund, the 
Special Revenue Funds. and the Debt Service Fund. 

7. The budget is prepared on the cash basis of accounting. 
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~ 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents ·······-···-············ 
Restricted cash-···-············-········-····-······ 
Taxes receivable ........ _ .. _, _____ ······•·········• 
Due .from other govennnents-····-······--··· 

TOTAL ASSETS- --

Liabilities and Fund Balanf&S 
UABILITIES 

Deferrcd:revenUC--·-··--···----··----·-· 
Accounts payable-•. -··-··-·······--·-···-·-

Total Liabilities ........... -·····--·--········-

FUND BALANCES 
Restticted for: 

Special Projects-···········--.................. -. 
Debt Service····-·--··--········----····· 

Total Fund Ba1ances ····-······-·······-··- -···-

TOTAL UABILITIES AND 
FOND BA.LANCES ... ...-.... ......... ----

City of Lincoln, Illinois 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MA.JOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
April 3~ 2019 

Debt 
SDeCial Revenue Ilmds S~ce 

Library Hotel/Motel Debt 
J>midngLot IJFFund Tax Service 

$ 5,884 $ 27 $ 47,730 $ -
18,685 

181,200 
~ -

s 5.884 s '27 s10.m $199..885 

$ $ $ $181,200 
22.754 

~ ~ 

5,884 27 48,223 
18.685 

~ ---11. ~ 18.685 

$~ $ 27 $ 70.977 s~ 

Capital 
Exgj~ 
Capital 
Proiects 

$ 25,161 
-
-
-

$ 25J6J 

$ 

25,161 

25,161 

$ 25.161 

mtemal 
Service 

F.qujpmeJtt 
RS$1s 

$456.120 
-
-
-

$4.i6.120 

$ 

456,120 

456.120 

$456,120 

Schedule 12 

....I.2t!l 

$53~ 
18,685 

181,.200 
~7 

$181,200 
22.754 

203.2i'! 

535,415 
18.685 

554.100 

$758.054 
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City ofLincoJn, Illinois Schedule 13 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF:REVENUFS, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES JN FUND BALANCE 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2019 

Debt Capital lntl:mal 
SDeCial Revenue Funds Service ~~ Service 

Li."brary Hotd/Motel Debt capital Equjpment 
ParkingLgt TIFF!lnd Tax Service Proig Rentak Total 

REVENUES: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes ................................ ·-···· $ . $ 131,329 $ . $ 183,882 $ - $ - s 315,211 
HoteJ/m.otel taxes·····-··-·····-·-············· - - 196,173 - - - 196,173 

Charges 1br services ............ ·-·--·········-···· - - - - - 153,235 153,235 
Miscellaneous···-···--·-····--·-·--·-·--·· - - - - - 10,802 10,802 
In:re:rest incom.e ............... _ ......... - ........... _._ 3 26 24 104 - 1.038 1.195 

TOTAL REVENUES····-···-·-·····-·- 3 131.355 196.197 183,2§6 - 165.075 676.616 

EXPENDITUBES:-
General governm.enl-·······-·········-·-··-····· - 500 196,838 500 10,665 595 209,098 
Economic development .............................. - 10,000 - - - - 10,000 
capital Outlay ............................................. - - - - - 1,153,407 1.153,407 
Debt Service: 

Principal ·····-·-·······-·····-···-·····-······ - 95,000 . 173,000 - 183,013 451,013 
Interest ................................................... - 81.169 - 13.015 - 30.647 124.831 

TOTAL EXrENDITURES ................ - 186..669 196..838 186.515 10,W 1,367.662 1.948349 

EXCESS (DEFICJENCY) OF 
REVENUES OVER 
EXPENDITURES ..................................... __ ___l ( 55314) ( 641) ( 2.529) ( 10.665) ( 1.2cg,587) ( 1.Vl.133) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Lease proceeds·-·······--·-··-··--···········-· .. - - - - - 1,125,107 
Transfer to other tunds ................................ - 50.350 - - - 155.482 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) .. - - 50.350 ·-- --- - 1.280.589 1.130.939 

NET CHANGE IN 
FUND BALANCE--- - 3 ( 4,964) ( 641) { l,529) ( 10,665) 78,002 59,.206 

FUND BALANCES- BEGINNING-........... _ 5.881 4.991 48..864 21.214 35.826 378.118 494.894 

FUND BALANCES-ENDING-·-- s 5,§M $ 27 s. N'P $ 18.685 $ 25.JfiJ $ 456.120 s SSf,100 
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City of Lincoln, Illinois 
COMPARATIVESTATEMENTSOFNETPOSITION 

SEWER FUND 
April 30, 2019 and 2018 

Current 
Year 
Total 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash Bild cash equivalents ...................................................................................... . $ lt797,197 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents .................................................................... .. 272,505 
Accounts receivable ............................................................................................... . 870.002 

Total Ctlrrent Assets ....................................................................................... . 2.939.704 

CAPITAL ASSETS 
Sewera.ge system ···································~············ · ····· · ········ · ······· · ····· · ········ · ····· · ······· 17,660,849 
I..e-ss: Aoc.umulated depreciatloo ..•..•............... 1 ............................ . ...... . ..... , • • •••••• • • • ( 10.047.888) 

Net Capital Assets ........ , ..... , ............................................................................. . 7.612.961 

TOT.AL ASSETS ........................... , .... , ...................................................................... .. .. 10,552,665 

Liabilities and Net Position 
CURRENT LIABILlTIES 

Accounts payable ......................................................................................................... . 
Notes and bonds payable-cu1·rent portion ............................................................. . 565,000 
1.,oan payable- curre11t portion .............................................................................. . 100.245 

Total Current Liabilities ...•. .' ..•..•.•............ t••···························· .. ······························ 665,245 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Notes and bonds payable (less current JX>rtion) ................. _. ..... ,. .......................... . 2,2SOtOOO 
Bond premium •. , ....•........•..•.•.....•.......•.•.....•. , .......................................................... . 54,126 
~an payable (less current portion) ....................................................................... . 102.881 

Total I.,ong .. Term Lia.bilities ........................................................ , .................. .. 2.407.007 

TOTALLIAB~ ....................................................................................... ,. 3.072.252 

NETPOSfflON 
Net irlvestm.ent in capital assets ............................................................................. .. 4,540,709 
Restricted ......................................... 4 ................................. ,4 .................................... . 272,505 
Unrestticted .................................................................... ,u ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 4 ••••••• 2.667.199 

TOT~ NET PosmoN ............... , ....................... " .......................................... . s 7~8M1J 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

Schedule 14 

Prior 
Year 
Total 

$ 1,613,057 
272,505 
556.254 

2.441.816 

16,682, 147 
( 9,680.110) 

7J)02.037 

2,443,~53 

10,583 
555,000 

565.583 

2,815,000 
64,952 

2.879.952 

3.445.535 

3,567,085 
272,505 

2.158,728 

$ 5,998.31§ 
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City of Lincoln, IJlinois 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 

CHANGES JN NET POSITION 
SEWER FUND 

For the Years Ended April 30, 2019 and 2018 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Clwges fut· services., .............................................. ,t ................ .... ............ , •••••••••• , ••••• 

Other income ·····················~········u••··························· · · · ··· · ····· ·· ············ · ········ ·· ·· ······ 
Total OJ)erating Revenl1es .............................................................................. . 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Pe1-sonneJ service ................................................................................................... . 
Contractt1a1 n1aintenance .................................................................................. , •...• 
Supplies and 1naterials ........•••.....••.....•............••.......•......................•.....•..•..•..•...•.... 
Other fees and charges ....•....•............•..•........ , .....•....••.......•...•......•.......•.• , .•..........•.. 
Depreciatio11 •.••.••.•........•.....•....•............................•.••.....•...•.•............•............•.• ,. .•..•. 
Repairs and maintcnance .. ,. ........................................................... u ........................ . 

Office supplies ....................................................................................................... . 
Postagc .................................................................................................... t••·············· 
Telephono ................................................................................................................ . 
l.ll.9ufftllce •.•••••••.•••••••.••••..•.••.•••..•••.••••.• ,. ••.••. ,, ..•.••..•.•..••.••.•...•.....•••.••. •. .••..•. , ............ .. 
F 'lity ·1·. act uti tties ...................................................................................................... . 

Total Operating Ex.pertses .....•.•........•..•..•.. , ..••.......•.•....•.....•......•.•.....•.....•..•..... 

Net Operating Incon1e .....•... , ..•.......•........•..•.•.............•.....•............•....•.....•...... 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
fute~ income ....•......•..•.............................••...•............•...•.....•........•...•....•..••.•...... 
htterest'(expense) •...•............•••.......•.............•.•...•...............................••.•.....•....•...... 
Gain (loss) on sale of asset .................................................................................... . 
Operatingtrans:fers i11 ............................................................................................ . 

O)>Cf8ting transfers {oot) ........................... , ...................................... ,. ...................... . 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Bxpe11Ses) ............................. , ....................... .. 

NET CHA.NGE IN' NET POSITION ............... , ...................... .......... u••~···· ............ , .... , 

NET POSITION - BBGINNIN'O ..•....••...•.••...•....................... ,, ....•.............•................•• 

NET posmoN - ENDIN'G ............................................................ " .... " ................. . 

Current 
Year 
Total 

$ 3,835,315 
10.574 

3.845.889 

81,845 
1,349,539 

27,160 
549,552 
67,542 
10,041 
23,988 

763 
4,376 

255.142 

2,369.948 

1.475.941 

2,783 
( 79,629) 

83,000 
639,775 

( 639.77~ 

6.154 

1,482,095 

5,998318 

$ 2.~0,413 

The accompanying notes are an integral patt of the financial statements. 

Schedule JS 

Priol' 
Year 
Total 

$ 3,217,773 
11.436 

3.229.209 

80,075 
1,310,116 

2,489 
22,905 

449,759 
68,295 
3,287 

16,000 
777 

4,188 
228.887 

2.186,778 

1.()42.431 

2,220 
( 84,100) 

640,675 
( 640.675) 

( 81.880) 

960,551 

S.037.767 

s s.~2s~1s 
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LORI K. MILOBBVIOH, O.P.A., C,11',E. 
TERRI L. P.Hm.PS, O.P.A. 
JAMES 0. LEGG, 0.P.A. 

RICHARD W. OGDEN. O.P.A. 

To the Honorable Mayor 
And City Council 

City ofLincoJn, ntinois 

Estes, Bridgewater & Ogden 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

901 Sowtl Second Street 
Sprlng11old, llllno'8 62704 

217/528-8473 
Fax 2171528·8606 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance With 
Subsection (q) of Section 11-74.4-3 of the Dltnois 
Tax Increment Redevelopment Allocation Act 

We have audited the balance sheet of the Incremental Tax Fund of the City of Lincoln, Illinois, as of Aprll 30, 2019, and the 
related statement of revenue, expenditures, and changes in fund balance for the year then ended, and have issued our report 
thet'OOl.l dated November 20, 2019. The financial statements present only the Incremental Tax Fund and are not intended to 
present fairly the financial position and results of operations and the cash flows of the proprietary fund types of the City of 
Lincoln, ntinois in conformity with the modified cash basis of accounting as described in Note 1. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards gen.era1ly accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. 

Compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to the City ofLincoln, Illinois is the responsibility of the 
City of Mt. Pulaski, Illinois, management. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the fmancial sbltements 
are ftee of material misstatement, we pe1formed tests of the City of Lincoln, Illinois> compliance with Subsection (q) of 
Section 11-74.4-3 (65 Il..CS 5/11-74.4-3 (q) of the Illinois Tax Increment Redevelopment Allocation Act. However, the 
objective of our audit of the financial statements was not to provide Bil opinion on overall compliance with such provisions. 
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

However, the results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance with Subsection (q) of Section 11-74.4-3 (65 ILCS 
5/l l-74.4-3(q)) of the Illinois Tax Increment Redevelopment AJlocation Act. 

This report is intended for the information and use of managem,ent. State of Illinois Department of Revenue, and to taxing 
districts ovedapping the City of Lincoln, Illinois Tax Increment Redevelopment Project Areas adlninistered by the City of 
Lincoln, Illinois and is not inte17-ded to be Bild should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

~ ~v~ 
Certified Public Accountants 
Springfield, Illinois 

November 20, 2019 
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City of Lincoln, Illinois 
SCHEDULE OF ASSESSED VALUATIONS, TAX RATES, 

EXTENSIONS AND COLLECTIONS 
For The Year Ended April 30, 2019 

2018 2017 
Levy Leyy 

Schedule 16 

2016 
Leyy 

ASs.ESSED VALUATION ..................................................... . $150.972.552 $149.591.145 $149.448.202 

TAX RATES 
Oeneral .........................•.. , ...•........................•...........•......•.... 
Police protection ................................................................. . 
Fire Protection ....................................................................... . 
Fol'eStcy ................................................................................ . 
Firemen's pension ················••u•••••••························· .. ·········· 
FJremen.'s spouse pension ........................................... .,. ....... . 
Policemen's pension ...................... I ......... , ........................ .,,,, 
I.M.R.F .............................................. , ..........•.•....................... 
Emergency service ....................................................... ........ . 
'Public be11efit ....................................................................... . 
Llability insurmce ............................................................... . 
Audit .................................................................................... . 
Bonds ........................................................ ,, ........................ . 
School ct'OSSing gu.arci .•...•••...•.••.•........•.......•...•....•.••....•..... ,, 
Social Secui·ity .......•..........•............•............••.••......••........•... 

Total .........•.......•••.....•........................................•... t••······ 

.00168 

.03962 

.08340 

.03227 

.29573 

.00067 

.32282 

.09075 

.00270 

.03114 

.08396 

.01158 

.11874 

.00438 

.05963 

1.17907 

.00170 .00170 

.03999 .04002 

.08417 .08425 

.03256 .03259 

.29644 .28399 

.00067 .00052 

.32415 .31457 

.09159 .09168 

.00272 .00272 

.03143 .03146 

.08473 .08481 

.01168 .01169 

.12356 .11656 

.00442 .00442 

.06018 .06023 

1.18999 1.0441J 

(continued) 
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City of Lincoln, Illinois 
SCHEDULE OF ASSESSED VALUATIONS, TAX RATF.8, 

EXTENSIONS AND COLLECTIONS 
For The Year Ended April 30, 2019 

TAX EXTENSIONS 
Genet1tl ................................................................................. . 

Police protection···························-········· ··········· ·················· 
Fire P1-otection ....•......••••....•..•...••.•••.•••.•.. ...•••••.•.•...•......••••..•• 
Forestty .................................................................. ............. . 
F' I • iremens pellS1on ............................................................... . 
Firerrlen1s spouse pension ................................................... ,. 
Pollcemm's pension ... " ....................................................... . 
I.M.R.F, ............ , ................................................................... . 
.Emergency se.rvice ...•......•...........................•.••.......•...•........• 
Public benefit •.....••.........••.............•. u ............................ ...... . 

Liab•t•ty . 11 1nsuran.ce ·········••t•••················· ................................. . 
Audit ........•.............................••............................................. 
Bonds ........................................... , •........•.............•••..•........... 
School crossing gtl8rd ....••...•..•...•.•...........•.••.•..•....••............. 
Social Secwity ........................... ........................................... . 

Total Extended ................................... , ..•....••.••....••..................... 

Total Collected ......................................... ................. ................. . 

Pe1'Celltage Collooteci ................•..............•..•........ , ...... ~················ 

Road md Biidge Collection ................................... , .................... . 

2018 
Extended 

$ 2,606 
61,463 

129,380 
50,061 

458,771 
1,039 

500,796 
140,782 

4,189 
48,308 

130,249 
17,964 

184,203 
6,795 

92.505 

$1.829.111 

2017 
Extended 

$ 2,543 
59,822 

125,911 
48,707 

443,448 
1,002 

484,900 
137,011 

4,069 
47,017 

126,749 
17,472 

182,995 
6,612 

90,024 

$1.778.282 

$1.770.59§ 

~ 

$ 76.2~~ 

Schedule 16 

2016 
Extended 

$ 2,547 
59,809 

125,910 
48,705 

424,418 
777 

470,119 
137,014 

4,064 
47,016 

126,747 
17,470 

172,463 
6,606 

90.013 

$1.733.§78 

$1.726.03§ 

~ 

$ 1~.~~ 

91 



City of Lincoln. Illinois 
SCHEDULE OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN 

For The Year Ended April 30, 2019 

ASSESSED VALUATION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018 ................................................ .. 

DEBT LIMITATION, 8.625% OF ASSESSED VALUATION ........................................ .. 

TOTAL DEBT 
General obligation bonds (refunding bond)-Governmental .............. .. 
General obligation bonds .. Se\\'er ..... " ................... u ...... ,. .................... . 

Tax increment financing general obligation (altemative revenue source) 
Notes payable ...•...•••.•...•••• , ..................................................................... . 
Capital lease payable ..................•......•.......................•...............•.•.......•. 

Less debt paid fium otb.er SOUl'CeS ····~····•••UIUIU••••o••••••n••••••••••u••········· 

$ 3,249,000 
2,815,000 
2,010,000 

240,197 
1.063.511 
9,377,708 

( 2.815.000) 

Schedule 17 

$1SQ.972.W 

$ 13,021,383 

( 6.562.708) 

LEGAL DEBT M.ARGIN, APRII.s 30, 2019 ......................................... ,.................................. $ 6458,675 
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Date: 11119/19 

PLUMBING & EXCAVATING 
PL U M fH N G e EXCA'iATING e D IR E CTION AL BOR I N G 

Scope and Proppsal 
Page 1 of l 

For. 4111 and Decatur Street Sewer- Lincoln 
To: City of Lincoln 

Include _ All Labor, Equipment and Materials for the following: 

Mobilization 
Remove & Replace 785/lf of 15'' Sewer with new 1 S" SDR 26 PVC All Provided 
Provide and Install Four new 4• Dia. Manholes with New Castings 
Provide and Install 12" SOR 26 PVC Stonn Sewer Connections (11/ea) 
Connect three sewer services to new sewer 
Abandon Existing sewer in place where not removed 
Traffic Control Complete 
CA-7 Rock Pipe Cradle Furnished and installed 
Below are options with CLSM or Sand options for backfill 
Below are options for Concrete Pavement Poured back in High Early or just CA-6 Ditch cap until 
Spring when City can have someone come Asphalt Pave the project. 

u All below/above work will be done on a T &M Basis with below being budgets. 

Option #1: Above with CLSM Backfill and Concrete Road Patch: $419,425.00 

Option #2: Above with CLSM Backfill and CA-6 Ditch Cap: $371,225.00 

Option #3: Above with Sand Backfiil and Concrete Road Patch: $337,371.00 

Option 1#4: Above with Sand Baddill and CA-6 Ditch Cap: $289,171.00 

**Not Included: All Bonds, Permits, Tap Fee's, Premium Time, Asphalt Paving, 
Engiraeering. 

Sincerely. 

Brian Vogt 
President/Senior Project Manager 


